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INTRODUCTORY SECTION

The purpose of the Introductory Section in a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR)
1s to familiarize readers with the organizational structure of the government, the nature
and scope of the services it provides, and the specifics of its legal operating environment.



COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S OFFICE

PIMA COUNTY GOVERNMENTAL CENTER
130 W. CONGRESS, FLOOR 10, TUCSON, AZ 85701-1317
(520) 724-8661  FAX (520) 724-8171

C.H. HUCKELBERRY
County Administrator

December 17, 2019

To the Honorable Board of Supervisors and Citizens of Pima County, Arizona:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Pima County for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2019. This report presents comprehensive financial and operating information about the County’s
activities for the fiscal year.

We believe that the financial information, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a
manner designed to openly disclose the financial position and results of operations of the County as measured by the
financial activity of its various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum
understanding of the County’s financial affairs have been included. Management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of
internal control that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed
anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements
are free of any material misstatements. The State of Arizona Office of the Auditor General is required to audit financial
transactions and accounts kept by counties. The Auditor General has issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the
Pima County financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019. The Auditor General’s report is located at the
front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides
a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter
of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Pima County Profile

Covering an area of approximately 9,200 square miles, Pima County is one of the oldest continuously inhabited areas
of the United States. It is situated in the southern part of Arizona with a portion of its southern boundary bordering
Mexico. Created in 1864, Pima County includes a large portion of southern Arizona acquired from Mexico by the
Gadsden Purchase of 1854. Pima County has purchased thousands of acres of open space and ranches to preserve and
protect the stunning landscapes and historic and cultural sites. The County’s population has grown from 395 in 1820
to an estimated population of 1,042,475 in 2019, according to the Arizona Office of Economic Opportunity. The
County has a vibrant multicultural diversity. A major commercial and academic hub, Pima County is home to Tucson,
the second largest city in Arizona. Although the County has five incorporated cities and towns, more than a third of
the population lives outside of any incorporated cities or towns.



A five-member Board of Supervisors is responsible for implementing the County’s governmental and administrative
affairs. Each member is elected from a designated district to serve a four-year term. The chairman is selected by the
Board from among its members. The Board is responsible for establishing the policies of the County, which provide
guidance to the various County constitutional officers and departments. The Board has the legal authority and
responsibility to establish spending limits and approve the budgets of all County departments, and also sets the amount
of taxes to be levied. The Board appoints a County Administrator who is responsible for the general administrative
and overall operations of the various departments of the County. The County has several other elected officials
including the Assessor, County Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff, Clerk of the Superior Court, the Constables,
Superintendent of Schools, Treasurer, and Judges for the Superior Courts, Juvenile Courts, and Justice Courts.

Pima County includes in its financial statements all funds, agencies, boards, commissions, and authorities for which
the Pima County Board of Supervisors is financially accountable. As the primary government, Pima County is
financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and either it is able to
impose its will on that organization or a potential exists for that organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on, Pima County. Additionally, the County may be financially accountable if an
organization is fiscally dependent on the County.

Pima County offers a wide variety of governmental services that are organized into the following functional areas:

e General Government Services primarily provides internal administrative and support services to County
departments directly serving the public. The departments comprising this function include the Analytics &
Data Governance; Assessor; Board of Supervisors; Clerk of the Board; County Administrator; Elections;
Facilities Management; Finance and Risk Management; Fleet Services; General Government Services
Administration; Human Resources; Information Technology; Non Departmental; Office of Emergency
Management & Homeland Security; Procurement; Recorder; Treasurer; and Wireless Integrated Network.

e Community Resources provides educational, cultural, social, economic development and recreational
programs to the public. The departments in this functional area are Attractions and Tourism;
Communications Office; Community and Economic Development Administration; Community
Development and Neighborhood Conservation; Community Services, Employment and Training; County
Free Library; Grants Management and Innovation; Kino Sports Complex; Rocking K South Community
Facilities District; School Superintendent; and the Stadium District.

e Justice and Law Enforcement provides public safety, felony and misdemeanor investigation and prosecution,
and services for victims, witnesses, and those needing fiduciary assistance. Services are also provided in the
areas of indigent defense, civil representation, correctional housing, and juvenile detention. The departments
within this area are the Clerk of the Superior Court; Constables; County Attorney; Justice Courts; Juvenile
Court; Public Defense Services; Sheriff; and Superior Court.

e Health Services provides various public health, sanitation, and animal control services, as well as medical
assistance to indigents. The component departments are Behavioral Health; Health; Medical Examiner; and
Pima Animal Care.

e Public Works provides construction, operations, and maintenance services related to the County’s
infrastructure and related planning and environmental issues. The departments within this area are Capital
Projects; Development Services; Environmental Quality; Natural Resources, Parks and Recreation; Office of
Sustainability and Conservation; Public Works Administration; Regional Flood Control District; Regional
Wastewater Reclamation; and Transportation.

Pima County is responsible for reporting the financial activities of its component units. These units are either
discretely presented or blended. Although they are separate legal entities, blended component units are substantially
a part of the County’s financial activities and are combined with data for the County.



The County’s component units include the following:

e The Pima County Stadium District, the Regional Flood Control District, the Library District, the Rocking K
South Community Facilities District, and the Improvement and Other Districts are reported as blended
component units in special revenue funds in the accompanying financial statements.

e  The Southwestern Fair Commission is reported as a separate component unit (discrete presentation) in the
accompanying financial statements.

Additional information on the legally separate entities and the blended component units can be found in the notes to
the financial statements (see Note 1).

The County also has various independently governed school districts, irrigation districts, fire districts, a health district
(Ajo-Lukeville), and other entities for which the County is not financially accountable. These entities include the
Industrial Development Authority, Pima Association of Governments, Pima Council on Aging, the Workforce
Investment Board, Regional Transportation Authority, and Sun Corridor, Inc. The financial statements of such
districts and entities are not included in the accompanying financial statements except to reflect amounts held in a
fiduciary capacity by the County Treasurer.

Following receipt of the County Administrator’s Recommended Budget and public discussion of the Recommended
Budget, the Board of Supervisors historically adopts a budget in June. A budget must be adopted on or before the
first Monday in August. The Adopted Budget sets a ceiling on expenditures that may be incurred for the County as a
whole. This annual budget serves as the foundation for Pima County’s financial planning and control. Pima County
has implemented a program-oriented presentation of its budget. All departments are budgeted on a cost unit/object
line item basis. Departments may modify line item amounts within their own budgets provided the total program
budgeted amount remains unchanged. Changes to the adopted budget that require a transfer between funds are
evaluated by the County Administrator prior to recommendation of approval to the Board of Supervisors. Should the
County Administrator recommend the change to the Board of Supervisors, the recommendation will be considered at
a regularly scheduled, open meeting of the Board.

On an annual basis, the County Administrator’s office prepares a five-year Capital Improvement Plan and a one-year
Capital Improvement Budget.

Economic Outlook

Pima County’s major employers are the University of Arizona, Raytheon Missile Systems, State of Arizona, and
Davis-Monthan Air Force Base. Major manufacturers include Ventana Medical Systems, IBM, Caterpillar, and
several aerospace and aircraft companies including Raytheon Missile Systems, Bombardier Aerospace, Sargent
Aerospace and Defense, and Honeywell Aerospace. Employment by industry is led by government; educational and
health services; trade, transportation and utilities; professional and business services; and leisure and hospitality. The
Pima County unemployment rate remained steady at 4.5% in 2018, after reaching a peak of 9.3% in 2010. The decline
in Pima County’s unemployment rate has been slightly less than the decrease in the national unemployment rate,
which was 9.6% in 2010 and has fallen to 3.9% in 2018. Nearly half of Pima County’s population is in the prime
working age range of 18 to 54.

A sunny, mild, dry climate with an average temperature of 71°F and a unique desert location help promote travel and
tourism as a major industry in Pima County. Spending by visitors generates sales in lodging, food services, recreation,
transportation, and retail businesses. These sales support jobs for Pima County residents and contribute tax revenues
to local and state governments. According to recent research data released by the Arizona Office of Tourism, Pima
County direct travel spending generated approximately $3.02 billion (12.4% of Arizona direct travel spending) in
2018. This direct travel spending generated 24,670 direct jobs, $752 million in direct earnings and $209 million in
local and state tax revenues. Unlike other industries, taxes generated by travel industry spending are paid by visitors
rather than residents. These visitors bring new money into Pima County’s economy and generate revenue in the
County. Some of the best world-class attractions in Arizona are found in Pima County, such as the Arizona-Sonora



Desert Museum and the Pima Air and Space Museum. There are several signature events that draw many tourists to
the area and have a significant economic impact on the County, including the following:

e Thearea’s largest annual event is the two-week Tucson Gem, Mineral and Fossil Showcase, the largest event
of its kind in the world, which attracts an estimated 50,000 people to Tucson and has an estimated economic
impact of $120 million in direct spending and nearly $11 million in sales, bed, and rental car tax revenues.

e The annual El Tour de Tucson is Southern Arizona’s largest bicycling event, attracting more than 9,000
cyclists and 30,000 spectators. El Tour’s annual economic impact is estimated to be $17 to $25 million on
ride weekend alone and $65 to $175 million year-round.

Please refer to the MD&A beginning on page 15 for additional information regarding the County’s economic outlook.

Long-term Financial Planning

Pima Prospers is Pima County’s ten-year comprehensive plan establishing a vision and overarching principles for the
County in areas such as land use, physical infrastructure, human infrastructure, and economic development. The
County’s annual budget, capital improvement plan, and debt management strategies are aligned with this
comprehensive plan. Pima Prospers, including the planning for its financial impacts, can be found at
WWW.pimaprospers.com.

Pima County’s Economic Development Plan is a shorter term plan focusing on the County’s future actions to help
create new jobs, protect our existing jobs, improve transportation, promote tourism, and enhance relationships with
our economic partners. Regional infrastructure investment is a significant component of the County’s Economic
Development Plan. Some of these economic development projects and financing can be seen in the Capital
Improvement Plan and Debt Management sections below.

Capital Improvement Plan

The Adopted Budget for fiscal year 2019-2020 includes $202.1 million for its Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).
Under this plan, five departments comprise 89% of the total CIP budget as follows:

e  Transportation, with a budget of $53.1 million

e Regional Wastewater Reclamation, with a budget of $48.0 million
e Facilities Management, with a budget of $41.2 million

e Information Technology, with a budget of $19.8 million

e Regional Flood Control District, with a budget of $19.0 million

Transportation - The Department of Transportation projects are funded by highway user revenues, vehicle license
tax revenues and from funding received from the Pima County Regional Transportation Authority, a taxing
entity distinct from Pima County. Transportation has four major projects included in the fiscal year 2019-2020
budget:

e Valencia Road/Wade Road to Ajo Highway is budgeted for $10.2 million

e Broadway Blvd., Euclid to Country Club is budgeted for $9.7 million

e Valencia Road/Houghton to Old Spanish Trail is budgeted for $9.0 million

e Arterial/Collector — Pavement Repair & Rehabilitation is budgeted for $6.0 million


http://www.pimaprospers.com/

Regional Wastewater Reclamation — The Regional Wastewater Reclamation Department (RWRD) projects are
predominantly funded by Sewer Revenue Obligations. RWRD has a total fiscal year 2019-2020 budget of $48.0
million. Major projects include:

e Minor Rehabilitation Projects are budgeted for $10.0 million
e  Twin Peaks — Blue Bonnet Road Gravity Sewer project is budgeted for $6.0 million
e Anamox Treatment Process project is budgeted for $4.3 million

e Tres Rios WRF Biogas Cleaning and Utilization project is budgeted for $4.2 million

Facilities Management —Facilities Management has active projects with a total fiscal year 2019-2020 budget of
$41.2 million. Major projects include:

e Historic Courthouse — Tenant Improvement project is budgeted for $14.6 million
e  Sahuarita Branch Library project is budgeted for $5.7 million

e Defense Services Building — Juvenile Courts project is budgeted for $5.1 million

Information Technology — Information Technology has active projects with a total budget of $19.8 million.
Major projects include:

e  Hyper Converge Server Storage project is budgeted for $12.0 million
e Data Center Switch Replacement project is budgeted for $4.5 million

Regional Flood Control District — The Regional Flood Control District has active projects with a total budget
of $19.0 million. Major projects include:

e CDO Wash North Bank project is budgeted for $3.1 million
e Catalina Ridge Drainage Channel Improvement project is budgeted for $1.8 million
e El Corazon de los Tres Rios del Norte is budgeted for $1.7 million

e Santa Cruz River Maintenance is budgeted for $1.5 million

Debt Management

Bond ratings for Pima County, given by Fitch and Standard & Poor’s, range from AA- to AAA. Pima County
maintains a sound financial profile, with healthy operating reserves while its debt burden is manageable and debt
repayment is rapid.

Pima County continues to utilize debt authorized by Pima County voters in elections from 1997, 2004 and 2014. At
June 30, 2019, $37.4 million from the November 4, 1997 election for Street and Highway Revenue is the only
authorization that remains unissued. The County issues Certificates of Participation for building construction and
Sewer Revenue Obligations to fund the construction and improvement of the County’s wastewater conveyance
systems and treatment facilities.

Bond sales and debt issuances anticipated for fiscal year 2019-2020 include $45 million of Sewer Obligations, and
$61 million of Certificates of Participation.

The County’s conservative debt management principles play a critical role in the decision regarding when to issue
new debt. The County has set an aggressive debt repayment schedule, with 100 percent retired at or before 15 years.



The state constitution sets a cap on general obligation debt at 15 percent of the County’s net secondary assessed
valuation. In fiscal year 2018-2019, the constitutional debt limit was $1.3 billion. The actual bonded indebtedness
was $227 million, far below the constitutional debt limit.

Please refer to the MD&A beginning on page 15 and Note 7 beginning on page 66 for specific details on debt issuances,
defeasances, and refundings.

Expenditure Limitation

Pima County, like all counties and cities in Arizona, is subject to numerous budgetary and related legal requirements.
Article 9, Section 20, of the Arizona Constitution sets limits on the County’s legal budget capacity. In general, the
Board of Supervisors, as the governing body of the County, cannot authorize expenditures from local revenues in
excess of the expenditure limitation determined annually for Pima County by the Arizona Economic Estimates
Commission. The expenditure limitation is determined each year by adjusting the amount of actual payments of local
revenues received by the County during fiscal year 1979-1980 to reflect inflation and subsequent population growth
for the County. Not subject to this limitation are items such as bond proceeds, related debt service, interest earnings,
special voter approved districts, certain highway user revenue funds, federal grant and aid funds, monies received
pursuant to intergovernmental agreements, and state grants which are to be used for specific purposes. As in previous
years, the County’s expenditures for fiscal year 2018-2019 are expected to be under the limit of $576.6 million.

Single Audit

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the County is required to ensure adequate internal controls are
in place to comply with applicable laws and regulations related to administration of these programs. This internal
control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management of Pima County. Animportant part of management’s
periodic evaluation is having the County’s federal financial assistance programs audited annually under the federal
Single Audit Act.

As a part of the County’s Single Audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure,
including that portion related to federal financial assistance programs and whether the County has complied with
applicable laws and regulations.

A complete Single Audit report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 can be found at:

http://www.pima.gov/finance/reports.shtml

The Single Audit for Pima County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was not complete at the time of publication
of this CAFR.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, Pima County
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Pima County, Arizona, for its comprehensive annual financial
report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Pima County has received this prestigious award for thirty-
three years from fiscal years ended June 30, 1984 through 2018, except for fiscal years ended June 30, 1990 and June
30, 1999, due to missing the filing deadline. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the County had to
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR that satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable program requirements.


http://www.pima.gov/finance/reports.shtml

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is valid for a period of one year only. We believe
that our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Pima County also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its fiscal year 2018-2019 budget
document. This was the twentieth consecutive year that Pima County has achieved this award. To qualify for the
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, Pima County’s budget had to be judged proficient as a policy document, a
financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.

Acknowledgments
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FINANCIAL SECTION

The Financial Section contains government-wide, combined, combining, and individual
fund financial statements and schedules, which present a financial “overview" of Pima County.



MELANIE M. CHESNEY ARIZONA AUDITOR GENERAL JOSEPH D. MOORE

DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL LINDSEY A. PERRY DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL

Independent auditors’ report

Members of the Arizona State Legislature

The Board of Supervisors of
Pima County, Arizona

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities,
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of Pima County
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of certain departments, one major fund, and the discretely presented component unit, which
account for the following percentages of the assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows,
revenues, and expenses or expenditures of the opinion units affected.

Assets and Liabilities

deferred and deferred Expenses/
Opinion unit/department outflows inflows Revenues expenditures
Government-wide statements
Governmental activities:
Stadium District 1.56% 0.21% 1.49% 0.73%
School Reserve Fund 0.03% 0.15% 0.24% 0.25%
Wireless Integrated Network 0.19% 0.24% 0.36% 0.46%
Self-Insurance Trust 3.17% 2.58% 2.02% 1.79%
Health Benefit Trust 1.41% 0.45% 6.82% 8.12%
Business-type activities:
Regional Wastewater Reclamation Department 98.06% 98.92% 94.37% 94.24%
Development Services 0.50% 0.96% 4.35% 3.90%
Discretely presented component unit:
Southwestern Fair Commission 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Fund statements
Major enterprise fund:
Regional Wastewater Reclamation Department 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Assets and Liabilities

deferred and deferred Expenses/
Opinion unit/department outflows inflows Revenues expenditures
Aggregate remaining fund information:

Stadium District 0.42% 0.29% 0.47% 0.25%
School Reserve Fund 0.08% 0.42% 0.08% 0.10%
Wireless Integrated Network 0.78% 1.91% 0.13% 0.16%
Development Services 1.12% 3.24% 0.37% 0.31%
Self-Insurance Trust 13.16% 20.63% 0.76% 0.61%
Health Benefit Trust 5.83% 3.62% 2.55% 2.76%

Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions,
insofar as they relate to the amounts included for those entities, are based solely on the other auditors’ reports.
We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the County’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-
type activities, discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information
of the County as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, for the year ended June 30, 2019, the County adopted new
accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement
Obligations. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other matters
Required supplementary information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis on pages
13 through 30, budgetary comparison schedules on pages 95 through 96, schedule of the County’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability—cost-sharing plans on page 97, schedule of changes in the County’s net
pension liability and related ratios—agent plans on pages 98 and 99, and schedule of County pension
contributions on page 100 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, which



consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules
and the introductory and statistical sections listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules are management’s responsibility and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards by us and the other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as
described above, and the reports of the other auditors, the combining and individual fund statements and schedules
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Compliance over the use of Highway User Revenue Fund and other dedicated State transportation revenue monies

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the County failed to
comply with the authorized transportation purposes, insofar as they relate to accounting matters, for Highway
User Revenue Fund monies it received pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 28, Chapter 18, Article 2, and
any other dedicated State transportation revenues it received. However, our audit was not directed primarily
toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures,
other matters may have come to our attention regarding the County’s noncompliance with the authorized
transportation purposes referred to above, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

The communication related to compliance over the use of Highway User Revenue Fund and other dedicated State
transportation revenue monies in the preceding paragraph is intended solely for the information and use of the
members of the Arizona State Legislature, the Board of Supervisors, management, and other responsible parties
within the County and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will issue our report on our consideration of the County’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters at a future date. The purpose of that report is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Lindsey Perry
Auditor General

December 17, 2019
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Pima County, Arizona
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Our discussion and analysis of the County’s financial performance provides an overview of the County’s financial
activities for the year ended June 30, 2019. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter, which begins on
page 1 and the County’s basic financial statements, which begin on page 31. All dollar amounts are expressed in
thousands (000°s) unless otherwise noted.

Financial Highlights

e The County restated the prior year’s total net position to $1,946,575 due to a change in accounting principle
for the implementation of GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This resulted in
a $1,449 decrease in net position for the Business-type Activities and in turn, total net position for the County.
For additional information refer to page 51, Note 2, Change in Accounting Principle. The comparisons to
prior year net position within this discussion and analysis will be based on these restated amounts.

e The County’s total net position increased $126,342; an increase of $59,622 when compared to the prior year’s
restated change in net position of $66,720; primarily due to a decrease in net pension and other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) liabilities of $81,775, resulting from increased contributions to the pension
plans and favorable changes to the actuarial assumptions used to calculate the future liabilities estimates. For
additional information on the pension and OPEB liabilities, please refer to Note 10, Pensions and Other
Postemployment Benefits starting on page 73.

e The County issued $25,000 in Transportation Revenue Bonds to fund various street and highways
improvements, $21,245 in Sewer Revenue Obligations to finance the construction, expansion, and
improvement of sewer treatment facilities and conveyance systems, and $20,940 in Certificates of
Participation to fund the expansion and improvement of sports fields and facilities for the County’s
Stadium District.

e The County’s primary sources of revenue come from property taxes, charges for services, state shared taxes,
and grants and contributions as displayed below:

Revenue Sources
(in millions)

Investment Other
earnings $41.6(3.7%)
State-shared taxes $16.6(1.5%) Charges for services

$155.3 (14.0%) $259.4 (23.4%)

Operating grants &
contributions
$131.5(11.9%)

Capital grants &
contributions
$41.3(3.7%)

Property taxes
$463.5(41.8%)
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The composition of the County’s total net position at June 30, 2019, $2,072,917, is illustrated in the following
chart.

Composition of Net Position, as of June 30, 2019

$2,500,000 $2,235,459
_
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1.000,000
$500,000 $217,901
$-
$(500,000)
Net investment in Restricted net Tinrestricteamer
capital assets position olon

Governmental Activities total net position at June 30, 2019, is $1,232,521, representing an increase of
$89,111 (7.8%) from the prior fiscal year’s net position, primarily due to a $76,300 decrease in net pension
liabilities. Business-type Activities total net position of $840,396, increased by $35,782 (4.4%) in the current
fiscal year, primarily due to a decrease of $35,757 in outstanding liabilities for sewer revenue obligations,
bonds, and loans from debt payments made during the year in the Regional Wastewater Reclamation (RWR)
enterprise fund.

Comparative Total Net Position
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e  The current fiscal year’s General Fund unassigned fund balance of $101,990 is a decrease of $6,835 (6.3%)
from $108,825 in the prior fiscal year. The unassigned fund balance comprises 93.2% of the total fund
balance of $109,398. Refer to the analysis of the General Fund provided on page 25 for additional details
about the fund’s financial activities during the year.

General Fund - Unassigned Fund Balance
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Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic financial statements. The
County's basic financial statements consist of three components: (1) Government-wide Statements, (2) Fund
Statements, and (3) Notes to the Financial Statements. Required supplementary information is included in addition to
the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of County finances
in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all County assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, and net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.
All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation or sick leave).

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) in contrast to other functions that are intended to
recover all or a portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the County include general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, health, welfare,
culture and recreation, and education and economic opportunity. The business-type activities of the County include:
Regional Wastewater Reclamation (RWR), Development Services, and the County’s downtown parking garages.

The Southwestern Fair Commission is presented as a discretely presented component unit and is included in the basic
financial statements. The Commission, which operates the County Fairgrounds and annual Pima County Fair, is a
legally separate entity for which the County is financially accountable.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 31-33.

Fund financial statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance with applicable state statutes and Federal
Office of Management and Budget budgeting guidelines. All of the funds can be divided into three categories: (1)
governmental funds, (2) proprietary funds, and (3) fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
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fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as well as on balances of
expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the
County’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains sixteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances for the General, Capital Projects, and Debt Service funds, which are reported as major
funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 34-37. The combining statements for non-
major governmental funds can be found on pages 102-105.

Proprietary funds are maintained in two ways. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for
sewer systems maintenance and operation, real estate-related development services, and parking garage operations.
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County’s
various functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for employee health and health related benefits,
risk management, automotive fleet maintenance and operations, telecommunications, wireless, and information
technology network infrastructure. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-
type functions, all of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources of these
services have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The RWR Enterprise Fund is considered to be a major fund of the County. Data from the other enterprise
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Similarly, the County’s internal service funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary funds financial statements. Individual fund data for the other
enterprise and internal service funds are provided in the form of combining statements.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 38-41. The combining statements for other
enterprise and internal service funds can be found on pages 121-128.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the County’s programs.

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 42-43.

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be found on pages 44-94.

Required Supplementary Information (RSI) is presented concerning the County’s General Fund budgetary
schedule and the schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability for Cost Sharing Plans,
the Schedule of Changes in the County’s Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios for Agent Pension Plans, and the
Schedule of County Pension Contributions. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 95-101.

Combining Statements and Other Schedules referred to earlier provide information for non-major governmental,
enterprise, internal service, and fiduciary funds and are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages
102-132.
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position over time. An
analysis of the results of operations is also useful. The schedule below identifies variances in the results of operations.

Schedule of Results of Operations
and Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018 Variance
Charges for services $ 259,361 $ 254,803 $ 4,558
Operating grants and contributions 131,487 131,222 265
Capital grants and contributions 41,329 34,196 7,133
Total program revenues 432,177 420,221 11,956
Total general revenues and transfers 676,975 668,992 7,983
Total program and general revenues 1,109,152 1,089,213 19,939
Total expenses 982,810 1,021,044 (38,234)
Change in net position $ 126,342 $ 68,169 $ 58,173

Total program revenues increased by $11,956, mainly due to a $7,133 increase in capital grants and contributions and
a $4,558 increase in charges for services revenues. The increase in capital grants and contributions resulted from
increases in contributions from developers to the County for road assets in the governmental activities, and
sewage conveyance assets in the business-type activities. Total expenses decreased by $38,234, primarily due to
decreases of $25,437 and $15,058 in general government and public safety expenses, respectively, within
governmental activities. These variances in combination with the $7,983 increase in total general revenues and
transfers resulted in a $58,173 increase in the change in net position, to $126,342.

An explanation of each of these changes is discussed further in the following governmental and business-type activities
sections.
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The graph presented below illustrates at a summary level the changes in the elements of the Statement of Net Position
for the County at June 30, 2019, and June 30, 2018.

Summary of Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Total Net Position

s $1,000,000  $2,000,000  $3,000,000  $4,000,000  $5,000,000

Total Assets _ $3,925,395

| $3,968,621

M $148984

Deferred Outflows of Resources
| $149,931 MFY19 L{FY18

Total Liabilities $1,906,283

| $2,121,070
M $95,179
Deferred Inflows of Resources | $49,458
s I — $2,072,917
Total Net Position | $1,.946,575

*Net position for fiscal year 2018 was restated due to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 83

A general discussion of significant variances between fiscal years follows. For a more detailed discussion, please see
the governmental activities and business-type activities sections immediately following this section.

The total of County assets at June 30, 2019, was $3,925,395, a decrease of $43,226 (1.1%) from the prior year, while
total liabilities decreased significantly by $214,787 (10.1%) from the prior year, ending at a balance of $1,906,283.
Deferred outflows of resources decreased slightly by $947 (0.6%), while deferred inflows of resources nearly doubled
with an increase of $45,721 (92.4%) from the prior year, ending at a balance of $95,179.

The result of these changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources was
an increase in net position of $126,342 (6.5%), to $2,072,917 in the current fiscal year, from the restated net position
of $1,946,575 in the prior fiscal year.

The largest portion of the County’s net position is reflected in its net investment in capital assets (i.e., land, buildings,
infrastructure, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. At June 30, 2019, net
investment in capital assets totaled $2,235,459, an increase of $96,930 (4.5%) from the prior year, due to the increase
of $65,354 (4.5%) for governmental activities and the increase of $31,576 (4.6%) in net investment in capital assets
for business-type activities. The County uses a portion of these capital assets to provide services to its citizens, with
the other portion available to its citizens for use; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the County’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

Resources subject to external restrictions on how they may be used comprise the restricted net position of $217,901,
which is a decrease of $65,640 (23.2%) from the prior year and represents approximately 10.5% of total net position.
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The following schedule presents, on a comparative basis, both governmental activities and business-type activities
within the Statement of Net Position.

Schedule of Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
At June 30, 2019 and 2018

|
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

FY2019 FY2018 Variance FY2019 FY2018  Variance FY2019 FY2018  Variance

Current and other assets $ 586483 $ 620056 § (34573) | § 184479 § 195914  §(11435) | § 770962 $ 816970 § (46,008)
Capital assets (net):
Land, buildings, equipment,
infrastructure & other assets 1,925,694 1,918,766 6,928 1208739 1232885 (4146) | 3154433 3,151,651 2,782
Total assets 2512171 2,539,822 (27,645) 1413218 1428799  (15581) | 3925395 3968621 (43,226)

Deferred outflows of resources

Pension and OPEB 121,465 121311 154 5,237 5,086 151 126,702 126,397 305
Deferred charges on refunding 5,703 8,003 (2,300) 1201 15,531 (3,460) 17,174 23534 (5,760)
Asset retirement obligations 4508 4508 4508 4508
Total deferred outflows of resources 127,168 129314 (2,146) 21816 20,617 1,199 148,984 149931 (947)
Current and other liabilities 67,404 69,707 (2,303) 14,313 23534 (9222) 81,717 93,241 (11,524)
Long-term liabilities 1,249,593 1,410,156 (160,563) 574973 617673 (42,700) | 1824566 2,027,829  (203.263)
Total liabilities 1,316,997 1479863 (162,866) 589,286 641,007 (51921) | 1906283 2,121,070  (214,187)
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension and OPEB 89,827 45863 43964 5,352 3595 1,757 95,179 49,458 45,721
Total deferred inflows of resources 89,827 45,863 43,964 5,352 3595 1,757 95,179 49,458 45,721
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,517 465 1452111 65,354 717,994 686,418 31576 | 2235459 2138529 96,930
Restricted 150,534 221,652 (71,118) 67,367 61,889 5478 217901 283,541 (65,640)
Unrestricted (deficit) (435,478) (530,353) 94 875 55,035 56,307 (1212) (380,443)  (474,046) 93,603
Total net position $ 1232521 § 1143410 § 89111 | § 840396 § 804614 § 35782 | $2072917 $1,948024  § 124893

Analysis of Net Position for Governmental Activities

The current and other assets total of $586,483 in the current fiscal year is a decrease of $34,573 (5.6%) under the prior
year total of $621,056. This decrease is primarily due to an overall decrease of $23,248 in the cash and cash
equivalents mainly from the $25,047 decrease in the Capital Projects Fund from increased spending of bond and COPs
proceeds and a $13,256 decrease in Other Governmental Funds primarily from the spending down of the prior year’s
property tax revenues in the Transportation Fund. These decreases are partially offset by increases in cash and cash
equivalents of $8,571 in the Other Internal Service Fund within the Internal Service Funds, and $4,508 in the Other
Special Revenue Fund within the Other Governmental Funds. The increases in these funds are the result of additional
transfers in from other County funds compared to the prior fiscal year for future information technology hardware and
software purchases in the Other Internal Service Fund and future repairs and maintenance on County buildings in the
Other Special Revenue Fund.

Total liabilities decreased $162,866 (11.0%) to $1,316,997 due to a $160,563 decrease in long-term liabilities resulting
from a $76,084 decrease in pension and OPEB liabilities and a net decrease of $82,410 in outstanding bonds and
COPs. The Arizona State Retirement System and the Elected Official Retirement Plan had the most significant
decreases in pension liabilities with decreases of $40,199 and $25,983, respectively. As previously discussed, the
decreases in these liabilities are the result of increased contribution rates paid by the County to these retirement plans

19



or its employees and favorable changes in the assumptions used by actuaries to calculate the estimated future liabilities.
The decreases in outstanding debt associated with general obligation bonds, transportation revenue bonds, and COPs
are the result of current year payments on these debts combined with new debts being issued for lesser dollar amounts
compared to the prior year.

The increase of $43,964 (95.9%) in deferred inflows of resources is due to the deferred inflows in pensions and OPEB.
This variance in deferred inflows is due to the increased contributions made to the retirement plans and changes in
assumptions in actuarial estimates related to the net pension liabilities mentioned above.

These changes resulted in an overall increase of $89,111 (7.8%) in the current year’s governmental activities total net
position to $1,232,521.

Analysis of Net Position for Business-type Activities

Total assets of $1,413,218 in the current fiscal year decreased by $15,581 (1.1%) from the prior year total of
$1,428,799, resulting from a $11,435 (5.8%) decrease in current and other assets and a $4,146 (0.3%) decrease in
capital assets. The decrease in current and other assets is primarily from an $11,469 decrease in the current
portion of cash and cash equivalents in RWR due to the cash in-substance defeasance of $11,860 of outstanding
bonds and obligations in the current year. The decrease in capital assets is the result of increased accumulated
depreciation due to the amount of depreciation expense recognized for existing assets in the current year, partially
offset by an increase in sewage and conveyance assets in the RWR fund which moved out of the construction in
progress classification as projects were completed in the current year.

Total liabilities decreased $51,921 (8.1%) in the current year to $641,207, primarily due to a net decrease of $35,200
in outstanding bonds, obligations, and loan in the RWR fund and a $5,691 decrease resulting from changes in actuarial
estimates related to the net pension liability for the Arizona State Retirement System plan to which the County
contributes for its employees within the business-type activities.

Total deferred outflows of resources in the current year totaled $21,816, increased slightly by $1,199 (5.8%) due to
the implementation of GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, which resulted in a deferred
outflow in the current year of $4,508. This was partially offset by a decrease of $3,460 in the deferred outflows for
deferred charges on refunding that are the result of debt refundings completed in prior years.

The changes in total assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources resulted in a total
net position of $840,396, an increase of $35,782 (4.4%).
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Governmental Activities

The following table shows details of the changes in net position for governmental activities:

Governmental Activities
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
Variance

FY2019 FY2018 Amount Percent

Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 67,779 $ 67,380 $ 399 0.6%
Operating grants and contributions 131,487 131,222 265 0.2%
Capital grants and contributions 30,361 26,842 3,519 13.1%
Total program revenues 229,627 225,444 4,183 1.9%

General revenues:
Property taxes 463,547 476,365 (12,818) -2.7%
State-shared taxes 155,281 147,635 7,646 5.2%
Investment earnings 12,328 5,549 6,779 122.2%
Other general revenues 40,557 36,452 4,105 11.3%
Total general revenues 671,713 666,001 5,712 0.9%
Total revenues 901,340 891,445 9,895 1.1%

Expenses:
General government 254,241 279,678 (25,437) -9.1%
Public safety 199,402 214,460 (15,058) -7.0%
Highways and streets 111,826 110,159 1,667 1.5%
Sanitation 2,798 2,683 115 4.3%
Health 39,658 38,186 1,472 3.9%
Welfare 95,737 94,567 1,170 1.2%
Culture and recreation 62,513 65,827 (3,314) -5.0%
Education and economic opportunity 42,810 43,492 (682) -1.6%
Amortization (6,551) (7,806) 1,255 -16.1%
Interest on long-term debt 21,650 23,049 (1,399) -6.1%
Total expenses 824,084 864,295 (40,211) -4.7%
Excess before transfers 77,256 27,150 50,106 184.6%
Transfers in 11,855 25,393 (13,538) -53.3%
Change in net position 89,111 52,543 36,568 69.6%
Beginning net position 1,143,410 1,090,867 52,543 4.8%
Ending net position $ 1232521 $ 1143410 $ 89,111 7.8%
Revenues

Total revenues of $901,340 increased $9,895 (1.1%) from the prior year, primarily due to an increase of $5,712 in
total general revenues from increased State-shared tax revenues and increased investment earnings from better
market returns on investments compared to the prior year. These increases are complemented by a $3,519 increase in
program revenues primarily from additional capital grants and contributions received from developers as previously
discussed.
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The chart below presents general and program revenues, as a percentage to total revenues. The amount provided from
each revenue source for governmental activities, as a percentage to total revenue for governmental activities, has not
changed significantly from the prior fiscal year. Property taxes, state-shared taxes, and operating grants account for
approximately 83.2% of the County’s revenues.

General and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

Property taxes
51.4%

/ State-shared
taxes
Capital grants & 17.2%
contributions
3.4%
Investment Other general
earnings Operating grants  Charges for revenue
1.4% 14.6% services 4.5%
7.5%
Expenses

Total expenses decreased $40,211 (4.7%) from the prior year, primarily due to decreases of $25,437 (9.1%) in general
government expenses and $15,058 (7.0%) in public safety expenses. These decreases are due to the significant
reduction in the net pension long-term liabilities discussed previously. The reduction in these liabilities due to
increased contributions to the retirement plans and favorable changes in actuarial assumptions used to estimate future
liabilities resulted in a $59,650 decrease in pension expenses within general government and a $23,281 decrease in
pension expenses within public safety.

The decreases within general government are partially offset by a decrease in the capitalization of general government
assets compared to the prior year, resulting in an increase of expenses totaling $27,118 and an increase of $9,140
from the Elections and Recorder departments to fund the cost of the FY19 Primary and General elections.

The decreases within public safety are partially offset by a decrease in the capitalization of public safety

assets compared to the prior year, resulting in an increase of expenses totaling $4,198 and increases in salaries and
purchases of law enforcement supplies in the Sheriff’s department totaling $2,739.
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The following chart presents expenses by function as a percentage to total expenses, excluding amortizations. The
amount of each expense by function as a percentage to total expenses, excluding amortizations, has not changed
significantly from the prior fiscal year. General government and public safety account for over half of the County’s
total expenses with a total of 54.6%.

Expenses by Function - Governmental Activities
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Business-type Activities

Business-type activities, which are composed exclusively of enterprise funds, are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. The following schedule shows changes in the net
position for business-type activities.

Business-type Activities
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
Variance
FYy2019 FYy2018 Amount Percent
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 191,582 $ 187,423 $ 4,159 2.2%
Capital grants and contributions 10,968 7,354 3,614 49.1%
Total program revenues 202,550 194,777 7,773 4.0%
General revenues:
Investment earnings 4,224 2,228 1,996 89.6%
Other general revenues 1,038 763 275 36.0%
Total general revenues 5,262 2,991 2,271 75.9%
Total revenues 207,812 197,768 10,044 5.1%
Expenses:
Regional Wastewater Reclamation 149,576 148,405 1,171 0.8%
Development Services 6,187 5,523 664 12.0%
Parking Garages 2,963 2,821 142 5.0%
Total expenses 158,726 156,749 1,977 1.3%
Excess before transfers 49,086 41,019 8,067 19.7%
Transfers out (11,855) (25,393) 13,538 -53.3%
Change in net position 37,231 15,626 21,605 138.3%
Beginning net position, as restated* 803,165 788,988 14,177 1.8%
Ending net position $ 840,396 $ 804,614 $ 35,782 4.4%
*Beginning net position as restated July 1, 2018, due to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 83

Revenues

Total revenues for business-type activities increased $10,044 (5.1%), due to the increase of $2,997 (1.8%) in
charges for services in the RWR Fund, resulting from an increase in sewer users as a result of new housing
developments and an increase of $3,614 (49.1%) in capital grants and contributions of sewer conveyance assets
constructed by developers and accepted by the County in the RWR Fund for continuous maintenance and operations.
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Expenses

Total expenses for the business-type activities remained relatively flat with an increase of $1,977 (1.3%), primarily
due to an increase of $1,171 (0.8%) in the RWR Fund. The net amount of transfers decreased by $13,538 (53.3%)),
primarily due to an increase of $19,433 of transfers into the RWR Fund from the Capital Projects Fund.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements and
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Governmental Funds

The County’s general government functions are accounted for in the General, Capital Projects, Debt Service, and
Special Revenue funds. Included in these funds are special districts governed by the Board of Supervisors (i.e. Flood
Control, Library, Stadium, Improvement, and Rocking K South Community Facilities Districts) acting as the Board
of Directors for each district. The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
County's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County.

Property tax revenues for the General Fund increased $1,805 (0.5%), reflecting the net impact of higher property
valuations and a lower property tax rate. Intergovernmental revenues increased $15,996 (10.1%), primarily due to
increases in the State-shared sales tax and State-shared vehicle license tax associated with a continued gradual
recovery in the local economy. Charges for services decreased $2,215 (5.4%), mostly from a decrease in
administration overhead charges recovered from other County funds because of lower central administrative support
costs. Overall, revenues for the General Fund increased by $15,502 (2.8%) and totaled $570,312 for the current year.

General fund expenditures totaled $517,017, an increase of $15,343 (3.1%) from the prior year, primarily due to:

e Anincrease of $9,140 in general government expenditures from the Elections and Recorder departments to
fund the cost of the FY19 Primary and General elections, the Juvenile Court and Superior Court adult
probation funding, and a 2.5% general salary increase for all employees and an additional 1% salary increase
for employees earning $50,000 or less in FY19.

e An increase of $2,739 in public safety expenditures primarily due to purchases of new law enforcement
equipment, supplies, and salary increases as a result of Sheriff department salary decompression adjustments.

e Anincrease of $1,313 in welfare expenditures from the Behavioral Health department for adult and juvenile
correctional health care.

Transfers out totaled $59,580, an increase of $13,496 (29.3%) over the prior year, primarily from the $7,220 transfer
out to the Other Internal Service Fund related to the IT — Computer Hardware, Software, and Storage Internal Service
Fund and the $4,623 transfer out to the Capital Projects Fund related to the Northwest County Service Center, Defense
Services Building — Juvenile Courts and Gap Housing and Service Building.

The $15,502 increase in revenues, the $15,343 increase in expenditures, and a total net increase of $15,709 in other
financing uses yielded a decrease of $15,550 in net change in fund balance, which ended the year at $109,398.
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Budget and Actual Comparison for the General Fund

Overall, actual revenues were higher than budgeted revenues by $15,801, primarily due to the higher than budgeted
State-shared tax revenue collections mentioned above and actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures
by $68,318. Actual expenditures for the General Fund were less than budgeted, primarily because the County did not
need to spend $46,745 of the amount budgeted for contingencies within General government — County Administration.

No variances between the budget and actual amounts at the departmental level were significant enough to affect the
County’s ability to provide future services.

Capital Projects Fund

The County’s Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources that are restricted or assigned for capital
outlays to acquire or construct capital assets.

Total revenues of $24,482 for the Capital Projects Fund represent an increase of $4,715 (23.9%) from the prior year,
primarily due to an increase in Intergovernmental revenues from the Regional Transit Authority for the Valencia Road
project and the Pima Association of Governments for the Cortaro Farms Road project.

Total capital outlay expenditures of $118,275 in the current year is an increase of $39,905 (50.9%) over the prior year,
primarily due to a $32,584 increase in highways and streets expenditures for the Transportation department. This is
the result of the spending down of the one-time Transportation property tax revenues collected in the prior year for
road improvements.

The Capital Projects Fund’s other financing sources of $45,940 represents the current year’s issuance of $25,000 of
Transportation Revenue Bonds Series 2019 to finance a variety of transportation projects and the issuance of $20,940
of Certificates of Participation (COPs) Series 2019 primarily to finance the costs to expand and improve the sports
fields and facilities at the County’s Kino Sports Complex.

Transfers out totaled $29,934, an increase of $29,363 from the prior year, mainly due to the increase of $19,498 in
COPs funding transferred to the RWR fund in the current year for improvements to the sewer conveyance system.

Transfers in totaled $46,954, an increase of $11,891 (33.9%) over the prior year’s total of $35,063. The increase is
primarily due to a $7,465 increase of transfers in from the Transportation Fund for pavement preservation projects
and a $4,623 increase of transfers in from the General Fund for various County facility projects.

The above detailed financial activities yielded a decrease of $27,040 in the Capital Projects Fund’s net change in fund
balance, which ended the year at $119,341.

Debt Service Fund

This major fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for the payment of principal and interest of long-term
debt.

Revenues for the Debt Service Fund increased $1,704 (3.0%), primarily as a result of higher property valuations,
despite the secondary property tax rate decrease of $0.01 compared to the prior year.

Expenditures for the Debt Service Fund increased by $30,777 (26.3%) primarily due to an increase in principal and
interest payments on two COPs issuances in the prior year that did not have any payments due in that year. As a
result, current year principal payments toward outstanding liabilities for COPs increased by $29,270 compared to the
prior year.

Premiums on bonds and COPs increased to $6,709, consisting of $2,832 and $3,877 from the issuance of
Transportation revenue bonds (HURF) Series 2019 and COPS Series 2019, respectively. Only $3,149 of this total
pertained to the Debt Service Fund, while the remaining $3,560 pertained to the Capital Projects Fund.

The $1,704 increase in revenues, $30,777 increase in expenditures, and $29,037 increase in other financing sources
yielded an increase in fund balance of $1,841, which ended the year at $6,845.
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Major Proprietary Fund

The County’s Regional Wastewater Reclamation Enterprise (RWR) Fund is a major enterprise fund.

Significant changes in the Fund’s net position during the fiscal year include an increase in the sewer utility service
and sewer connection revenues of $3,992, an increase in non-operating interest income of $1,907, an increase in
transfers in of $19,498, and a beginning net position restatement of $1,449 for the implementation of GASB Statement
No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.

The increase in the sewer utility service and sewer connection revenues is largely attributable to a growing population
and a strong housing market including the construction of many new housing developments. The continued strong
financial markets contribute to the higher investment earnings received during the year.

The increase in transfers in is due to the usage of the remaining proceeds of the Certificates of Participation Series
2018B in the Capital Projects Fund, which are transferred into the RWR fund to pay for the ongoing sewage
conveyance projects currently under construction.

The beginning net position decreased by $1,449 as a result of the restatement and net position increased by $36,584
in the current fiscal year, resulting in a total net position of $818,964 at fiscal year-end.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The County’s investment in capital assets consists of land, buildings and improvements, sewage conveyance systems,
infrastructure, equipment, and construction in progress.

Capital assets for the governmental and business-type activities are presented below to illustrate changes from the
prior year:

Governmental and Business-type Activities

Capital Assets
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

FY2019 | Fy2018 [ Variance | Fy2019 | FY2018 | Variance | FY2009 | Fy2018 | Variance
Land $ 549193 $ 537388 $ 11805 |$ 15978 $ 15472 $ 506 | $ 565171 $ 552,860 $ 12311
Construction in progress 65,289 42,895 22,394 47,540 74158 (26618) | 112,829 117,053 (4,224)
Buildings and improvements 591,126 597,429 (6,303) | 526,424 551,802 (25378) | 1,117550 1,149,231 (31,681)
Infrastructure 618,993 635594  (16,601) 618,993 635,594 (16,601)
Sewage conveyance systems 552,458 505,220 47,238 552,458 505,220 47,238
Equipment 101,093 105,460 (4,367) 86,339 86,233 106 187432 191,693 (4,261)
Total $1925694 $1918766 $ 6928 | $1228739 $1232885 $ (4,146)|$3154433 $3151651 $ 2782

The County’s capital assets total is $3,154,433 in the current year, a decrease of approximately 0.1% or $2,782 from
the prior year’s total of $3,151,651. Significant changes in capital assets of Governmental Activities and Business-
type Activities are discussed in further detail in the following sections.
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Governmental Activities

The current year’s total assets of $1,925,694 is a net increase of $6,928 from the prior year. The $22,394 increase in
construction in progress is primarily due to an increase of $17,942 for the large Kino Sports Complex expansion
project. The $16,601 decrease in infrastructure is primarily due to normal depreciation expense in the current year
and contributions of road assets to other governments.

Some of the more significant projects capitalized in the fiscal year include:

The restoration and renovations project for the Historic Courthouse project totaling $9,831,071.

The Aerospace Parkway expansion from Nogales Highway to Raytheon Parkway project totaling $9,123.
The collector and arterial roadways improvements project totaling $8,315.

The Flowing Wells Library expansion project totaling $3,213.

Business-type Activities

Capital assets of business-type activities decreased by $4,146 (0.3%), due to decreases of $26,618 (35.9%) in
construction in progress and $25,378 (4.6%) in buildings and improvements, partially offset by an increase of
$47,238 (9.3%) in sewage conveyance systems, resulting from the factors detailed below.

Capital assets for the RWR fund decreased by $3,343 (0.3%) compared to the prior year, mainly due to decreases of
$26,618 (35.9%) in construction in progress and $24,802 (4.6%) in buildings and improvements, partially offset by a
$47,238 increase in sewage conveyance systems. The decrease in construction in progress is the result of more sewage
conveyance system projects being completed in the current year compared to the prior year, which also lead to the
increase previously mentioned in sewage and conveyance systems. The decrease in buildings and improvements is
due to normal depreciation expense in the current year.

Additional information regarding capital assets activity can be found in Note 5 of the financial statements, Capital
Assets, on pages 58-59.

Long-term Debt

Significant, comparative long-term debt entered into during the last two fiscal years is presented below:

Long-Term Debt Issued Within Fiscal Year
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
2019 2018
Transportation Revenue Bonds $ 25,000 $ 11,000
Sewer System Revenue Obligations 21,245 38,205
Certificates of Participation (COPs) 20,940 62,660
Installment note payable 170
Total $ 67,355 $ 111,865

During the year, the County issued Transportation Revenue Bonds Series 2019 for $25,000 to finance various street
and highway improvements.

The County also issued Sewer Revenue Obligations Series 2019 for $21,245 to expand and improve the County’s
sewer treatment facilities and conveyance systems.

In addition, the County issued Certificates of Participation (COPs) Series 2019 for $20,940 to finance the expansion
and improvements of sports fields and facilities at the County’s Kino Sports Complex.

Further, the County’s Clerk of the Superior Court acquired computer equipment during the fiscal year under an
installment contract for a total purchase price of $170.

28



The most recent ratings for Pima County’s bonds, COPs, and obligations are:

Credit Ratings

|  Standard & Poor's | Fitch Ratings
Rating Date Rating Date
General Obligation Bonds AA March-2019 AAA March-2019
Certificates of Participation (COPSs) AA- March-2019 AA March-2019
Transportation Revenue Bonds AA March-2019 AA March-2019
Sewer System Revenue Obligations AA March-2019 AA- March-2019

Pima County’s efforts in maintaining a strong budget reserve over the past several years has contributed, in part, to
the County earning a General Obligation Bond Rating of AAA from Fitch Ratings, a national bond ratings company
that rates Pima County debt issuances. The AA ratings for the Certificates of Participation (COPSs), Transportation
Revenue bonds, and Sewer Revenue obligations also reflect the County’s ability to maintain a sound financial profile.

The State of Arizona Constitution limits the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to
6.0% of its net assessed valuation without voter approval. However, Pima County has voter approval for general
obligation debt up to 15.0%. The County’s outstanding general obligation bonds amount of $227,335 at the end of the
current fiscal year is significantly below the current debt limitation of $1,354,525.

Additional information regarding the County’s debt can be found in Note 7 of the financial statements, Long-term
Liabilities, on pages 62-70.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

The current fiscal year 2019-20 budget is based largely on the County’s response to a set of unique challenges from a
variety of outside sources. Primary among these is the decision by the Arizona Legislature to balance the State Budget
by continuing to transfer $88 million of fiscal year 2019-20 state costs to Pima County. These additional costs imposed
by the state continue to cause significant uncertainties in the development of the County budget and impact all of Pima
County’s existing service priorities and programs, including law enforcement, healthcare and economic development.
Recognizing this, the budget that was adopted by the Board of Supervisors for fiscal year 2019-20 is primarily a
“maintenance of effort” budget, which will sustain the County’s existing service priorities. The following discussion
identifies other significant activities that are expected to impact the County in fiscal year 2019-20.

State Budget Cost Shifts

In attempts to balance the State Budget, the Governor and Legislature continue to transfer significant amounts of state
costs to the 15 counties throughout the state. The total of these cost transfers to Pima County is $88 million for fiscal
year 2019-20, or nearly 25% of Pima County’s primary property tax levy.

Property Taxes

The fiscal year 2019-20 Adopted Budget includes a $0.0700 decrease in the County’s regular primary property tax
rate for General Government Revenues, a $0.0200 increase in the County Library District’s secondary property tax
rate, and no change in either the Regional Flood Control District secondary property tax rate or the County Debt
Service secondary property tax rate from the fiscal year 2018-19 rates. The total property tax rate for Pima County
(excluding the State mandated Fire District Assistance Tax) decreased from $5.6084 to $5.5584 per $100 of net taxable
value, a net decrease of $0.0500.

State Shared Revenues

State shared sales tax revenue is projected to increase by $4.975 million in fiscal year 2019-20. This increase reflects
a gradual recovery in the local economy and continued statewide economic growth.
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Employee Benefits Costs

Over the years, Pima County has continued to change and upgrade its benefits package for employees. Over time, the
cost to provide these benefits has steadily increased. As a comparison, the actual cost to the County for employee
benefits in fiscal year 2003-04 totaled $65 million whereas the budgeted benefit costs in fiscal year 2019-20 totals
over $161 million; resulting in an increase that is more than double the fiscal year 2003-04 amount. A significant
portion of this increase is due to higher cost of Arizona State, Public Safety and other retirement system contributions,
plus other benefit costs. Fiscal Year 2019-20 aggregate benefits will increase by $12.8 million over fiscal year 2018-
19. The County will have to absorb these increases in the face of other budgetary challenges.

Employee Medical Insurance Benefits Costs

Prior to fiscal year 2013-14, Pima County purchased medical insurance for its employees from an independent
provider. Over the five years prior to fiscal year 2013-14, the County’s employee medical insurance premiums
increased by an average of 15 to 20 percent yearly. In order to control the rate of increase of employee medical
insurance costs, the County moved to a self-insured medical plan run by a third-party administrator starting in fiscal
year 2013-14. Under this new model, year-to-year medical insurance costs have increased in the range of 5 to 7 percent
annually. For fiscal year 2019-20 both employer and employee medical premium costs will not increase from fiscal
year 2018-19 rates. It is anticipated that the rate of medical cost increases will continue the trend of being better
controlled in future fiscal years.

Rainy Day Funds

Maintaining a budget reserve has given the County a favorable bond rating, which in turn has yielded substantial
savings from lower interest payments on County debt. The reserve has also enabled the County to minimize the
negative fiscal impacts of a variety of unforeseen events over which the County has had little or no control. The
General Fund Reserve for fiscal year 2019-20 totals $41.9 million. This reserve represents 7.2% of projected revenues
for fiscal year 2019-20. The reserve is in the middle of the range of reserves recommended by the Government Finance
Officers Association. If this reserve is not spent, it will represent the base ending fund balance for fiscal year 2019-
20.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances. Any questions concerning

the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
Finance and Risk Management Department, 130 W. Congress, 6™ Floor, Tucson, AZ, 85701.
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Primary Government

Exhibit A-1

Governmental ~ Business-type Component Unit
Activities Activities Total SW Fair Commission
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 501,347 $ 74,818 $ 576,165 $ 1,144
Property taxes receivable (net) 10,907 10,907
Interest receivable 681 221 902
Internal balances an 17
Due from other governments 40,565 11 40,576
Accounts receivable (net) 7,107 18,663 25,770 8
Inventories 2,280 3,018 5,298 35
Prepaids 15,527 504 16,031 75
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,119 87,133 88,252 1,002
Loans receivable 3,665 3,665
Net other postemployment benefits asset 3,302 94 3,396
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 549,193 15,978 565,171
Construction in progress 65,289 47,540 112,829
Capital assets being depreciated (net):
Buildings and improvements 591,126 526,424 1,117,550 5,725
Sewage conveyance system 552,458 552,458
Equipment 101,093 86,339 187,432 452
Infrastructure 618,993 618,993
Total assets 2,512,177 1,413,218 3,925,395 8,441
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension and other postemployment benefits 121,465 5,237 126,702
Deferred charge on debt refunding 5,703 12,071 17,774
Asset retirement obligations 4,508 4,508
Total deferred outflows of resources 127,168 21,816 148,984
Liabilities
Accounts payable 49,323 12,916 62,239 153
Interest payable 10 10
Contract retentions 2,061 2,061
Employee compensation 9,040 650 9,690
Due to other governments 235 98 333
Deposits and rebates 1,305 1,305 83
Unearned revenue 5,430 649 6,079 54
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 129,139 60,368 189,507
Due in more than one year 1,120,454 514,605 1,635,059 175
Total liabilities 1,316,997 589,286 1,906,283 465
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension and other postemployment benefits 89,827 5,352 95,179
Total deferred inflows of resources 89,827 5,352 95,179
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,517,465 717,994 2,235,459 6,177
Restricted for:
Facilities, justice, library, community
development, and tax stabilization 63,103 63,103
Highways and streets 13,337 13,337
Debt service 41,762 41,762
Capital projects 34,549 6,447 40,996
Regional wastewater 19,158 19,158
Healthcare 39,545 39,545
Unrestricted (deficit) (435,478) 55,035 (380,443) 1,799
Total net position $ 1232521 $ 840,396 $ 2,072,917 $ 7,976

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 254,241 $ 26,789 $ 23328 $ 5
Public safety 199,402 13,975 5,650 1,071
Highways and streets 111,826 7,908 66,461 28,153
Sanitation 2,798 1,281
Health 39,658 14,576 10,764 110
Welfare 95,737 252
Culture and recreation 62,513 3,702 740 941
Education and economic opportunity 42,810 577 23,263 81
Amortization - unallocated (6,551)
Interest on long-term debt 21,650
Total governmental activities 824,084 67,779 131,487 30,361
Business-type activities:
Regional Wastewater Reclamation 149,576 180,118 10,968
Development Services 6,187 8,859
Parking Garages 2,963 2,605
Total business-type activities 158,726 191,582 10,968
Total primary government $ 982,810 $ 259,361 $ 131,487 $ 41,329
Component unit:
Southwestern Fair Commission 7,380 7,091 119
Total component unit $ 7,380 $ 7,091 $ 119

General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for regional flood control district
Property taxes, levied for library district
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Property taxes, levied for improvement and other districts
Hotel/motel taxes, levied for sports facility and tourism
Other taxes, levied for stadium district
Unrestricted share of state sales tax
Unrestricted share of state vehicle license tax
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Interest and penalties on delinquent taxes
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year, as restated
Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Exhibit A - 2

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component Unit
Activities Activities Total SW Fair Commission Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
$ (204,119) $ (204,119) General government
(178,706) (178,706) Public safety
(9,304) (9,304) Highways and streets
(1,517) (1,517) Sanitation

(14,208) (14,208) Health

(95,485) (95,485) Welfare

(57,130) (57,130) Culture and recreation

(18,889) (18,889) Education and economic opportunity

6,551 6,551 Amortization - unallocated

(21,650) (21,650) Interest on long-term debt

(594,457) (594,457) Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:
$ 41,510 41,510 Regional Wastewater Reclamation
2,672 2,672 Development Services
(358) (358) Parking Garages
43,824 43,824 Total business-type activities
(594,457) 43,824 (550,633) Total primary government
Component unit:
$ (170) Southwestern Fair Commission
$ (170) Total component unit
General revenues:

338,049 338,049 Property taxes, levied for general purposes
25,165 25,165 Property taxes, levied for regional flood control district
42,788 42,788 Property taxes, levied for library district
57,295 57,295 Property taxes, levied for debt service

250 250 Property taxes, levied for improvement & other districts
7,192 7,192 Hotel/motel taxes, levied for sports facility and tourism
1,544 1,544 Other taxes, levied for stadium district

124,999 124,999 Unrestricted share of state sales tax

30,282 30,282 Unrestricted share of state vehicle license tax
4,877 4,877 Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
5,624 5,624 Interest and penalties on delinquent taxes

12,328 4,224 16,552 21 Investment earnings

21,320 1,038 22,358 189 Miscellaneous

11,855 (11,855) Transfers

683,568 (6,593) 676,975 210 Total general revenues and transfers
89,111 37,231 126,342 40 Change in net position

1,143,410 803,165 1,946,575 7,936 Net position at beginning of year, as restated
$ 1,232,521 $ 840,396 $ 2,072,917 $ 7,976 Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable (net)
Interest receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Accounts receivable
Interfund receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenditures
Loan receivable
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Contract retentions
Employee compensation
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Deposits and rebates
Interfund payable
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - intergovernmental
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Unavailable revenue - other

Total deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit A - 3
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Capital Projects Debt Service Funds Funds
$ 106,940 $ 133,548 $ 6,394 $ 96,488 $ 343,370
7,955 1,345 1,607 10,907
200 96 136 167 599
4,041 778 4,819
22,272 1,537 16,750 40,559
1,931 108 4,121 6,160
3,100 3,100
1,405 1,405
4,787 1,090 5,877
1,221 813 1,631 3,665
1,074 45 1,119
$ 152,447 $ 137,176 $ 7,875 $ 124,082 $ 421,580
$ 17,457 $ 13,441 $ 12,010 $ 42,908
10 10
2,004 2,004
6,626 2,061 8,687
617 20 4,199 4,836
17 185 202
225 1,074 6 1,305
3,100 3,100
437 28 4,964 5,429
25,379 16,567 26,535 68,481
9,930 392 6,299 16,621
6,097 $ 1,030 1,252 8,379
1,643 876 875 3,394
17,670 1,268 1,030 8,426 28,394
43,049 17,835 1,030 34,961 96,875
7,287 2,540 9,827
78,107 77,122 155,229
3,993 3,993
121 41,234 6,845 10,578 58,778
101,990 (5,112) 96,878
109,398 119,341 6,845 89,121 324,705
$ 152,447 $ 137,176 $ 7,875 $ 124,082 $ 421,580

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit A - 4
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

(in thousands)

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 324,705

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.
Governmental capital assets $ 3,122,243
Less accumulated depreciation (1,251,262) 1,870,981

Some liabilities, such as pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liabilities and
bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are
not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds payable (333,488)
Certificates of participation payable (124,567)
Notes and leases payable (724)
Pollution remediation (55)
Landfill closure liability (10,111)
Net pension/OPEB liability (696,694)
Compensated absences liability (32,906) (1,198,545)

Net OPEB assets held in trust for future benefits are not available resources
for county operations and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Net OPEB asset 3,272

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB and deferred charges
on debt refunding are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported
in the governmental funds.

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB 119,443
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB (88,100)
Deferred outflows for bond refunding 5,703 37,046

Some receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds. 28,394

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain

activities to individual funds. The assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,

and deferred inflows of resources of the internal service funds are included in

governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 166,668

Net position of governmental activities $ 1,232,521

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit A - 5
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Capital Projects Debt Service Funds Funds
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 343,841 $ 57,304 $ 68,460 $ 469,605
Licenses and permits 3,263 6,998 10,261
Intergovernmental 173,772 $ 14,736 16 138,154 326,678
Charges for services 39,099 6,358 15,714 61,171
Fines and forfeits 3,281 3,723 7,004
Investment earnings 1,788 3,079 873 1,824 7,564
Miscellaneous 5,268 309 5 15,398 20,980
Total revenues 570,312 24,482 58,198 250,271 903,263
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 232,484 36,907 269,391
Public safety 149,571 23,624 173,195
Highways and streets 39,953 39,953
Sanitation 1,289 1,116 2,405
Health 4,492 38,417 42,909
Welfare 95,907 95,907
Culture and recreation 18,610 45,393 64,003
Education and economic opportunity 13,666 28,679 42,345
Capital outlay 118,275 118,275
Debt Service - principal 944 128,350 618 129,912
- interest 54 18,674 2 18,730
- miscellaneous 620 620
Total expenditures 517,017 118,275 147,644 214,709 997,645
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 53,295 (93,793) (89,446) 35,562 (94,382)
Other financing sources (uses):
Installment note 170 170
Premium on bonds 3,560 3,149 6,709
Face amount of long-term debt issued 45,940 45,940
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 8 233 1,435 1,676
Transfers in 2,183 46,954 88,138 32,269 169,544
Transfers (out) (59,580) (29,934) (72,944) (162,458)
Total other financing sources (uses) (57,389) 66,753 91,287 (39,070) 61,581
Net change in fund balances (4,094) (27,040) 1,841 (3,508) (32,801)
Fund balances at beginning of year 113,492 146,381 5,004 92,629 357,506
Fund balances at end of year $ 109,398 $ 119,341 $ 6,845 $ 89,121 $ 324,705

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for capital assets $
Less current year depreciation

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Repayment of the principal of debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred

and amortized in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Face amount of long-term debt issued
Premium on bonds

Installment note

Debt service - principal payments
Amortization of premiums/discounts
Amortization of deferred charge on refunding

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activities do not represent

the collection of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
revenues in the governmental funds. Also, the collection of some revenues in

the governmental funds exceeded revenues reported in the Statement of Activities.

Donations of capital assets
Intergovernmental
Property tax revenues
Other

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.

Change in compensated absences
Change in landfill liability

Change in pollution remediation liability
Net book value of capital asset disposals

County pension/OPEB contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental
funds when made. However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources

in the Statement of Net Position because the reported net pension/OPEB liability is
measured a year before the County's report date. Pension/OPEB expense, which is

the change in the net pension/OPEB liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB is reported in the Statement of Activities.

Pension/OPEB contributions
Pension/OPEB expense

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities to individual funds. The incorporation of the external activities of
these funds, and the elimination of profit/loss generated by primary government
customers results in net revenue (expense) for governmental activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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(77,642)

(45,940)
(6,709)
(170)
129,912
6,551
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(434)
150
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(133)
181
(6,505)

58,603
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Exhibit A -6

(32,801)
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Exhibit A- 7

Governmental
Regional Other Total Activities-
Wastewater Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Reclamation Funds Funds Funds
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 66,723 $ 8,095 $ 74,818 $ 157,977
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 31,226 31,226
Interest receivable 208 13 221 82
Due from other funds 32 32
Due from other governments 7 4 11 6
Accounts receivable 18,509 154 18,663 947
Inventory 3,018 3,018 875
Prepaid expense 492 12 504 9,650
Total current assets 120,183 8,310 128,493 169,537
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 55,907 55,907
Net other postemployment benefits asset 81 13 94 30
Capital assets:
Land 14,210 1,768 15,978 449
Buildings and improvements 744,826 27,608 772,434 23,235
Sewage conveyance system 902,237 902,237
Equipment 163,917 2,152 166,069 68,733
Less accumulated depreciation (662,843) (12,676) (675,519) (37,712)
Construction in progress 47,540 47,540 8
Total capital assets (net) 1,209,887 18,852 1,228,739 54,713
Total noncurrent assets 1,265,875 18,865 1,284,740 54,743
Total assets 1,386,058 27,175 1,413,233 224,280
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension/OPEB 4,542 695 5,237 2,022
Deferred charge on refunding 12,071 12,071
Asset retirement obligations 4,508 4,508
Total deferred outflows of resources 21,121 695 21,816 2,022
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 12,558 358 12,916 6,415
Contracts retention 57
Employee compensation 564 86 650 353
Due to other funds 15 15
Due to other governments 12 86 98 33
Unearned revenue 648 1 649 1
Current compensated absences 1,873 287 2,160 608
Current sewer revenue bonds and obligations payable 57,637 57,637
Current portion of wastewater loans payable 571 571
Current portion reported but unpaid losses 3,945
Current portion incurred but not reported losses 6,769
Total current liabilities 73,878 818 74,696 18,181
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences payable 657 143 800 225
Contracts and notes payable 887 887
Sewer revenue bonds and obligations payable 468,394 468,394
Wastewater loans payable 2,427 2,427
Reported but unpaid losses 14,288
Incurred but not reported losses 13,607
Net pension/OPEB liability 31,170 4,768 35,938 11,606
Asset retirement obligations 6,159 6,159
Total noncurrent liabilities 509,694 4,911 514,605 39,726
Total liabilities 583,572 5,729 589,301 57,907
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension/OPEB 4,643 709 5,352 1,727
Total deferred inflows of resources 4,643 709 5,352 1,727
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 699,142 18,852 717,994 54,713
Restricted for:
Debt service 41,762 41,762
Capital projects 6,447 6,447
Healthcare 30,785
Regional wastewater reclamation 19,158 19,158
Unrestricted 52,455 2,580 55,035 81,170
Total net position $ 818,964 $ 21,432 $ 840,396 $ 166,668

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Employee compensation
Operating supplies and services
Utilities
Sludge and refuse disposal
Repair and maintenance
Incurred losses
Insurance premiums
General and administrative
Consultants and professional services
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment earnings
Sewer connection fees
Interest expense
Debt issuance cost
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Loss on debt defeasance

Total nonoperating revenues

Income before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Change in net position

Net position at beginning of year, as restated

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit A - 8
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
Governmental
Regional Other Total Activities-
Wastewater Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Reclamation Funds Funds Funds
$ 165,417 $ 11,464 $ 176,881 $ 121,210
1,010 28 1,038 4,530
166,427 11,492 177,919 125,740
26,154 4,208 30,362 13,801
7,387 122 7,509 13,632
6,505 6,505
1,731 1,731
7,653 242 7,895 3,228
62,748
10,154
14,490 3,431 17,921 11,182
12,169 343 12,512 6,693
55,576 799 56,375 6,775
131,665 9,145 140,810 128,213
34,762 2,347 37,109 (2,473)
4,014 210 4,224 4,726
14,701 14,701
(16,599) (16,599)
(325) (325)
(722) (5) (727) (39)
(265) (265)
804 205 1,009 4,687
35,566 2,552 38,118 2,214
10,968 10,968 5
19,512 19,512 7,863
(29,462) (1,905) (31,367) (3,094)
36,584 647 37,231 6,988
782,380 20,785 803,165 159,680
$ 818,964 $ 21,432 $ 840,396 $ 166,668

Net position at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from other funds for goods and services provided
Cash received from customers for goods and services provided
Cash received from miscellaneous operations
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to other funds for goods and services
Cash payments for incurred losses
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash transfers in from other funds
Cash transfers out to other funds
Loans with other funds

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on bonds and loans
Interest paid on bonds and loans
Proceeds from issuance of sewer revenue obligations, including premium
Sewer connection fees
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Purchase and construction of capital assets
Loss on debt defeasance

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on cash and investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Exhibit A - 9
(in thousands)
Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds Governmental
Regional Other Total Activities-
Wastewater Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Reclamation Funds Funds Funds
$ 121,210
$ 164,166 $ 11,470 $ 175,636
1,010 1,010 3,968
(38,819) (1,931) (40,750) (39,027)
(14,494) (2,216) (16,710) (5,884)
(63,696)
(29,914) (4,693) (34,607) (12,321)
81,949 2,630 84,579 4,250
19,433 19,433 7,788
(29,387) (1,905) (31,292) (3,118)
(95) 9 (104) 4
(10,049) (1,914) (11,963) 4,666
(57,002) (57,002)
(24,533) (24,533)
24,974 24,974
14,698 14,698
25 25 371
(47,898) @) (47,899) (9,081)
(265) (265)
(90,001) (1) (90,002) (8,710)
4,015 209 4,224 4,722
4,015 209 4,224 4,722
(14,086) 924 (13,162) 4,928
167,942 7,171 175,113 153,049
$ 153,856 $ 8,095 $ 161,951 $ 157,977

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

(continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit A - 9.1
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

(continued)
Business-Type Activities

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net Regional Other Total Activities-
cash provided by operating activities Wastewater Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service
Reclamation Funds Funds Funds
Operating income (loss) $ 34,762 $ 2,347 $ 37,109 $ (2,473)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 55,576 799 56,375 6,775
Changes in assets and deferred outflows of resources:
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable (1,247) (13) (1,260) (563)
Due from other governments 4) (@] 8)
Inventory and other assets (327) (327) 61
Prepaid expense 77) ?3) (80) 1,043
Net OPEB asset 46 6 52 14
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows of resources:
Pension/OPEB plans (129) (22) (151) 1,475
Asset retirement obligations 67 67
Changes in liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 502 (40) 462 (1,157)
Due to other governments (3,678) 34 (3,644) 33
Reported but unpaid losses (3,544)
Incurred but not reported losses 2,596
Net Pension/OPEB liability (4,956) (735) (5,691) (823)
Asset retirement obligations 135 135
Other liabilities (244) 27 (217) 159
Increase in deferred inflows of resources:
Pension/OPEB plans 1,523 234 1,757 654
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 81,949 $ 2,630 $ 84,579 $ 4,250

Noncash investing, capital, and noncapital financing activities during the year ended June 30, 2019:

Regional Wastewater Reclamation Enterprise Fund received developer-built conveyance systems with an estimated fair value of $10,879. The
Fund also received donated land property with an estimated value of $88. These contributions were recorded as an increase in capital assets and
capital contributions.

Regional Wastewater Reclamation Enterprise Fund disposed of capital assets with a net book value of $747.

Regional Wastewater Reclamation Enterprise Fund received a transfer of capital asset with a net book value of $79 from Internal Service Funds,
and transferred out a capital asset with a net book value of $75 to Internal Service Funds.

Regional Wastewater Reclamation Enterprise Fund retired expired Connection Flow-Through Sewer Credit Agreements totaling $1. This
transaction was recorded as a decrease to unearned revenue and an increase in capital contributions.

Other Enterprise Funds donated a fully depreciated capital asset with an original cost of $18.
Other Enterprise Funds disposed of capital assets with a net book value of $4.
Internal Service Funds sold capital assets with a net book value of $303.

Internal Service Funds disposed of capital assets with a net book value of $101 and transferred out to General Government capital assets with a net
book value of $6.

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit A - 10
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Investment
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 183,619 $ 73,560
Interest receivable 164
Due from other governments 1,124
Total assets 183,783 74,684
Liabilities
Employee compensation 1,969
Due to other governments 55,362
Deposits and rebates 17,353
Total liabilities $ 74,684
Net position
Held in trust for pool participants $ 183,783

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit A - 11
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Investment
Trust
Funds
Additions
Contributions from participants $ 2,001,232
Total contributions 2,001,232
Investment earnings 5,445
Total investment earnings 5,445
Total additions 2,006,677
Deductions
Distributions to participants 1,995,325
Total deductions 1,995,325
Change in net position 11,352
Net position held in trust July 1, 2018 172,431
Net position held in trust June 30, 2019 $ 183,783

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Pima County’s accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental
units adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset
Retirement Obligations, that addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations
(AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A
government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets
should recognize a liability. The County also implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 88, Certain
Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements, which requires that additional
essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to the financial statements, including unused lines of
credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events
of default with finance-related consequences, significant termination events with finance-related consequences, and
significant subjective acceleration clauses. In addition, the County early implemented the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period, that establishes
accounting requirements for interest incurred before the end of the construction period. Such interest cost includes
all interest that previously was accounted for in accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of GASB
Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30,
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the
cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result,
interest cost incurred before the end of the construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital
asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund.

A. Reporting Entity

The County is a general purpose local government that is governed by a separately elected board of supervisors.
The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the County (the primary government) and its
component units.

Component units are legally separate entities for which the County is considered to be financially accountable.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are so intertwined with the County that they are in
substance part of the County’s operations. Therefore, data from these units is combined with data of the County.
Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported in a separate column in the government-wide
financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the County. Each blended and discretely presented
component unit discussed below has a June 30 year-end.

The following describes the County’s component units:

The Pima County Stadium District, a legally separate entity, was created in 1991 when the Board of Supervisors
adopted a resolution to create the Stadium District to manage Kino Sports Complex. The District is a tax-levying,
public improvement district and political taxing subdivision of the state of Arizona. The Stadium District, in
conjunction with Pima County government, maintains the fiscal resources of the entire complex including facilities,
grounds, personnel and the various services provided at the venue. Kino Sports Complex, which covers 155 acres,
is the largest professional sports and entertainment venue of its kind in Pima County. The facility hosts youth
athletics, amateur and professional sports, concerts and community events on its fields. The County Board of
Supervisors serves as the Board of Directors and has operational responsibility for the District. Acting in the
capacity of the Board of Directors, the Pima County Board of Supervisors is able to impose its will on the District.
The Board of Directors levies the car rental surcharge rates and the recreation vehicle (RV) park tax for the District.
The District is reported as a special revenue fund (blended component unit) in these financial statements. Complete
financial statements for the District can be obtained from the Pima County Department of Finance and Risk
Management located at 130 West Congress Street, Tucson, Arizona 85701.
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Pima County Library District was established in 1986 when legislation allowed full taxing authority and the
ability to enter into agreements with other jurisdictions for the provision of library services. The Library District
provides and maintains library services for the County’s residents. The Pima County Board of Supervisors is the
Board of Directors and has operational responsibility for the District. The Library District is reported as a special
revenue fund (blended component unit) in these financial statements. Separate financial statements for the District
are not available.

The Pima County Regional Flood Control District was established in 1978. The District is responsible for
floodplain management activities for the unincorporated areas of Pima County (except national forests, parks,
monuments and Native American Nations), the City of South Tucson, and the Town of Sahuarita. The Pima County
Board of Supervisors is the Board of Directors and has operational responsibility for the Flood Control District. The
Regional Flood Control District is reported as a special revenue fund (blended component unit) in these financial
statements. Separate financial statements for the District are not available.

The Pima County Improvement & Other Districts (formerly the Pima County Street Lighting Districts) operate
and maintain street lighting for specific regions in areas outside local city jurisdictions and maintenance for the
Hayhook Ranch road improvements. The Pima County Board of Supervisors serves as the Board of Directors and
has operational responsibility for the Districts. The Pima County Improvement & Other Districts are reported as a
special revenue fund in these financial statements and meet substantively the same criteria as blended component
units. Separate financial statements for the Pima County Improvement & Other Districts are not available.

The Rocking K South Community Facilities District is a legally separate entity that is utilized to finance the
design and construction of arterial and collector roadways, public sewer transmission mains, public regional parks
and any other public infrastructure required for the planned Rocking K South community. The Pima County Board
of Supervisors serves as its Board of Directors and has operational responsibility for the District. The Rocking K
South Community Facilities District is reported as a special revenue fund (blended component unit) in these
financial statements. Separate financial statements for the District are not available.

The Southwestern Fair Commission, Inc. (SFC) is a nonprofit corporation which manages and maintains the
fairgrounds owned by the County and conducts annual fair and other events at the fairgrounds. The Commission’s
members are appointed and can be removed at any time by the Pima County Board of Supervisors. Based on these
factors, and because SFC does not provide services entirely, or almost entirely to the County, but rather to the
general citizenry, SFC is reported as a separate component unit (discrete presentation) in these financial statements.
Complete financial statements for SFC can be obtained from the Pima County Department of Finance and Risk
Management located at 130 West Congress Street, Tucson, Arizona 85701,

Related Organization

The Industrial Authority of Pima County (Authority) is a legally separate entity that was created to promote
economic development and the development of affordable housing. The Authority fulfills its function through the
issuance of tax-exempt bonds. The County Board of Supervisors appoints the Authority’s Board of Directors. The
Authority’s operations are completely separate from the County and the County is not financially accountable for
the Authority. Therefore, the financial activities of the Authority have not been included in the accompanying
financial statements.

45



PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B. Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial statements. The
government-wide statements focus on the County as a whole, while the fund financial statements focus on major
funds. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed and compared between years and
between governments to enhance the information’s usefulness.

Government-wide statements - Provide information about the primary government (the County) and its component
units. The statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities. These statements report the
overall government’s financial activities except for fiduciary activities. The statements also distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the County and between the County and its discretely presented
component units. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes and intergovernmental revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

A statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of
the County’s governmental activities and segment of its business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
The County does not allocate indirect expenses to programs or functions. Program revenues include:

e charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided;
e operating grants and contributions; and
e  capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.

Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated resources and all taxes the
County levies or imposes, are reported as general revenues.

Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements to
minimize the double-counting of internal activities. However, charges for interfund services provided and used are
not eliminated if the prices approximate their external exchange values.

Fund financial statements - Provide information about the County’s funds, including fiduciary funds and blended
component units. Separate statements are presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund categories.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.
Fiduciary funds are aggregated and reported by fund type.

Proprietary fund revenues and expenses are classified as either operating or nonoperating. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from transactions associated with the fund’s principal activity. Accordingly, revenues,
such as user charges, in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values, are operating revenues.
Other revenues result from transactions in which the parties do not exchange equal values and are considered
nonoperating revenues such as connection fees, intergovernmental revenues, along with investment earnings and
revenues ancillary activities generate. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. Other expenses, such as interest expense, are considered nonoperating expenses.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general

government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund revenues are primarily
from property taxes and intergovernmental revenues.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of capital
facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by proprietary funds. Capital Projects Fund revenues
and other financing sources are primarily from intergovernmental, face amount of long-term debt and transfers in.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal and interest. Revenues and other financing sources are primarily from property taxes, proceeds from
refunding debt, and transfers in.

The County reports the following major enterprise fund:

Regional Wastewater Reclamation (RWR) Fund accounts for the management and operation of wastewater
treatment and water pollution control programs. Revenues are primarily from charges for services and connection
fees.

The County also reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds account for fleet maintenance and operation, insurance, and telecommunications services
provided to the County’s departments or to other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Investment Trust Funds account for pooled assets and individual investment accounts the County Treasurer holds
and invests on behalf of other governmental entities.

Agency Funds account for assets the County holds as an agent for the State, cities, towns, and other parties.

C. Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The agency funds are custodial in nature and
do not have a measurement focus but utilize the accrual basis of accounting for reporting its assets and
liabilities. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and donations are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements the
provider imposed have been met.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of grants and general
revenues. Therefore, when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted
resources available to finance the program. The County applies grant resources to such programs before
using general revenues.

Governmental funds in the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when they become both measurable and available. The County recognizes property taxes to be available if
collected within 30 days. In addition, other taxes that are reported as intergovernmental revenues, i.e. state
shared sales tax, highway user revenues and vehicle license tax, recreational vehicle taxes, car rental
surcharges, and hotel excise taxes are also recognized if collected within 30 days. Grant funded
intergovernmental revenues are considered available if collected within 60 days after fiscal year-end.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, compensated absences, pension/OPEB, landfill closure and
post-closure care costs, pollution remediation obligations, and asset retirement obligations, which are recognized
as expenditures to the extent they are due and payable. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuances of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
lease agreements are reported as other financing sources.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D. Cash and Investments

For the statement of cash flows, the County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, cash and investments held by the County Treasurer, investments in the State Treasurer’s Local
Government Investment Pool, and only those highly liquid investments with a maturity of 3 months or less when
purchased. All investments are stated at fair value.

E. Inventories and Prepaids

Inventories in the government-wide and proprietary funds’ financial statements are recorded as assets when
purchased and expensed when consumed.

The County accounts for its inventories in the Wireless Integrated Network Fund using the purchase method.
Inventories of the Wireless Integrated Network Fund consist of spare parts for the fixed network equipment held for
consumption and are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. These inventories are stated at cost using the
average cost method.

Inventories of the Transportation Fund are recorded as assets when purchased and expensed when used. They are
valued at lower of cost or market, cost being determined using the moving average method.

Inventories of RWR, an enterprise fund, are valued at lower of cost or market, cost being determined using the
moving average method.

Inventories of Internal Service Funds are valued at lower of cost or market, cost being determined using the moving
average method.

Prepaid expenses/expenditures are accounted for using the consumption method, except for the School Reserve
Fund reported as an Other Governmental Fund, which uses the purchase method.

F. Property Tax Calendar

The County levies real and personal property taxes on or before the third Monday in August that become due and
payable in two equal installments. The first installment is due on the first day of October and becomes delinquent
after the first business day of November. The second instaliment is due on the first day of March of the next year
and becomes delinquent after the first business day of May. A lien assessed against real and personal property
attaches on the first day of January preceding assessment and levy.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported at actual cost or estimated historical cost if historical records are not available. Donated
assets are reported at acquisition value at the time received.

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts),
depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated
Threshold Method Useful Life

Land All N/A N/A
Land improvements
(Reported in buildings and improvements) All Straight Line 20 - 30 Years
Buildings and improvements $100 Straight Line 10 - 50 Years
Equipment $5 Straight Line 4 - 25 Years
Infrastructure/Sewer conveyance systems $100 Straight Line 10 - 50 Years
Intangible (Reported in land and infrastructure) $100 Straight Line Varies
Software (Reported in equipment) $5,000 Straight Line Varies

Discretely presented component unit:

The Southwestern Fair Commission, Inc. capital assets are reported at actual cost. Depreciation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful life, which range from 3 to 40 years.

H. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

The statement of net position and balance sheet include separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to
future periods that will be recognized as an expense or expenditure in future periods. Deferred inflows of resources
represent an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to future periods and will be recognized as a
revenue in future periods.

I. Postemployment benefits

For purposes of measuring the net pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) assets and liabilities,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB, and pension and
OPEB expense, information about the plans’ fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plans’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

J. Fund Balance Classifications

The governmental funds’ fund balances are reported separately within classifications based on a hierarchy of the
constraints placed on those resources’ use. The classifications are based on the relative strength of the constraints
that control how the specific amounts can be spent. The classifications are nonspendable, restricted, and
unrestricted, which includes committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance classifications.

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in
spendable form, such as inventories, or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Restricted fund
balances are those that have externally imposed restrictions on their usage by creditors (such as through debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations.

The unrestricted fund balance category is composed of committed, assigned, and unassigned resources. Committed

fund balances are self-imposed limitations that the County’s Board of Supervisors, the highest level of decision-
making authority within the County, approved by formal action (ordinance).
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Only the Board can remove or change the constraints placed on committed fund balances. This approval must be
given at a regular supervisory meeting by taking the same type of action it employed to previously commit those
amounts.

Assigned fund balances are resources constrained by the County’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are
neither restricted nor committed. The Board of Supervisors has authorized the County Administrator to make
assignments of resources for a specific purpose. Modifications or rescissions of the constraints can also be removed
by the same action that limited the funds.

The unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all spendable amounts
not reported in the other classifications. Also, deficits in fund balances of the other governmental funds are reported
as unassigned.

When an expenditure is incurred that can be paid from either restricted or unrestricted fund balances, it is the
County’s policy to use restricted fund balance first. For the disbursement of unrestricted fund balances, the County
will use committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts, and lastly unassigned amounts.

K. Investment Earnings

Investment earnings are composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of applicable investments.

L. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences payable consist of annual leave and a calculated amount of sick leave earned by employees
based on services already rendered.

Employees may accumulate up to 240 hours of annual leave depending upon years of service. If an employee has
accumulated annual leave in excess of 240 hours by their anniversary date, the excess hours are converted to sick
leave. Upon termination of employment, all unused annual leave benefits are paid to employees. Accordingly,
annual leave benefits are accrued as a liability in the government-wide and proprietary funds’ financial statements.
A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds’ financial statements only if they have matured,
for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements by fiscal year-end.

Employees may accumulate up to 1,920 hours of sick leave. Generally, sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick
pay and are cumulative but most employees forfeit them upon terminating employment. However, employees who
have accumulated greater than 240 hours of sick leave and are eligible to retire will receive some benefits.
Employees who are eligible to retire from County service into the Arizona State Retirement System, Public Safety
Personnel Retirement System, or Corrections Officer Retirement Plan may request sick leave to be converted to
annual leave on a predetermined conversion basis. An estimate of those retirement payouts is accrued as a liability
in the government-wide and proprietary funds’ financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the
governmental funds’ financial statements under Employee Compensation only if they have matured, for example, as
a result of employee resignations and retirements by fiscal year-end.
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Note 2: Change in Accounting Principle

Net position as of July 1, 2018, has been restated as follows due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 83,
Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. See Note 1 and Note 7 for further information.

Major
Enterprise Business-type
Fund Activities
Net position as previously reported at June 30, 2018 $ 783,829 $ 804,614
Prior period adjustment
Asset retirement obligations (6,024) (6,024)
Deferred outflows - Asset retirement obligations 4,575 4,575
Total prior period adjustment (1,449) (1,449)
Net position as restated, July 1, 2018 $ 782,380 $ 803,165
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Note 3: Cash and Investments

Primary Government

Avrizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the County to invest public monies in the State Treasurer’s investment
pool; obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States or any of the senior debt of its agencies, sponsored
agencies, corporations, sponsored corporations, or instrumentalities; specified state and local government bonds,
notes, and other evidences of indebtedness; interest-earning investments such as savings accounts, certificates of
deposit, and repurchase agreements in eligible depositories; specified commercial paper issued by corporations
organized and doing business in the United States; specified bonds, debentures, notes, and other evidences of
indebtedness that are denominated in United States dollars; and certain open-end and closed-end mutual funds,
including exchange traded funds. In addition, the County Treasurer may invest trust funds in certain fixed income
securities of corporations doing business in the United States or District of Columbia.

Credit risk—The State statutes have the following requirements for credit risk:

1. Commercial paper must be of prime quality and be rated within the top two ratings by a nationally
recognized rating agency.

2. Specified bonds, debentures, notes and other evidence of indebtedness that are denominated in United
States dollars must be rated " A" or better by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies at the
time of purchase.

3. Fixed income securities must carry one of the two highest ratings by Moody’s Investors Service and
Standard and Poor’s rating service. If only one of the above-mentioned services rates the security, it
must carry the highest rating of that service.

Custodial credit risk—Statutes require a pooled collateral program for public deposits and a Statewide Collateral
Pool Administrator (Administrator) in the State Treasurer’s Office. The purpose of the pooled collateral program is
to ensure that governmental entities” public deposits placed in participating depositories are secured with collateral
of 102 percent of the public deposits, less any applicable deposit insurance. An eligible depository may not retain or
accept any public deposit unless it has deposited the required collateral with a qualified escrow agent or the
Administrator. The Administrator manages the pooled collateral program, including reporting on each depository’s
compliance with the program.

Concentration of credit risk—Statutes do not include any requirements for concentration of credit risk.

Interest rate risk—Statutes require that public monies invested in securities and deposits have a maximum maturity
of 5 years. Investments in repurchase agreements must have a maximum maturity of 180 days.

Foreign currency risk—Statutes do not allow foreign investments unless the investment is denominated in United
States dollars.

Deposits—At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the County’s deposits was $67,323, and the bank balance was
$96,301.
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Note 3: Cash and Investments (continued)

Custodial credit risk—Custodial credit risk is the risk that the County will not be able to recover its deposits if a
financial institution fails. The County does not have a formal policy with respect to custodial credit risk. As of June
30, 2019, $1,933 of County’s bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and
uncollateralized.

Investments—At June 30, 2019, the County’s investments consisted of $378,773 invested in marketable securities
and $475,460 invested in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool. Cash from the County and from externally legally
separate governments are pooled to purchase the investments in marketable securities and the State Treasurer’s Pool.
The State Board of Investment provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s pools. The fair value of a participant’s
position in the pool approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares and the participant’s shares are not
identified with specific investments.

Credit risk—Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The County does not have a formal investment policy with respect to credit risk.

At June 30, 2019, credit risk for the County’s investments was as follows:

Standard & Poor's/Moody's Rating

Investment Type Fair Value Not Rated  AAA/Aaa AA/Aa A/IA BBB/Baa
Corporate bonds $ 141,051 $ 27,307 $ 108,748 $ 4,996
Federal agency securities 201,815 $ 5021 196,794
Money market mutual fund 35,907 35,907
State Treasurer's Pool 5 180,667 180,667
State Treasurer's Pool 500 178,065 $ 178,065
State Treasurer's Pool 7 116,728 116,728

Total $ 854233 $ 294,793 $ 221595 $ 224,101 $ 108,748 $ 4,996

Custodial credit risk—For an investment, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the counterparty’s failure,
the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The County has no formal policy with respect to custodial credit risk. Of the County’s $854,233
of investments, $342,866, consisting of the corporate bonds, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank,
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and Federal National Mortgage Association, is uninsured and held by a
counterparty in the County’s name in book entry form.
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Note 3: Cash and Investments (continued)
Concentration of credit risk—The County has no formal policy with respect to limiting the amount the Treasurer
may invest in any one issuer. The County had investments at June 30, 2019 of 5% or more in Federal Home Loan

Bank and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. These investments were 10% and 8%, respectively, of the
County’s total investments.

Interest rate risk—Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect an investment’s
fair value. The County does not have a formal investment policy with respect to interest rate risk.

As of June 30, 2019, the County had the following investments:

Investment Type Amount Weighted Average Maturity
(Years)
State Treasurer Investment Pool 5 $ 180,667 0.09
State Treasurer Investment Pool 500 178,065 2.51
State Treasurer Investment Pool 7 116,728 0.08
Corporate bonds 141,051 1.48
Federal Farm Credit Bank 32,303 1.28
Federal Home Loan Bank 84,227 1.65
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 70,805 3.25
Federal National Mortgage Association 14,480 0.68
Money market mutual fund 35,907 0.08
$ 854,233

A reconciliation of cash, deposits, and investments to amounts shown on the Statements of Net Position follows:

Cash on Amounts of Amounts of
Hand Deposits Investments Total
Cash, deposits and $ 40 $ 67,323 $ 854,233 $ 921,596
investments:
Governmental  Business-Type Investment Agency
Activities Activities Trust Funds Funds Totals

Statement of Net Position
Cash and cash equivalents $ 501,347  $ 74,818 $ 183,619 $ 73560 $ 833,344

Restricted cash and cash 1,119 87,133 88,252
equivalents
Total $ 502,466 $ 161,951 $ 183,619 $ 73560 $ 921,596
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Note 3: Cash and Investments (continued)

County Treasurer’s Investment Pool—Arizona Revised Statutes require community colleges, school districts, and
other local governments to deposit certain public monies with the County Treasurer. The County Treasurer has a
fiduciary responsibility to administer those and the County monies under her stewardship. The County Treasurer
invests, on a pool basis, all monies not specifically invested for a fund or program. In addition, the County
Treasurer determines the fair value of those pooled investments annually at June 30. The County Treasurer’s
Investment Pool is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company and
there is no regulatory oversight of its operations. The structure of the Pool does not provide for shares and the
County has not provided or obtained any legally binding guarantees to support the value of the participants’
investments. The County Treasurer allocates interest earnings to each of the Pool’s participants. Substantially, all
deposits and investments of the County’s primary government are included in the County Treasurer’s investment
pool. Therefore, the deposit and investment risks of the Treasurer’s investment pool are substantially the same as
the County’s deposit and investment risks disclosed above.

The Pool’s assets consist of the following:

Interest
Principal Rates Maturities Fair Value
Corporate bonds $ 143,743  1.38-5.65% 08/19-06/23 $ 141,051
Federal Farm Credit Bank 27,000  1.50-3.00% 12/19-10/21 32,303
Federal Home Loan Bank 73,510 0.88-4.13% 08/19-11/22 84,227
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 93,510 1.40-3.08% 08/20-06/24 70,805
Federal National Mortgage Association 14,496  1.00-1.95% 10/19-11/20 14,480
State Treasurer Investment Pool 5 121,598 N/A N/A 121,598
Deposits 43,285 N/A N/A 42,858
Interest receivable 164 N/A N/A 164
Total assets $ 507,486
Statement of Net Position
Assets held in trust for:
Internal participants $ 451,938
External participants 55,548
Total assets 507,486
Total liabilities
Total net position held in trust $ 507,486
Statement of Changes in Net Position
Total additions $ 5,429,751
Total deductions (5,462,139)
Net increase (32,388)
Net position held in trust:
July 1, 2018 539,874
June 30, 2019 $ 507,486
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Note 3: Cash and Investments (continued)

Fair Value Measurement—The County’s investments at June 30, 2019, categorized within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles, were as follows:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in Quoted prices in

active markets for active markets
identical assets for similar assets
Investment by fair value level Amount (Level 1) (Level 2)

Corporate bonds $ 141,051 $ 136,027 $ 5,024

Federal Farm Credit Bank 32,303 12,159 20,144

Federal Home Loan Bank 84,227 12,028 72,199

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 70,805 70,805

Federal National Mortgage Association 14,480 4,991 9,489
Money market mutual fund 35,907 35,907

Total investments by fair value level $ 378,773 $ 201,112 $ 177,661

The investments categorized as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets
for those investments.

The investments categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted for those
investments in markets that are not active.

The County also had investments of $475,460 in the State Treasurer's investment pools measured at fair value.
Investments in the State Treasurer’s investment pools are valued at the pool's share price multiplied by the number
of shares the County held. The fair value of a participant's position in the pools approximates the value of that
participant's pool shares. The State Board of Investment provides oversight for the State Treasurer's investment
pools.
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Note 4: Fund Balance Classification of the Governmental Funds

The table below details the fund balance categories and classifications:

Fund Balance:

Nonspendable:
Inventory
Prepaid expenditures
Interfund receivable
Permanent fund principal
Total nonspendable

Restricted for:

Community and economic development
Flood Control District
Health
Judicial activities
Law enforcement
Library District
Municipal facilities
Parks and recreation
Pima animal care
Sanitation
School reserve
Streets and highways
Other purposes

Total restricted

Committed to:
Parks and recreation
School reserve
Total committed

Assigned to:

Community and economic development
Debt service reserve
Judicial activities
Health
Law enforcement
Library District
Municipal facilities
Parks and recreation
Sports promotion (Stadium)
Streets and highways
Other purposes
Total assigned

Unassigned:
Total Fund Balance

Other
General Capital Projects  Debt Service Gowvernmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
$ 1405 $ 1,405
$ 4,787 1,090 5,877
2,500 2,500
45 45
7,287 2,540 9,827
$ 1,467 1,515 2,982
7,490 10,929 18,419
8,089 8,089
19,790 19,790
365 5,143 5,508
4,898 15,218 20,116
411 411
367 344 711
1,263 1,769 3,032
75 1,910 1,985
254 254
60,300 11,478 71,778
1471 683 2,154
78,107 77,122 155,229
3,700 3,700
293 293
3,993 3,993
255 1,182 1,437
$ 6,845 6,845
121 121
1,673 1,673
119 119
112 112
25,181 3,498 28,679
2 1,354 1,356
11,931 2,136 14,067
2,835 2,835
920 614 1,534
121 41,234 6,845 10,578 58,778
101,990 (5,112) 96,878
$ 109,398  $ 119341 $ 6845 $ 89,121  $ 324,705
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Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure

Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure

Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Sewage conveyance systems
Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Sewage conveyance systems
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases June 30, 2019
$ 537,388 $ 15,026 $ (3,221) $ 549,193

42,895 81,277 (58,883) 65,289
580,283 96,303 (62,104) 614,482
907,241 23,314 (6,524) 924,031

1,434,752 24,554 (12,917) 1,446,389

226,234 12,970 (9,438) 229,766

2,568,227 60,838 (28,879) 2,600,186

(309,812) (27,055) 3,962 (332,905)

(799,158) (40,497) 12,259 (827,396)

(120,774) (16,865) 8,966 (128,673)
(1,229,744) (84,417) 25,187 (1,288,974)

1,338,483 (23,579) (3,692) 1,311,212
$ 1,918,766 $ 72,724 $ (65,796) $ 1,925,694

Balance Balance

July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases June 30, 2019
$ 15472 $ 506 $ 15,978
74,158 40,377 $ (66,995) 47,540
89,630 40,883 (66,995) 63,518
770,399 2,095 (60) 772,434
839,257 64,995 (2,015) 902,237

155,361 12,001 (1,293) 166,069

1,765,017 79,091 (3,368) 1,840,740

(218,597) (27,415) 2 (246,010)

(334,037) (17,174) 1,432 (349,779)

(69,128) (11,786) 1,184 (79,730)

(621,762) (56,375) 2,618 (675,519)

1,143,255 22,716 (750) 1,165,221
$ 1,232,885 $ 63599 $ (67,745) $ 1,228,739
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Note 5: Capital Assets (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 17,957
Public safety 12,571
Highway and streets 37,369
Sanitation 417
Health 1,356
Welfare 6
Culture and recreation 7,148
Education and economic opportunity 818
Internal service funds 6,775

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 84417
Business-type activities:
Parking Garages $ 799
Regional Wastewater Reclamation Department 55,576

Total business-type activities depreciation expense $ 56,375

Balance Balance
July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases June 30, 2019

Discretely presented component unit:
Southwestern Fair Commission (SFC):
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements $ 10,057 $ 1,130 $ (139) $ 11,048
Equipment 2,633 197 (66) 2,764
Total capital assets being depreciated 12,690 1,327 (205) 13,812
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (4,907) (555) 139 (5,323)
Equipment (2,275) (103) 66 (2,312)
Total accumulated depreciation (7,182) (658) 205 (7,635)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 5,508 669 6,177
SFC capital assets, net $ 5,508 $ 669 $ $ 6,177
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Note 6: Claims, Judgments and Risk Management

Self-Insurance Trust Fund (SIT Fund)

The SIT Fund, an internal service fund, accounts for the financing of the insured risk of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; medical malpractice;
environmental claims; and natural disasters. The Fund is liable for any single general or automobile liability claim
up to $2,500 per occurrence, any workers’ compensation claim up to $1,000 per occurrence, and any single medical
malpractice claim up to $1,000 per occurrence. The County purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of
the self-insurance retention provided by the Fund. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance policy limits in any of
the last three fiscal years. Any current unemployment claims and environmental claims are self-funded.

All of the County’s departments participate in the Fund. Charges are based on actuarial estimates, loss history, and
other factors as appropriate to determine amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims.

At June 30, 2019, claims liabilities for each insurable category are as follows:

Auto liability $ 167
General liability 14,508
Workers' compensation 17,592
Medical malpractice 42
Environmental liability 1,500

$ 33,809

The above amounts, excluding the environmental liability, are reported at their present value using an expected
future investment yield assumption of 2 percent.

Changes in the unpaid claims liability reported in the SIT Fund are as follows:

Current-Year

Claims and
Balance Changes in Claims Balance
Year July 1 Estimates Payments June 30
2017-18 $ 35471 $ 7,139 $ (7553) $ 35057
2018-19 35,057 5,262 (6,510) 33,809

Health Benefits Trust Fund (HBT Fund)

The HBT Fund, an internal service fund, accounts for the financing of the County’s self-insured medical/pharmacy
plan for employees and their dependents. The Fund is responsible for collecting employer and employee premiums
through payroll deductions. The medical benefits are administered by Aetna, and the pharmacy benefits are
administered by CVS Caremark in conjunction with the medical plan.

The plan consists of two options, a High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP) with a Health Savings Account (HSA), or
an HDHP without an HSA. The County purchases commercial stop-loss insurance coverage for claims in excess of
coverage provided by the HBT Fund. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years.
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Note 6: Claims, Judgments and Risk Management (continued)
Claim liabilities are computed using a combination of two actuarial methods: the completion factor approach and

the exposure approach. Accrued actuarial liabilities for the HBT Fund at June 30, 2019, for the HDHP plans are as
follows:

High-Deductible Health Plan:

Medical $ 3,456
Pharmacy 1,344
$ 4,800

Changes in the unpaid claims liabilities reported in the HBT Fund are as follows:

Current-Year

Claims and
Balance Changes in Claims Balance
Year July 1 Estimates Payments June 30
2017-18 $ 4,200 $ 52,892 $ (52592) $ 4,500
2018-19 4,500 57,486 (57,186) 4,800

Litigation

Pima County is a defendant in a number of court actions. In the opinion of County management, the final disposition
of these actions, if unfavorable, will not have a material effect upon the County's financial statements.

Pollution Remediation

The County has estimated and reported an environmental liability of $55 in the government-wide financial
statements for governmental activities (in noncurrent liabilities). Remediation efforts are currently underway at one
County site: EI Camino del Cerro.

Remediation efforts continue at the EI Camino del Cerro site which is approximately bordered by the Santa Cruz
River on the west, Interstate 10 on the east and El Camino del Cerro Road on the south. The groundwater
contamination is suggested to resonate from the municipal and solid waste landfill operated on the site from 1973 to
1977.

The estimated liability was calculated based upon the expected future outlays associated with the estimate of one
pump-and-treat system for one year. There is potential for changes due to increased costs associated with sewage
disposal costs, construction costs for extraction and injection wells, and/or changes in the estimated extent of
contamination.
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Note 7: Long-Term Liabilities

The following schedule details the County’s long-term liability and obligation activities for the year ended June

30, 2019.

Governmental activities:

General obligation bonds
Bonds from direct placements *
Unamortized premium/discount

Total general obligation bonds

Transportation revenue bonds
Unamortized premium/discount

Total transportation revenue bonds

Certificates of participation
Unamortized premium/discount

Total certificates of participation

Capital lease payable

Installment notes from direct borrowing *
Net pension/OPEB liabilities (Note 10)
Reported but unpaid losses (Note 6)

Incurred but not reported losses (Note 6)

Landfill closure and post-closure
care costs (Note 8)

Pollution remediation (Note 6)

Compensated absences payable

Total long-term liabilities

Balance Balance Due within
July 1,2018 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2019 1year
256,595 $ 40570 $ 216,025 $ 43,075
19,395 8,085 11,310 9,350
12,192 2,955 9,237 2,719
288,182 51,610 236,572 55,144
80,330 $ 25,000 14,820 90,510 14,405
5178 2,832 1,604 6,406 1,612
85,508 27,832 16,424 96,916 16,017
161,260 20,940 64,875 117,325 22,535
5,357 3877 1,992 7,242 1,764
166,617 24,817 66,867 124,567 24,299
38 38
2,078 170 1,524 724 622
784,384 76,084 708,300
21,777 180 3,724 18,233 3,945
17,780 3429 833 20,376 6,769
9,978 133 10,111
236 181 55
33,578 21,274 21,113 33,739 22,343
$§ 1410156 § 77835 $§ 238398 § 1249593 § 129,139

* There was a debt disclosure reclassification as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No.88. (See Note 1)
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Business-type activities:

Sewer revenue bonds
Unamortized premium/discount
Total revenue bonds payable

Sewer revenue obligations

Obligations from direct placement™*

Unamortized premium/discount
Total revenue obligations payable

Regional Wastewater Reclamation
Loan from direct borrowing*
Total loan payable

Net pension/OPEB liabilities (Note 10)

Contracts and notes
Compensated absences payable
Asset retirement obligations **

Total long-term liabilities

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Balance Balance Due within
July 1,2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 1 year
$ 2,860 $ 2,860
3 3
2,863 2,863
466,745 $ 21,245 50,835 $ 437,155 $ 44,060
42,325 2,750 39,575 2,825
56,638 4,053 11,390 49,301 10,752
565,708 25,298 64,975 526,031 57,637
3,555 557 2,998 571
3,555 557 2,998 571
41,629 5,691 35,938
763 1,474 1,350 887
3,155 1,866 2,061 2,960 2,160
6,024 135 6,159
$ 623697 $ 28,773 % 77497 % 574973 $ 60,368

* There was a debt disclosure reclassification as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No.88. (See Note 1)
** There was a restatement of net position as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No.83. (See Note 2).

The County’s debt consists of various issues of general obligation bonds including bonds from direct
placements, transportation revenue bonds, certificates of participation, sewer revenue bonds and obligations
including obligations from direct placements, and a loan from direct borrowing that are generally callable with
interest payable semiannually. Bond proceeds primarily pay for acquiring or constructing capital facilities.
Bonds have also been issued to advance-refund previously issued bonds. The County repays general obligation
bonds from voter-approved property taxes. Transportation revenue bonds are repaid from net highway user
revenues in the Transportation fund. Certificates of participation are repaid from General fund and other various
funds’ revenues. Sewer revenue bonds, obligations, including obligations from direct placement, and the loan
from direct borrowing are repaid from the charges for services in the Regional Wastewater Reclamation fund.
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Note 7: Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Governmental Activities
(Payments made from property tax revenues of the Debt Service Fund)

General obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2019, consisted of the outstanding general obligation bonds
presented below.

The following table presents amounts outstanding by issue.

Issue Interest Outstanding
Issue Amount Rates Maturities Call Date  June 30,2019
Series of 2009 $ 75,000 4.00% 2020 July1,2019 $ 4,000
Series of 2009A 90,000 3.50% 2020-21  July 1, 2019 13,045
Series of 2011 75,000 5.00% 2020-22  July 1, 2021 10,980
Series of 2012A 60,000 3.00 - 4.00% 2020-27  July 1, 2022 29,700
Series of 2013A 50,000 2.00 - 4.00% 2020-28  July 1,2023 32,080
Series of 2013B Refunding 38,575 3.00% 2020 5,155
Series of 2014 10,000 3.00 - 5.00% 2020-28  July 1,2023 6,770
Series of 2015 15,000 2.25-4.00% 2020-29  July 1, 2025 8,590
Series of 2016 Refunding 122,070 2.00 - 4.00% 2020-26 105,705
Subtotal 216,025
Series of 2017 - Direct placement 25,680 1.83% 2020-21 11,310
G.0. bonds outstanding 227,335
Plus unamortized premium/discount: 9,237
Total G.O. bonds outstanding $ 236,572

The following schedule details general obligation bond debt service requirements to maturity at June 30, 2019.

GO Bonds Bonds from Direct Placements
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2020 $ 43,075 $ 7,886 $ 9,350 $ 207
2021 38,985 6,611 1,960 36
2022 40,350 5173
2023 28,810 3,561
2024 20,215 2,448
2025-2029 44,590 3,752
Total $ 216,025 3 29,431 $ 11,310 $ 243

During fiscal year 2016-17, the County issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 to defease
certain General Obligation Bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide
for future debt service payments of the defeased debts. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liability for the
defeased bonds are not included in the County’s financial statements. At June 30, 2019, $17,380 of Series 2011
was considered defeased.
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Note 7: Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

TRANSPORTATION BONDS

Governmental Activities
(Payments made from street and highway revenues)

Pima County transportation revenue bonds were issued to provide monies to construct improvements to the
County’s streets and highways. Of the total amount originally authorized, $37,375 from the November 4, 1997
bond election remains unissued.

On April 25, 2019, the County issued Transportation Bonds, Series 2019 for $25,000 to finance various street
and highway improvements within the County.

The following table presents amounts outstanding by issue.

Issue Interest Outstanding
Issue Amount Rates Maturities Call Date  June 30,2019
Series of 2009 $ 15,000 4.00% 2020 July 1,2019 $ 1,755
Series of 2009 Refunding 8,420 4.00% 2020 July 1, 2019 820
Series of 2012 18,425 3.00 - 4.00% 2020-27  July 1, 2022 11,085
Series of 2014 16,000 3.00 - 5.00% 2020-28  July 1, 2023 11,475
Series of 2015 Refunding 13,685 5.00% 2020 5,280
Series of 2016 Refunding 28,315 1.75 - 5.00% 2020-24 24,915
Series of 2018 11,000 5.00% 2020-33  July 1,2028 10,180
Series of 2019 25,000  2.00 -4.00% 2020-33  July 1,2028 25,000
Transportation bonds outstanding 90,510
Plus unamortized premium/discount: 6,406
Total transportation bonds outstanding $ 96,916

The following schedule details transportation bond debt service requirements to maturity at June 30, 2019.

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest

2020 $ 14,405 $ 3,686

2021 12,755 3,016

2022 12,195 2,450

2023 7,730 1,885

2024 7,955 1,657
2025-2029 23,010 5,115
2030-2033 12,460 1,360
Total 3 90,510 $ 19,169

Pima County has pledged future street and highway revenues, to repay $90,510 in transportation revenue bonds
issued between 2009 and 2019. Proceeds from the bonds provide financing for construction of various highways
and streets within Pima County. The bonds are payable from transportation revenues and are payable through
2033. Total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $109,679. It is expected that
approximately 12 percent of total future revenues will be used to pay annual principal and interest on the bonds.
Prior year street and highway revenues are required to be greater than two times the maximum annual debt
service payment. Principal and interest paid for bonds in the current year, and total current year street and
highway revenues were $18,346 and $65,565, respectively.
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Note 7: Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

Governmental Activities
(Payments made from General Fund revenues)

Certificates of Participation represent proportionate interests in semiannual lease payments. The County’s
obligation to make lease payments is subject to annual appropriations being made by the County for that
purpose.

On May 7, 2019, the County issued Certificates of Participation Series 2019 for $20,940 to finance the
expansion and improvements of sports fields and facilities at the County’s Kino Sports Complex and for other
capital improvement projects of the County.

The following schedule details outstanding Certificates of Participation payable at June 30, 2019.

Issue Interest Outstanding
Issue Amount Rates Maturities Call Date June 30,2019
Series of 2013A $ 80,175 5.00% 2020-23 $ 10,460
Series of 2014 52,160 5.00% 2020-29  December 1, 2023 39,355
Series of 2016A Refunding 9,640 5.00% 2020-22 8,765
Series of 2016B 15,185 1.93 - 4.04% 2020-31 June 1, 2026 12,840
Series of 2018A 23,265 4.00 - 5.00% 2020-21 15,265
Taxable Series 2018B 39,395 2.50-2.70% 2020-21 9,700
Series of 2019 20,940 5.00% 2020-34  December 1, 2028 20,940
Certificates of participation outstanding 117,325
Plus unamortized premium/discount: 7,242
Total certificates of participation outstanding $ 124,567

The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the County’s Certificates of
Participation payable at June 30, 2019.

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2020 $ 22,535 $ 4,947
2021 23,120 3,917
2022 11,085 3,142
2023 8,515 2,675
2024 6,010 2,333
2025-2029 34,645 7,016
2030-2034 11,415 1,258

Total $ 117,325 $ 25,288
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Note 7: Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

The County’s COPS issuances are secured by collateral of certain County buildings. The following table
provides the COPS issuance and County buildings subject to collateralization in the event the County defaults
on any COPS issuance.

COPS Issuance Building Collateral
2013A 2014 2016A 2016B 2018A 2018B 2019  Adult Detention Facility
2013A 2014 2016A 2016B 2018A 2018B 2019 Public Works Building and Parking Garage
2013A 2014 2016A 2016B 2018A 2018B 2019 Legal Services Building
2014 2016A 2016B 2018A 2018B 2019 Public Service Center Office Tower and Parking Garage
2019  Justice Building

INSTALLMENT NOTES
Governmental Activities

Installment Notes from Direct Borrowing
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the County acquired computer equipment under a contract agreement for
a purchase price of $170. The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the County’s

installment notes from direct borrowing at June 30, 2019.

Installment Notes

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2020 $ 622 $ 6
2021 57 3
2022 45 1
Total $ 724 3 10

The installment notes from direct borrowing are collateralized by the acquired assets, which consists of land and
computer equipment.

SEWER REVENUE BONDS, OBLIGATIONS AND LOAN
Business-type Activities
(Payments made from user charges received in the RWR)

Pima County sewer revenue bonds, obligations and loan were issued to provide monies to construct
improvements to the County’s Regional Wastewater Reclamation system.

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the County defeased $2,860 of Sewer Revenue Bonds Series 2009 with
existing resources to reduce the debt service costs and help eliminate the need for future sewer rate increases.
Accordingly, the related liabilities are not included in the County’s financial statements. The County placed
$2,925 of existing cash in an irrevocable trust to provide resources for the future debt service payments of
$2,914 on the defeased debt.

In April 2019, the County issued $21,245 in Sewer Revenue Obligations Series 2019. The net proceeds of the

issuance were used primarily to provide funds for the acquisition, construction and improvement of sewer
treatment facilities and conveyance systems.
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Note 7: Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the County defeased $9,000 of Sewer Revenue Obligations Series 2010
with existing resources to reduce the debt service costs and help eliminate the need for future sewer rate

increases.

Accordingly, the related liabilities are not included in the County’s financial statements. The County placed
$9,363 of existing cash in an irrevocable trust to provide resources for the future debt service payments of

$9,675 on the defeased debt.

The following table presents amounts outstanding for sewer revenue obligations by issue.

Issue
Series of 2010
Series of 2011B
Series of 2012A
Series of 2014
Series 2016 Refunding
Series 2018
Series 2019
Subtotal
Series 2017 - Direct placement

Sewer Revenue Obligations outstanding

Plus unamortized premiunvdiscount:

Issue Interest Outstanding
Amount Rates Maturities Call Date June 30,2019
$ 165,000 4.00 - 5.00% 2020-21 July 1, 2020 $ 18,935
189,160 5.00% 2020-22 July 1,2021 36,360
128,795  2.00 - 5.00% 2020-27 July 1, 2022 80,390
48,500 5.00% 2020-28 July 1, 2023 34,740
211,595 5.00% 2020-26 207,280
38,205 5.00% 2026-33  July 1, 2028 38,205
21,245 5.00% 2020-32  July 1, 2029 21,245
437,155

45,000 2.77% 2020-31 39,575
476,730

49,301

Total sewer revenue obligations outstanding $ 526,031

The following schedule details sewer revenue obligation debt service requirements to maturity at June 30, 2019.

Sewer Obligation Debt Service

Obligations from Direct Placement

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2020 $ 44060 $ 21,632 $ 285 % 1,096
2021 56,045 19,495 2,905 1,018
2022 58,255 16,773 2,985 937
2023 61,215 13,939 3,065 855
2024 54,650 10,879 3,150 770
2025 - 2029 136,770 20,629 17,120 2,491
2030 - 2033 26,160 3,148 7,525 314
Total $ 437,155  $ 106,495 $ 39575 $ 7,481

In prior years, the County defeased certain Sewer Revenue Obligations by placing the proceeds of Sewer
Revenue Refunding Obligations Series 2016 in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service
payments on the defeased debts. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for these
defeased obligations are not included in the County’s financial statements. At June 30, 2019, $85,495 of
Sewer Revenue Obligations Series 2010, and $71,000 of Sewer Revenue Obligations Series 2011B were

considered defeased.
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Note 7: Long-Term Liabilities (continued)
Loan from Direct Borrowing

The following table presents the loan from direct borrowing outstanding amount.

Issue Interest Outstanding

Issue Amount Rate Maturities June 30,2019
2009 Loan payable $ 8,002 0.96% 2020-24 $ 2,998
Total loan fromdirect borrowing $ 2,998

The following schedule details loan from direct borrowing debt service requirements to maturity at June 30,
2019.

Loan from Direct Borrowing

Principal Interest
$ 571  $ 74
585 60
599 45
614 31
629 15
3$ 2998 $ 225

All sewer revenue obligations, including direct placements, were issued and the loan from the direct borrowing
was executed with a first lien on the pledge of the RWR net revenues and have restrictive covenants, primarily
related to minimum utility rates and limitations on future bond issues. The bond covenants also require the
RWR to either maintain a surety bond guaranteeing the payment of annual debt service or to maintain in the
Bond Reserve Account monies in amounts set by each debt issue. At June 30, 2019, the RWR met
the requirements of the debt covenants. The County is also authorized to issue for the RWR additional parity
bonds or revenue obligations if certain conditions are met, primarily that net revenues for parity bonds and
pledged revenues for revenue obligations for the fiscal year immediately preceding issuance of the new debt
exceed 120 percent of the maximum annual debt service requirements immediately after such issuance.

Pima County has pledged future user charges, net of specified operating expenses, to repay $437,155 in sewer
obligations and $39,575 in sewer obligations from direct placement issued between 2010 and 2019, and $2,998
in the loan from direct borrowing issued in 2009. Proceeds from the obligations, direct placement and direct
borrowing provided financing for construction of various treatment facilities and sewer infrastructure within
Pima County. The obligations, direct placement and direct borrowing are payable from total customer net
revenues and are payable through fiscal year 2033. It is expected that approximately 23 percent of total future
customer net revenues will be used to pay annual principal and interest payments on the obligations, direct
placement and direct borrowing. Total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the obligations, direct
placement and direct borrowing are $543,650, $47,056 and $3,223, respectively. Principal and interest paid in
the current year on revenue bonds, obligations and direct placement totaled $68,892, and principal and interest
paid on the direct borrowing totaled $645. Total customer net revenues in the current year were $106,185.
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Note 7: Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION
Business-type Activities

Pima County’s asset retirement obligation is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement and
clean closure of a wastewater treatment facility as required by State laws and regulations. The estimates used in
calculating this liability are based on actual historical clean-up costs associated with the retirement and clean
closure of a recently closed wastewater treatment facility. The clean closure costs estimate is adjusted annually
using an inflation factor. The estimated remaining useful lives of the associated wastewater treatment facilities
range between 2 to 25 years.

CONTRACTS AND NOTES

Business-type Activities
(Payments made from restricted assets in the RWR)

Contracts and notes consist of contract retentions for several construction projects. Generally, interest is not
accrued and the timing of payments is based on completion of the related construction projects.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absences are paid from various funds in the same proportion that those funds pay payroll costs.
During the fiscal year 2019, the County paid for compensated absences from governmental funds with 72
percent from the General Fund, 25 percent from Other Special Revenue funds and 3 percent from internal
service funds. The County also paid compensated absences from business-type activity funds with 86 percent
from the Regional Wastewater Reclamation fund and 14 percent from other enterprise funds.

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
County General Obligation Bonds

General obligation debt may not exceed 6 percent of the value of the County’s taxable property as of the latest
assessment. However, with voter approval, debt may be incurred up to 15 percent of the value of taxable
property. Pima County has received voter approval for all general obligation debt. The legal debt margin at
June 30, 2019, is as follows:

Net assessed valuation $ 9,030,169
Debt limit (15% of net assessed valuation): $ 1,354,525

Less amount of debt applicable to debt limit:

General obligation bonds outstanding $ 227,335
Less fund balance in debt service fund available

for payment of general obligation bond principal (2,639) 224,696
Legal debt margin available $ 1,129,829
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Note 8: Landfill Liabilities
Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs

State and Federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its solid waste landfill sites when
these sites stop accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the sites for thirty
years after their closure. Although closure and post-closure care costs will not be paid until near or after the date the
landfills stop accepting waste, the County records a portion of these closure and post-closure care costs as a long-
term liability in each period, based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $10,111 reported as
landfill closure and post-closure care long-term liability within the governmental activities represents the cumulative
amount reported to date, based on the percentage used of each landfill's total estimated capacity. The County will
recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and post-closure care of $4,184 as the remaining estimated
capacities are used. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post-closure care in
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019; actual costs may change due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in
regulations.

Estimated
Capacity Used Remaining
Landfill Site June 30, 2019 Service Life
Ajo 7% 35 Years
Sahuarita* 59% 25 Years
Tangerine 100% Closed

*The Sahuarita Landfill stopped accepting waste from the public in February 2016, but remains open for internal
County waste disposal needs.

The County plans to fund the estimated closure and post-closure care costs with General Fund monies.

According to State and Federal laws and regulations, the County must comply with the local government financial
test requirements that ensure the County can meet the costs of landfill closure, post-closure, and corrective action
when needed. The County is in compliance with these requirements. The Ina Road Landfill facility is closed to
municipal solid waste and only receives green waste and construction debris. It is not subject to the closure and post-
closure cost requirements referred to above. Pima County estimates that it will cost approximately $11,870 when
closure occurs and plans to fund the costs with General Fund monies. At this time, there is no closure date
available.

On June 1, 2013, Tucson Recycling and Waste Services was contracted to operate the Landfill and Transfer Station

operations on behalf of Pima County in an agency capacity. The closure and post closure costs remain the liability of
Pima County.

71



PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 9: Operating Leases

The County leases land, buildings, vehicles, parking spaces, machinery, and office equipment under the provisions
of various long-term lease agreements classified as operating leases for accounting purposes. Rental expenditures
under the terms of the operating leases were $8,107 for the year ended June 30, 2019. These operating leases have
remaining lease terms from one to thirty-six years. Also, they provide renewal options and are contingent on
budgetary appropriations each fiscal year. The future estimated maximum rental payments under these operating
leases as of June 30, 2019, are as follows:

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities

Year ending June 30

2020 $ 3,734 $ 542
2021 3,317 542
2022 2,074 542
2023 1,203 320
2024 469 244
2025-29 64 1,000
2030-34 30 1,000
2035-39 1,000
2040-44 1,000
2045-49 1,000
2050-54 1,000
2055 150
Total maximum lease payments  $ 10,891 $ 8,340
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits

The County contributes to the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS), the Corrections Officer Retirement Plan
(CORP), the Corrections Officer Retirement Plan — Administrative Office of the Courts (CORP AOC), the Public
Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS), consisting of Pima County Sheriffs and Pima County - County
Attorney Investigators, the Public Safety Personnel Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (PSPDCRP), the Elected
Officials Retirement Plan (EORP), and the Elected Officials Defined Contribution Retirement System (EODCRS),
all component units of the State of Arizona.

At June 30, 2019, the County reported the following aggregate amounts related to pensions and other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) for all plans to which it contributes:

Statement of net position and Governmental Business-type
Statement of activities activities activities Total
Net pension and OPEB assets $ 3,302 $ 94 $ 3,396
Net pension and OPEB liabilities 708,300 35,938 744,238
Deferred outflows of resources

related to pensions and OPEB 121,465 5,237 126,702
Deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions and OPEB 89,827 5,352 95,179
Pension and OPEB expense 24,180 (942) 23,238

The County’s accrued payroll and employee benefits includes $1,223 of outstanding pension and OPEB contribution
amounts payable to all plans for the year ended June 30, 2019. Also, the County reported $58,603 of pension and
OPEB contributions as expenditures in the governmental funds related to all plans to which it contributes.

The ASRS, CORP, CORP AOC, PSPRS - Pima County Sheriffs, and EORP pension plans are described below. The
PSPRS, Pima County - County Attorney Investigators, PSPDCRP, EODCRS pension plans, and all OPEB plans are
not described due to their relative insignificance to the County's financial statements.

A. Arizona State Retirement System

Plan description - County employees not covered by the other pension plans described below participate in the
Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS). The ASRS administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan. The Arizona State Retirement System board governs the ASRS according to the provisions of A.R.S.
Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles 2 and 2.1. The ASRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes its
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report is available on its website at

WWW.azasrs.gov.
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Benefits provided - The ASRS provides retirement and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefit terms.
Retirement benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly compensation, and service credit as follows:

ASRS Retirement
Initial membership date:

Before July 1, 2011 On or after July 1, 2011
Years of service Sum of years and age equals 80 30 years, age 55
and age required 10 years, age 62 25 years, age 60
to receive benefit 5 years, age 50* 10 years, age 62

any years, age 65 5 years, age 50*

any years, age 65

Final average Highest 36 consecutive months Highest 60 consecutive
salary is based on  of last 120 months months of last 120 months
Benefit percent 2.1% 10 2.3% 2.1% 10 2.3%

per year of service

*With actuarially reduced benefits.

Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are subject to automatic cost-
of-living adjustments based on excess investment earning. Members with a membership date on or after September
13, 2013, are not eligible for cost-of-living adjustments. Survivor benefits are payable upon a member’s death. For
retired members, the retirement benefit option chosen determines the survivor benefit. For all other members, the
beneficiary is entitled to the member’s account balance that includes the member’s contributions and employer’s
contributions, plus interest earned.

Contributions - In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine active member and
employer contribution requirements. The combined active member and employer contribution rates are expected to
finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 2019, statute required active ASRS members to contribute at the
actuarially determined rate of 11.64 percent of the members’ annual covered payroll, and statute required the County
to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 11.18 percent of the active members’ annual covered payroll.

In addition, the County was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 10.41 percent of
the annual covered payroll of retired members who worked for the County in positions that an employee who
contributes to the ASRS would typically fill.

The County’s total contributions to the pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2019, was $26,908.

During fiscal year 2019, the County paid for ASRS pension contributions as follows: 60 percent from the General
Fund, 9 percent from major funds, and 31 percent from other funds.
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Liability - At June 30, 2019, the County reported the following liability for its proportionate share of the ASRS' net
pension liability.

ASRS Net pension liability
Pension $ 328,958

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018. The total liability used to calculate the net liability was
determined using update procedures to roll forward the total liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017,
to the measurement date of June 30, 2018. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2018, reflects changes in
actuarial assumptions based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30,
2016, including decreasing the discount rate from 8 percent to 7.5 percent, changing the projected salary increases
from 3-6.75 percent to 2.7-7.2 percent, decreasing the inflation rate from 3 percent to 2.3 percent, and
changing the mortality rates.

The County's proportion of the net liability was based on the County's actual contributions to the plan relative to the
total of all participating employers' contributions for the year ended June 30, 2018. The County's proportions
measured as of June 30, 2018, and the change from its proportions measured as of June 30, 2017, were:

ASRS Proportion Decrease from
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
Pension 2.36% (0.05)

Expense - For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County recognized the following pension expense.

ASRS Pension expense

Pension ($3,740)
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources - At June 30, 2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

ASRS Deferred outflows Deferred inflows
of resources of resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience $ 9,063 $ 1,813
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 8,705 29,167
Net difference between projected and actual 7,911

earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between 16 7,750
county contributions and proportionate share
of contributions

County contributions subsequent to the 26,908
measurement date
Total $ 44,692 $ 46,641

The $26,908 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions resulting from County
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net liability in the
year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized as expense as follows:

Year ending June 30

2020 $  (2,226)
2021 (11,084)
2022 (12,000)
2023 (3,547)

Actuarial assumptions - The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension liability are as
follows:

ASRS

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2017
Actuarial roll forward date June 30, 2018
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Investment rate of return 7.5%

Projected salary increases 2.7-7.2%

Inflation 2.3%

Permanent benefit increase Included

Mortality rates 2017 SRA Scale U-MP

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2016.
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS pension plan investments was determined to be 7.5 percent using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

ASRS Long-term expected
Target geometric real rate of

Asset class allocation return

Equity 50% 5.50%

Fixed income 30% 3.83%

Real estate _20% 5.85%

Total 100%

Discount rate - At June 30, 2018, the discount rate used to measure the ASRS total pension liability was 7.5
percent, which was a decrease of 0.5 from the discount rate used as of June 30, 2017. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers will be made based on
the actuarially determined rates based on the ASRS Board's funding policy, which establishes the contractually
required rate under Arizona statute. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the ASRS net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate - The following table presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.5 percent) or 1 percentage point higher
(8.5 percent) than the current rate:

ASRS 1% Decrease Current discount 1% Increase
(6.5%) rate (7.5%) (8.5%)
County’s proportionate share of the net $ 468,938 $ 328,958 $ 212,008

pension liability

Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued ASRS financial report.

B. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System and Corrections Officer Retirement Plan

Plan descriptions - County sheriff employees who are regularly assigned hazardous duty participate in the Public
Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) or employees who became members on or after July 1, 2017, may
participate in the Public Safety Personnel Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (PSPDCRP). The PSPRS
administers agent and cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. A 9-member board known as
the Board of Trustees and the participating local boards govern the PSPRS according to the provisions of A.R.S.
Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4. County sheriff employees who are PSPRS members participate in the agent plans.
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

County attorney investigators who were PSPRS members before July 1, 2017, participate in the agent plans, and
those who became PSPRS members on or after July 1, 2017, participate in the cost-sharing plans (PSPRS Tier 3
Risk Pool) which are not further disclosed because of their relative insignificance to the County's financial
statements.

County detention officers, Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC) probation, surveillance, and juvenile
detention officers participate in the Corrections Officer Retirement Plan (CORP) or the Public Safety Personnel
Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (PSPDCRP). The CORP administers an agent multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan for county detention officers (agent plan), which was closed to new members as of July 1,
2018, and a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan for AOC officers (cost sharing plan).
Employees who were CORP members before July 1, 2018, participate in CORP, and AOC probation and
surveillance officers who became members on or after July 1, 2018, participate in CORP or PSPDCRP. Detention
officers and juvenile detention officers who became members on or after July 1, 2018, participate in PSPDCRP. The
PSPRS Board of Trustees and the participating local boards govern CORP according to the provisions of A.R.S.
Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 6.

The PSPRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for PSPRS and CORP plans. The report is available on the PSPRS website at www.psprs.com.

Benefits provided - The PSPRS and CORP provide retirement and survivor benefits. State statute establishes
benefit terms. Retirement, disability, and survivor benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly
compensation, and service credit as follows:

PSPRS Initial membership date:
On or after
Before January 1, 2012 January 1, 2012 and On or after July 1, 2017
before July 1, 2017

Retirement and Disability

Years of service 20 years of service, any age 25 years of service or 15 15 years of credited service,

and age required 15 years of service, age 62 years of credited service, age 52.5*

to receive benefit age 52.5 15 or more years of service,
age 55

Final average Highest 36 consecutive Highest 60 consecutive Highest 60 consecutive

salary is based on months of last 20 years months of last 20 years months of last 15 years

* With actuarially reduced benefits
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

PSPRS

Benefit percent

Normal
retirement

Accidental
disability
retirement
Catastrophic
disability
retirement

Ordinary

disability

retirement
Survivor Benefit
Retired members

Active members

Initial membership date:

On or after
Before January 1, 2012 January 1, 2012 and On or after July 1, 2017
before July 1, 2017

50% less 2.0% for each year of
credited service less than 20 years
OR plus 2.0% to 2.5% for each year
of credited service over 20 years,
not to exceed 80%

1.5% to 2.5% per year of credited service, not to
exceed 80%

50% or normal retirement, whichever is greater

90% for the first 60 months then reduced to either 62.5%
or normal retirement, whichever is greater

Normal retirement calculated with actual years of credited service or 20 years of credited
service, whichever is greater, multiplied by years of credited service (not to exceed 20
years) divided by 20

80% to 100% of retired member’s pension benefit

80% to 100% of accidental disability retirement benefit or 100% of average monthly
compensation if death was the result of injuries received on the job
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

CORP
Initial membership date:
On or after January 1, 2012 and
Before January 1, 2012 before July 1, 2018
Retirement and Disability

Years of service and Sum of years and age equals 25 years, age 52.5
age required to receive 80 10 years, age 62
benefit 20 years, any age

10 years, age 62
Final average salary is Highest 36 consecutive Highest 60 consecutive
based on months of last 10 years months of last 10 years

Benefit percent

Normal retirement 2.0% to 2.5% per year of credited service, not to exceed 80%

Accidental disability ~ 50% or normal retirement if 50% or normal retirement if more

retirement more than 20 years of credited than 25 years of credited service
service

Total and permanent ~ 50% or normal retirement if more than 25 years of credited service
disability retirement

Ordinary disability 2.5% per year of credited service
retirement

Survivor benefit
Retired members 80% of retired member’s pension benefit

Active members 40% of average monthly compensation or 100% of average monthly
compensation if death was the result of injuries received on the job. If there is
no surviving spouse or eligible children, the beneficiary is entitled to 2 times

the member’s contributions.

Retirement and survivor benefits are subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on inflation. PSPRS also
provides temporary disability benefits of 50 percent of the member's compensation for up to 12 months.

Employees covered by benefit terms - At June 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by the agent
plans’ benefit terms:

PSPRS CORP
Sheriff Detention
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently 403 204
receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving 129 135
benefits
Active employees 455 507
Total 987 846

80



PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Contributions - State statutes establish the pension contribution requirements for active PSPRS and CORP
employees. In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine employer contribution
requirements for PSPRS and CORP pension benefits. The combined active member and employer contribution rates
are expected to finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance
any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions rates for the year ended June 30, 2019, are indicated below. Rates are
a percentage of active members’ annual covered payroll.

Active member -

pension County - pension
PSPRS Sheriff 7.65% - 11.65% 63.12%
CORP Detention 8.41% 32.09%
CORP AOC 8.41% 32.43%

In addition, statute required the County to contribute at the actuarially determined rate indicated below of annual
covered payroll of retired members who worked for the County in positions that an employee who contributes to the
PSPRS or CORP would typically fill and employees participating in the PSPRS Tier 3 Risk Pool and PSPDCRP
members in addition to the County's required contributions to the PSPRS Tier 3 Risk Pool and PSPDCRP.

Pension
PSPRS Sheriff 49.26%
CORP Detention 24.83%
CORP AOC 24.49%

The County’s contributions to the plans for the ended June 30, 2019, were:

Pension
PSPRS Sheriff $18,766
CORP Detention 6,515
CORP AOC 4,258

During fiscal year 2019, the County paid for PSPRS and CORP pension contributions as follows: 92 percent from
the General Fund and 8 percent from other non-major funds.

Liability - At June 30, 2019, the County reported the following liabilities:

Net pension
liability
PSPRS Sheriff $ 236,440
CORP Detention 68,772
CORP AOC (County’s proportionate share) 41,436

The net pension liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total liability used to calculate the net liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total CORP pension liabilities as of June 30, 2018,
reflect statutory changes in benefit terms for automatic cost-of-living adjustments. The basis for cost-of-living
adjustments was changed from excess investment earnings to the change in the consumer price index, limited to a
maximum annual increase of 2 percent.
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Actuarial assumptions - The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension liability are as
follows:

PSPRS and CORP - Pension

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2018

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Investment rate of return 7.4%

Wage inflation 3.5%

Price Inflation 2.5%

Cost-of-living adjustment Included

Mortality rates RP-2014 tables using MP-2016 improvement scale with

adjustments to match current experience

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2016.

The long-term expected rate of return on PSPRS and CORP plan investments was determined to be 7.4 percent
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The target allocation
and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

PSPRS and CORP Long-term expected
Asset class Target allocation geometric real rate of return
Short term investments 2% 0.25%

Risk parity 4% 5.00%

Fixed income 5% 1.25%

Real assets 9% 4.52%

GTS 12% 3.96%
Private credit 16% 6.75%

Real estate 10% 3.75%
Private equity 12% 5.83%
Non-U.S. equity 14% 8.70%

U.S. equity _16% 7.60%

Total 100%

Discount rate - At June 30, 2018, the discount rate used to measure the PSPRS and CORP total pension liabilities
was 7.4 percent, which the same as the discount rate used as of June 30, 2017. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate
and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the actuarially determined
contribution rate and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the plans’ fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Changes in the net pension liability

PSPRS - Sheriff

Balances at June 30, 2018
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Differences between expected and
actual experience in the measurement
of the pension liability
Contributions—employer
Contributions—employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions
Hall/Parker settlement
Administrative expense
Other changes
Net changes
Balances at June 30, 2019

CORP - Detention

Balances at June 30, 2018
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual
experience in the measurement of the
pension liability
Contributions—employer
Contributions—employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions
Administrative expense
Other changes
Net changes
Balances at June 30, 2019

Increase (decrease)

Total pension Plan fiduciary net Net pension
liability position liability / (asset)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
$ 384,706 $ 152,923 $ 231,783
6,125 6,125
27,905 27,905
(2,730) (2,730)
18,847 (18,847)
2,787 (2,787)
10,343 (10,343)
(21,357) (21,357)
(4,953) 4,953
(158) 158
(223) 223
9,943 5,286 4,657
$ 394,649 $ 158,209 $ 236,440
Increase (decrease)

Total pension Plan fiduciary net Net pension

liability position liability / (asset)
(a) (b) (a) = (b)
$ 132,538 $ 55,833 $ 76,705
3,359 3,359
9,683 9,683
(7,525) (7,525)
(2,679) (2,679)
5,167 (5,167)
1,771 (1,771)
3,970 (3,970)
(6,741) (6,741)
(61) 61
(76) 76
(3,903) 4,030 (7,933)
$ 128,635 $ 59,863 $ 68,772
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

The County's proportion of the CORP AOC net pension liability was based on the County's actual contributions to
the plan relative to the total of all participating counties' actual contributions for the year ended June 30, 2018. The
County's proportion measured as of June 30, 2018, and the change from its proportions measured as of June 30,
2017, were:

CORP AOC Proportion Decrease from
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
Pension 11.51% (0.44)

Sensitivity of the County’s net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - The following table presents
the County's net pension liabilities calculated using the discount rate of 7.4 percent, as well as what the County's net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.4 percent) or
1 percentage point higher (8.4 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current discount 1% Increase
(6.4%) Rate (7.4%) (8.4%)

PSPRS Sheriff

Net pension liability $ 286,748 $ 236,440 $ 195,076
CORP Detention

Net pension liability $ 87,267 $ 68,772 $ 53,830
CORP AOC

County’s proportionate share of the ~ $ 54,208 $ 41,436 $ 31,072

net pension liability

Plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued PSPRS and CORP financial reports.

Pension expense - For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County recognized the following pension expense:

Pension

Expense
PSPRS Sheriff $ 33,549
CORP Detention 1,652
CORP AOC (County’s proportionate share) 57

Pension deferred outflows/inflows of resources - At June 30, 2019, the County reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

PSPRS — Sheriff Deferred outflows Deferred inflows
of resources of resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 7,909
Changes of assumptions or other inputs $ 18,636

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 2943

pension plan investments '
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 18,766
Total $ 39,645 $ 7,909
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

CORP - Detention Deferred outflows Deferred inflows of
of resources resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 4,420
Changes of assumptions or other inputs $ 5,024
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 629
pension plan investments
County contributions subsequent to the measurement
6,515
date
Total $ 12,168 $ 4,420
CORP -AOC Deferred outflows Deferred inflows of
of resources resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 155 $ 2,131
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 2,748
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 750
pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between county
- . N 12 1,959
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
County contributions subsequent to the measurement
4,258
date
Total $ 7,923 $ 4,090

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from county contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending
June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

PSPRS CORP CORP
Sheriff Detention AOC
Year ending June 30
2020 $ 8,788 $ 1,539 $ 855
2021 2,908 451 (70)
2022 1,122 (252) (762)
2023 152 (414) (448)
2024 (91)
$ 12,970 $ 1,233 $ (425)
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)
C. Elected Officials Retirement Plan

Plan description - Elected officials and judges participate in the Elected Officials Retirement Plan (EORP). EORP
administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan for elected officials and judges who were
members of the plan on December 31, 2013. This EORP pension plan was closed to new members as of January 1,
2014. The PSPRS Board of Trustees governs the EORP according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5,
Article 3. The PSPRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the EORP plans. The report is available on PSPRS's website at www.psprs.com.

Benefits provided - The EORP provides retirement and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefit terms.
Retirement, disability and survivor benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average yearly compensation, and
service credit as follows:

EORP Initial membership date:

Retirement and
Disability
Years of service
and age required to
receive benefit

Final average
salary is based on

Benefit percent

Normal
Retirement

Disability
Retirement

Survivor Benefit

Retired Members

Active Members
and Other Inactive
Members

Before January 1, 2012

On or after January 1, 2012

20 years, any age
10 years, age 62
5 years, age 65
5 years, any age*
any years and age if disabled

Highest 36 consecutive
months of last 10 years

4% per year of service,
not to exceed 80%

80% with 10 or more years of service
40% with 5 to 10 years of service
20% with less than 5 years of service

75% of retired member’s benefit

75% of disability retirement benefit

10 years, age 62
5 years, age 65
any years and age if disabled

Highest 60 consecutive
months of last 10 years

3% per year of service,
not to exceed 75%

75% with 10 or more years of service
37.5% with 5 to 10 years of service
18.75% with less than 5 years of service

50% of retired member’s benefit

50% of disability retirement benefit

* With reduced benefits of 0.25% for each month early retirement precedes the member’s normal
retirement age, with a maximum reduction of 30%.
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Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Retirement and survivor benefits are subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on inflation. In addition,
the Legislature may enact permanent one-time benefit increases after a Joint Legislative Budget Committee analysis
of the increase's effects on the plan.

Contributions - State statutes establish active member and employer contribution requirements. Statute also
appropriates $5 million annually through fiscal year 2043 for the EORP from the State of Arizona to supplement the
normal cost plus an amount to amortize the unfunded accrued liability and designates a portion of certain court fees
for the EORP. For the year ended June 30, 2019, statute required active EORP members to contribute 7 or 13
percent of the members’ annual covered payroll and the County to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of
61.5 percent of all active EORP members' annual covered payroll. Also, statute required the County to contribute
49.86 percent to EORP of the annual covered payroll of elected officials and judges who were ASRS members, and
55.5 percent to EORP of the annual covered payroll of elected officials and judges who were EODCRS members, in
addition to the County’s required contributions to ASRS and EODCRS for these elected officials and judges. In
addition, statute required the County to contribute 30.16 percent of annual covered payroll of retired members who
worked for the County in positions that an employee who contributes to the EORP would typically fill.

The County’s contributions to the pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2019, were $4,168.

During fiscal year 2019, the County paid for EORP pension contributions entirely from the General Fund.

Liability - At June 30, 2019, the County reported a liability for its proportionate share of the EORP's net pension
liability that reflected a reduction for the County's proportionate share of the State's appropriation for EORP. The

amount the County recognized as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related state support, and the
total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the County were as follows:

County’s proportionate share of the EORP net pension liability $ 64,49
State’s proportionate share of the EORP net pension liability associated with the County 11,051
Total $ 75,546

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total liability used to calculate the net liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total liability as of June 30, 2018, reflects statutory
changes in benefit terms for automatic cost-of-living adjustments. The basis for cost-of-living adjustments was
changed from excess investment earnings to the change in the consumer price index, limited to a maximum annual
increase of 2 percent.

The County’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the County’s required contributions to the pension
plan relative to the total of all participating employers’ required contributions for the year ended June 30, 2018. The
County’s proportion measured as of June 30, 2018, and the change from its proportions measured as of June 30,
2017, were:

EORP Proportion Increase from
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
Pension 10.24% 2.81

Expense - For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County recognized pension expense for EORP of ($9,767), and
revenue of ($3,142) for the County's proportionate share of the State's appropriation to EORP and the designated
court fees.
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources - At June 30, 2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

EORP Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,006
Changes of assumptions or other inputs $ 402 26,850
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 560

pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between county

S . o 12,938

contributions and proportionate share of contributions
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 4,168
Total $ 18,068 $ 27,856

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to EORP pensions resulting from county
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net liability in the year
ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to EORP pensions will be recognized as expenses as follows:

Year ending June 30

2020 $ (12,862)
2021 (865)
2022 (237)
2023 8
Total $ (13,956)

Actuarial assumptions - The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension liability are as
follows:

EORP

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2018

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Investment rate of return 7.4%

Wage inflation 3.5%

Price inflation 2.5%

Cost of living adjustment Included

Mortality rates RP-2014 tables using MP-2016 improvement scale with

adjustments to match current experience

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2016.
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 10: Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on EORP plan investments was determined to be 7.4 percent using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The target allocation and best
estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

EORP Long-term expected
Target geometric real rate

Asset class allocation of return

Short-term investments 2% 0.25%

Risk parity 4% 5.00%

Fixed income 5% 1.25%

Real assets 9% 4.52%

GTS 12% 3.96%

Private credit 16% 6.75%

Real estate 10% 3.75%

Private equity 12% 5.83%

Non-U.S. equity 14% 8.70%

U.S. equity 16% 7.60%

Total 100%

Discount rate - At June 30, 2018, the discount rate used to measure the EORP total pension liability was 7.4
percent, which was an increase of 3.49 from the discount rate used as of June 30, 2017. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution
rate, employer contributions will be made at the actuarially determined set rates, and state contributions will be
made as currently required by statute. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County's proportionate share of the EORP net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate - The following table presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.4 percent, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.4 percent) or 1 percentage point higher
(8.4 percent) than the current rate:

EORP 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
6.4% Rate 7.4% 8.4%
County’s proportionate share $ 74,055 $ 64,495 $ 56,369

of the net pension liability

Plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued EORP financial report.
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 11: Due from Other Governments

Governmental activities:

Capital Other Internal Total
General Projects Governmental Service Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds Activities

Federal government:

Grants and contributions $ 11 $ 2,398 $ 2,409
State of Arizona:

Taxes and shared revenues 20,729 $ 1,299 6,198 28,226

Grants and contributions 6,241 6,241
Cities:

Reimbursement for services 1,472 163 1,896 $ 3 3,534
Other governments:

Reimbursement for services 60 75 17 3 155
Total due from other governments

fund based statements $ 22272 $ 1537 $ 16,750 $ 6 $ 40,565
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 12: Interfund Transactions

A. Interfund Assets/Liabilities

Interfund Receivables/Payables - interfund balances at June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Receivable fund Payable fund
General Other Governmental — Wireless Integrated Network

Total General Fund interfund receivable

Amount
$ 3,100
$ 3,100

The interfund receivable of $3,100 within the General Fund was established to fund the replacement of the aging
microwave backhaul system of the County’s Wireless Integrated Network. The interfund loan is payable over a 5-

year period with no interest, of which $2,500 is due in more than one year.

Due from/Due to other funds for the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Amounts recorded as due to:

c
e
= Regional
@ -
3 Capital Other Wastewater
3 General Projects Governmental Reclamation Total
°©
(5]
S General $ 19 8 402 4041
[&)
[5)
2 Other Governmental $ 617 1 160 778
c
>
g Other Enterprise 17 $ 15 32
<

Total $ 617 $ 20 % 4199 $ 15 4,851

Due from/Due to other funds are used to record short-term loans or unpaid operating transfers between funds.
Outstanding due to/due from amounts between General and Other Governmental funds represent cash deficits that
were the result of timing differences from grant revenues received in the subsequent year and cash transfers that had

not occurred at the end of the year. All due to/due from amounts are expected to be paid in one year.
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Note 12: Interfund Transactions (continued)
B. Interfund Transfers

Transfers are used to move monies between individual funds primarily to properly account for capital projects
activity, debt service activity, and to subsidize departmental operations.
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Amounts recorded as transfers out:

Regional
Capital Other Wastewater Other Internal

= General Projects Governmental Reclamation Enterprise Service Total
é General $ 1138 $ 237 $ 750 $ 58 $ 2183
2
*E Capital Projects $ 15520 30,781 500 153 46,954
(:; Debt Service 8368 $ 8917 38,855 29,036 655 2,307 88,138
§ Other Governmental 27,904 1,584 2,170 114 497 32,269
§ Regional Wastewater Reclamation 19,433 79 19,512
E Internal Service 7,788 75 7,863

Total $ 59580 $ 29934 $ 72944 $ 29462 $ 1905 $ 3094 $ 196919

The table above does not include transfers of capital assets from the proprietary funds to the governmental activities
because these are not reported in the governmental funds.

The following is a summary of the significant transfer activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019:

The transfers out of the General Fund were made to the Capital Projects Fund for facilities renovations and to the
Other Governmental Funds to subsidize the operations of the Health department and the Stadium District. The
General Fund also transferred monies to the Internal Service Funds for acquisitions of computer hardware, servers,
and data storage by the Information Technology department.

The transfers out of the Other Governmental Funds and the Regional Wastewater Reclamation enterprise fund to the
Debt Service Fund were to provide monies for debt-service requirements as payments become due. The transfers
out of the Other Governmental Funds to the Capital Projects Fund were primarily to fund projects for the
Transportation department and Flood Control District.
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(in thousands)

Note 13: Construction and Other Significant Commitments
At June 30, 2019, Pima County had the following major contractual commitments:

Community Services
The Community Services Department had contractual commitments related to service contracts of $14,438.

Funding for these expenditures will be provided from reimbursements on intergovernmental grant awards, including
federal and state entities.

Facilities Management
The Facilities Management Department had construction contractual commitments of $13,801 and other contractual

commitments related to service contracts of $4,816. Funding for these expenditures will be provided from general
fund and building rental revenues.

General Government

The Office of Medical Services had contractual commitments related to service contracts of $5,271. The Behavioral
Health department had contractual commitments related to service contracts of $91,112. Funding for these
expenditures will be provided from general fund revenues.

Natural Resources, Parks and Recreation

The Natural Resources, Parks and Recreation Department had commitments related to service contracts of $5,772.
Funding for these expenditures will be provided from general fund revenues.

Regional Flood Control
The Regional Flood Control fund had construction contractual commitments of $3,485 and other

contractual commitments related to service contracts of $1,664. Funding for these expenditures will be primarily
from Regional Flood Control District tax levy revenues.

Regional Wastewater Reclamation

The Regional Wastewater Reclamation enterprise fund had construction contractual commitments of $32,637 and
other contractual commitments related to services of $20,198. Funding for these expenses will be primarily from the
Sewer Revenue Obligations and sewer user fees.

Stadium District

The Stadium District fund had construction contractual commitments of $14,720. Funding for these expenditures
will be primarily from general fund revenues and various taxes, such as Hotel/Motel tax revenues.

Transportation

The Transportation Department had construction commitments of $61,611 and other contractual commitments
related to services of $305. Funding for these expenditures will be primarily provided from Transportation Revenue
bonds, federal grants funding and state Highway User Tax Revenue, which is the primary source of revenue for the
Transportation Department.
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Note 14: Deficit Fund Balance

At June 30, 2019, the following nonmajor funds reported a deficit in fund balance:

Fund Deficit
Governmental Funds:

Other Grants $ 4,153
School Reserve 195

Note 15: Subsequent Events

Certificates of Participation — On October 30, 2019, the County issued Certificates of Participation, Series 2019A
in the amount of $12,975 to fund a portion of the construction of an approximately 2.6 mile extension of Valencia
Road, a major arterial County road, and related bridge and bank protection improvements.

Sewer System Revenue Obligations — On November 7, 2019, the County defeased $18,935 of Sewer System
Revenue Obligations, Series 2010 with existing resources to reduce the debt service costs and help eliminate the
need for future sewer rate increases. The County purchased State and Local Government Securities in the amount of
$19,694 and placed them in an account with the Trustee, Bank of New York Mellon, for future debt service
payments of $19,868 on the defeased debt.
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Revenues:
Property taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General government
Assessor
Board of Supervisors
Clerk of Superior Court
Constables
County Administration
County Attorney
Grants Management and Innovation
Justice Courts
Juvenile Courts
Justice & Law Enforcement
Public Works (Facilities Management)
Recorder
Superior Court
Superior Court Mandated Services
Treasurer
Public safety
Sheriff
Office of Emergency Management & Homeland Security
Sanitation
Environmental Quality
Health
Forensic Science Center
Welfare
County Admin - Welfare
Office of Medical Services
Culture and recreation
Public Works (Parks and Recreation)
Education and economic opportunity
Community & Economic Development
School Superintendent
Debt Service - principal
- interest
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Total other financing uses
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Exhibit B - 1

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
$ 341,184 341,184 $ 343841 $ 2,657
3,524 3,524 3,263 (261)
163,052 163,052 173,772 10,720
37,675 37,675 39,099 1,424
3,611 3,611 3,281 (330)
923 923 1,788 865
4,542 4,542 5,268 726
554,511 554,511 570,312 15,801
8,727 8,727 7,062 1,665
2,600 2,600 2,237 363
10,975 10,975 10,553 422
1,599 1,599 1,571 28
101,989 101,989 55,244 46,745
23,686 23,686 23,755 (69)
3,849 3,849 2,975 874
8,814 8,814 8,701 113
24,466 24,466 24,464 2
32,846 32,846 32,211 635
26,005 26,005 22,721 3,284
5,577 5,577 4,728 849
32,225 32,225 32,301 (76)
1,759 1,759 1,718 41
2,601 2,601 2,243 358
153,783 153,783 149,018 4,765
649 649 553 96
1,421 1,421 1,289 132
3,949 3,949 4,492 (543)
58,105 58,105 58,285 (180)
45,169 45,169 37,622 7,547
18,534 18,534 18,610 (76)
13,257 13,257 11,801 1,456
1,752 1,752 1,865 (113)

944 944 944

54 54 54
585,335 585,335 517,017 68,318
(30,824) (30,824) 53,295 84,119
8 8
2,127 2,127 2,183 56
(61,978) (61,978) (59,580) 2,398
(59,851) (59,851) (57,389) 2,462
(90,675) (90,675) (4,094) 86,581
90,675 90,675 113,492 22,817
$ $ 109398 $ 109,398
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit B - 1
Notes to Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — General Fund
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 1- Budgeting and Budgetary Control

Avrizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) requires the County to prepare and adopt a balanced budget annually for
each governmental fund. The Board of Supervisors must approve such operating budgets on or before the
third Monday in July to allow sufficient time for the legal announcements and hearings required for the
adoption of the property tax levy on the third Monday in August. A.R.S. prohibits expenditures or
liabilities in excess of the amounts budgeted.

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department level. In certain instances, transfers
of appropriations between departments or from the contingency account to a department may be made
upon the Board of Supervisors’ approval. With the exception of the General Fund, Other Special Revenue,
and Other Special Revenue — Grants, each fund includes only one department.
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit B - 2
Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Cost-Sharing Pension Plans
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Arizona State Retirement System Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 thru
(2018) (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014) 2010
County’s proportion of the net pension liability 2.36% 2.41% 2.44% 2.51% 2.56%
County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 328,958 $ 375,197 $ 393174 $ 391,629 $ 379,139
County’s covered payroll $ 233,929 $ 235375 $ 228,129 $ 231,570 $ 229,907 Information
County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of its not available
covered payroll 140.62% 159.40% 172.35% 169.12% 164.91%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 73.40% 69.92% 67.06% 68.35% 69.49%
Corrections Officer Retirement Plan—Administrative Office of the Courts Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 thru
(2018) (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014) 2010
County’s proportion of the net pension liability 11.51% 11.95% 12.42% 12.45% 12.43%
County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 41436 $ 47,929 $ 35,046 $ 30274 $ 27,888
County’s covered payroll $ 13346 $ 13,400 $ 13,681 $ 13,857 $ 13114 Information
County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of its not available
covered payroll 310.48% 357.68% 256.17% 218.47% 212.66%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 53.72% 49.21% 54.81% 57.89% 58.59%
Elected Officials Retirement Plan Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 thru
(2018) (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014) 2010
County’s proportion of the net pension liability 10.24% 7.42% 7.90% 7.55% 7.64%
County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 64,495 $ 90,478 $ 74615 $ 59,037 $ 51,259
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the County 11,051 29,292 15,406 18,405 15,717
Total $ 75546 $ 119,770 $ 90,021 $ 77442 $ 66,976 Information
County’s covered payroll $ 6984 $ 7050 #$ 6617 $ 6301 § 6932  notavailable
County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of its
covered payroll 923.47% 1283.38% 1127.63% 923.75% 739.45%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 30.36% 19.66% 23.42% 28.32% 31.91%

See accompanying notes to pension schedules
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit B - 2
Schedule of Changes in the County's
Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Agent Pension Plans
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System - Sheriff Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 thru
Total pension liability (2018) (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014) 2010
Service cost $ 6,125 $ 8,078 $ 6,068 $ 6,421 6,346
Interest on the total pension liability 27,905 26,186 25,444 24,997 21,060
Changes of benefit terms 4,033 9,540 7,336
Differences between expected and actual experience in the
measurement of the pension liability (2,730) (1,177) (7,713) (4,579) (462)
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 12,797 12,356 34,338
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (21,357) (20,634) (22,727) (19,209) (17,811)
Net change in total pension liability 9,943 29,283 22,968 7,630 50,807
Total pension liability - beginning 384,706 355,423 332,455 324,825 274,018
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 394,649 $ 384,706 $ 355,423 $ 332,455 324,825
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 18,847 $ 16,871 $ 15122 $ 11,490 10,627 i
Contributions - employee 2,787 3,900 3,877 3,505 3,415 I ——
Net investment income 10,343 16,189 808 5,053 17,221
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (21,357) (20,634) (22,727) (19,209) (17,811)
Hall/Parker settlement (4,953)
Administrative expense (158) (144) (117) (124) (139)
Other changes (223) (238) (397) (148) (92)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 5,286 15,944 (3,434) 567 13,221
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 152,923 136,979 140,413 139,846 126,625
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 158,209 $ 152,923 $ 136,979 $ 140,413 139,846
County's net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 236,440 $ 231,783 $ 218,444 $ 192,042 184,979
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 40.09% 39.75% 38.54% 42.24% 43.05%
Covered payroll $ 29,261 $ 32,156 $ 30,384 $ 31515 31,543
County's net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 808.04% 720.81% 718.94% 609.37% 586.43%

See accompanying notes to pension schedules
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Corrections Officer Retirement Plan - Detention

Total pension liability

Service cost

Interest on the total pension liability

Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual experience in the
measurement of the pension liability

Changes of assumptions or other inputs

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions

Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer

Contributions - employee

Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense

Other changes

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

County's net pension liability - ending (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability
Covered payroll

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit B - 2
Schedule of Changes in the County's
Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Agent Pension Plans
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 thru
(2018) (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014) 2010
$ 3359 $ 3235 $ 2893 $ 2798 $ 2852
9,683 8,091 7,911 7,751 6,623
(7,525) 15,675 181 1,459
(2,679) (1,044) (1,930) (2,557) (609)
3,566 4,125 10,555
(6,741) (6,489) (6,013) (5,988) (6,975)
(3,903) 23,034 7,167 2,004 13,905
132,538 109,504 102,337 100,333 86,428
$ 128635 $ 132538 $ 109504 $ 102,337 $ 100,333
$ 5167 $ 4871 $ 4634 $ 3441 $ 2970 :

1,771 1,814 1,730 1,737 1,686 Information

3,970 5,953 302 1,765 6,030  Motavailable
(6,741) (6,489) (6,013) (5,988) (6,975)
(61) (52) (43) (44) (48)
(76) (38) (38) (69) 11
4,030 6,059 572 842 3,674
55,833 49,774 49,202 48,360 44,686
$ 59863 $ 55833 $ 49,774 $ 49202 $ 48,360
$ 68772 $ 76705 $ 59730 $ 53135 $ 51,973
46.54% 42.13% 45.45% 48.08% 48.20%
$ 20738 $ 21574 $ 20263 $ 20816 $ 20051
331.62% 355.54% 294.77% 255.26% 259.20%

County's net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll

See accompanying notes to pension schedules
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Arizona State Retirement System

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA

June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Schedule of County Pension Contributions

Reporting Fiscal Year

Exhibit B - 2

Statutorily required contribution

County’s contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution
County’s contribution deficiency (excess)

County’s covered payroll

County’s contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Corrections Officer Retirement Plan - Administrative Office of the Courts

Statutorily required contribution

County’s contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution
County's contribution deficiency (excess)

County’s covered payroll

County’s contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Elected Officials Retirement Plan

Statutorily required contribution

County’s contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution
County's contribution deficiency (excess)

County’s covered payroll

County’s contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Public Safety Personnel Retirement System - Sheriff

Actuarially determined contribution

County’s contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution
County’s contribution deficiency (excess)

County’s covered payroll

County’s contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Corrections Officer Retirement Plan - Detention

Actuarially determined contribution

County’s contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution
County’s contribution deficiency (excess)

County’s covered payroll

County’s contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 zo;gltgru
$ 26,908 $ 25552 $ 25,320 $ 24,752 $ 25218 $ 24,600
26,908 25,552 25,320 24,752 25,218 24,600 .
Information
not available
$ 241,159 $ 233,929 $ 235,375 $ 228,129 $ 231,570 $ 229,907
11.16% 10.92% 10.76% 10.85% 10.89% 10.70%
Reporting Fiscal Year
2013 thru
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2010
$ 4,258 $ 3,003 $ 2,691 $ 2,613 $ 2,062 $ 1,933
4,258 3,003 2,691 2,613 2,062 1,933 .
Information
t availabl
S 13470 S 13346 § 13400 S 13681 $ 13857 $ 13114 O ovanave
31.61% 22.50% 20.08% 19.10% 14.88% 14.74%
Reporting Fiscal Year
2013 thru
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2010
$ 4,168 $ 1,508 $ 1,566 $ 1,555 $ 1,502 $ 2,014
3,204 460 1,566 1,555 1,502 1,629 .
3 964 3 1023 Information
L t availabl
S 7246 $ 6984 § 7050 S 6617 $ 6391 $ 6o32 | olauae
44.22% 6.59% 22.21% 23.50% 23.50% 23.50%
Reporting Fiscal Year
2013 thr
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2010 !
$ 18,766 $ 18,771 $ 16,861 $ 15,119 $ 11,490 $ 10,627
18,766 14,407 16,861 15,119 11,490 10,627 Information
$ 4,364 not available
$ 29,862 $ 29,261 $ 32,156 $ 30,384 $ 31,515 $ 31,543
62.84% 49.24% 52.44% 49.76% 36.46% 33.69%
Reporting Fiscal Year
2013 thru
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2010
$ 6,515 $ 5,155 $ 4,872 $ 4,618 $ 3,441 $ 2,970
6,515 5,155 4,872 4,618 3,441 2,970 .
Information
not available
$ 21,342 $ 20,738 $ 21,574 $ 20,263 $ 20,816 $ 20,051
30.53% 24.86% 22.58% 22.79% 16.53% 14.81%

See accompanying notes to pension schedules
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit B - 2
Notes to Pension Plan Schedules
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Note 1 — Actuarially Determined Contribution Rates

Actuarial determined contribution rates for PSPRS and CORP are calculated as of June 30 two years prior to the end of
the fiscal year in which contributions are made. The actuarial methods and assumptions used to establish the
contribution requirements are as follows:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percent-of-pay, closed

Remaining amortization period as of 21 years for unfunded actuarial accrued liability, 20 years for excess
the 2017 actuarial valuation

Asset valuation method 7-year smoothed market value; 80% / 120% market corridor

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return PSPRS members with initial membership date before July 1, 2017, and
CORP members with initial membership date before July 1, 2018: in the
2017 actuarial valuation, the investment rate of return was decreased from
7.5% to 7.4%. In the 2016 actuarial valuation, the investment rate of
return was decreased from 7.85% to 7.5%. In the 2013 actuarial
valuation, the investment rate of return was decreased from 8.0% to
7.85%. PSPRS members with initial membership on or after July 1, 2017:
%

Projected salary increases In the 2017 actuarial valuation, projected salary increases were decreased
from 4.0%-8.0% to 3.5%-7.5% for PSPRS and from 4.0%-7.25% to
3.5%-6.5% for CORP. In the 2014 actuarial valuation, projected salary
increases were decreased from 4.5%-8.5% to 4.0%-8.0% for PSPRS and
from 4.5%-7.75% to 4.0%-7.25% for CORP. In the 2013 actuarial
valuation, projected salary increases were decreased from 5.0%-9.0% to
4.5%-8.5% for PSPRS and from 5.0%-8.25% to 4.5%—7.75% for CORP.

Wage growth In the 2017 actuarial valuation, wage growth was decreased from 4.0% to
3.5% for PSPRS and CORP. In the 2014 actuarial valuation, wage growth
was decreased from 4.5% to 4.0% for PSPRS and CORP. In the 2013
actuarial valuation, wage growth was decreased from 5.0% to 4.5% for
PSPRS and CORP.

Retirement age Experience-based table of rates that is specific to the type of eligibility
condition. Last updated for the 2012 valuation pursuant to an experience
study of the period July 1, 2006 - June 30, 2011.

Mortality In the 2017 actuarial valuation, changed to RP-2014 tables, with 75% of
MP-2016 fully generational projection scales. RP-2000 mortality table
(adjusted by 105% for both males and females)

Note 2 — Factors that affect trends

Arizona courts have ruled that provisions of a 2011 law that changed the mechanism for funding permanent pension
benefit increases and increased employee pension contribution rates were unconstitutional or a breach of contract
because those provisions apply to individuals who were members as of the law’s effective date. As a result, the PSPRS,

CORP, CORP-AQC, and EORP changed benefit terms to reflect the prior mechanism for funding permanent benefit
increases for those members and revised actuarial assumptions to explicitly value future permanent benefit increases.

PSPRS and EORP also reduced those members’ employee contribution rates. These changes are reflected in the plans’

pension liabilities for fiscal year 2015 (measurement date 2014) for members who were retired as of the law’s effective

date and fiscal year 2018 (measurement date 2017) for members who retired or will retire after the law’s effective date.

These changes also increased the PSPRS-, CORP-, and CORP-AQC- required pension contributions beginning in fiscal
year 2016 for members who were retired as of the law’s effective date. These changes increased the PSPRS-, CORP-, and
CORP-AOC-required contributions beginning in fiscal year 2019 for members who retired or will retire after the law’s

effective date. EORP-required contributions are not based on actuarial valuations, and therefore, these changes did not
affect them. Also, the County refunded excess employee contributions to PSPRS and EORP members. PSPRS and
EORP allowed the County to reduce its actual employer contributions for the refund amounts. As a result, the County’s
pension contributions were less than the actuarially or statutorily determined contributions for 2018 and 2019.

The fiscal year 2019 (measurement date 2018) pension liabilities for EORP and CORP reflect the replacement of the
permanent benefit increase (PBI) for retirees based on investment returns with a cost of living adjustment based on
inflation. Also, the EORP liability and required pension contributions for fiscal year 2019 reflect a statutory change that
requires the employer contribution rate to be actuarially determined. This change increased the discount rate used to
calculate the liability thereby reducing the total pension liability.
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OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (NONMAJOR)

Transportation Fund — to account for administrative and operating costs, as well as resources trans-
ferred to the Capital Projects Fund for construction of highways and streets. Financing is provided
primarily from the County share of gasoline and vehicle license taxes collected by the State.

Health Fund — to account for resources used to finance activities involved in the conservation and
Iimprovement of public health and animal care. Major sources of funding include Federal and State
grants, charges for services provided, and operating transfers from the General Fund.

Regional Flood Control District Fund — to account for amounts expended to protect persons and
property from floodwaters. Revenues are provided by secondary taxes on real property and govern-
ment grants. The Regional Flood Control District is a blended component unit of Pima County.

Other Special Revenue Fund — to account for resources specifically identified to be expended for
the various other programs of the County. These include various probation programs, consumer
protection programs, family support, antiracketeering programs, law library, etc. Revenues are pro-
vided by fines, intergovernmental revenues, fees and forfeitures, and charges for services.

Other Special Revenue Grants Fund — to account for Federal and State grants received by the Coun-
ty not required to be accounted for in a separate fund. Each grant has a specific project objective and
the grant funds must be used for a stated purpose.

Wireless Integrated Network Fund — to account for the design, procurement and deployment of a
regional public safety voice communications network to serve public and non-profit entities respon -
sible for providing public safety and emergency management services to the Pima County populace.

School Reserve Fund — to account for Federal and State grants received by the Superintendent of
Schools. Each grant has a specific project objective and the grant funds must be used for a stated
purpose.

Environmental Quality Fund — to account for resources specifically identified to be expended for
protection of water, air, and land from pollutants. Revenues are provided by fines, fees and forfeitures,
licenses, permits, and Federal and State grants.

Waste Tire Fund — to account for the state shared revenue tax for the tire recycling program.

Library District Fund — to account for the resources used for management and operation of the
Library District. Revenues are provided primarily by secondary taxes on real property. The Library
District is a blended component unit of Pima County.

Stadium District Fund — to account for resources specifically identified to be expended for the Sta-
dium District. Revenues are provided by the car rental, hotel/motel bed and recreation vehicle park
taxes, and charges for services provided. The Stadium District is a blended component unit of Pima
County.

Improvement & Other Districts Fund — to account for financial activity related to street lighting
and other improvements in unincorporated Pima County. The Improvement & Other Districts are a
blended component unit of Pima County.

Rocking K South CFD Fund — to account for the purchase of eligible infrastructure of the Rocking K
South master plan development through the issuance of bonds, and to fund the operation, mainte-
nance and administration of the District through the levy of ad valorem tax on property in the District.
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable (net)
Interest receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenditures
Loan receivable
Restricted cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Employee compensation
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Deposits and rebates
Interfund payable
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - intergovernmental
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Unavailable revenue - other

Total deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Special Revenue Funds

Regional Wireless
Flood Control Other Integrated
Transportation Health District Other Grants Network
$ 9,492 8,663 $ 11,295 $ 38,331 $ 4,857
94 503
15 15 16 67 5
32 193 408
5,430 1,153 5 857 8,229
267 214 60 1,127 1,708
1,289 116
34 55 29 248 217 10
1,631
$ 18,252 10,132 $ 11,908 $ 40,823 10,562 $ 4,988
$ 2,966 1,008 $ 447 $ 2,041 3,828 $ 45
10
283 331 91 423 308 17
16 126 1 3,882
15 1 4 3 92
2 3
3,100
1,633 4 1,344 1,855 102
4,915 1,466 545 3,814 9,886 3,356
251 764 5 61 4,666
92 389
193 10 11 372 163
536 774 405 433 4,829
5,451 2,240 950 4,247 14,715 3,356
1,323 55 29 248 217 126
11,478 7,837 10,929 25,859 1,506
3,700
6,769
(4,370)
12,801 7,892 10,958 36,576 (4,153) 1,632
$ 18,252 10,132 $ 11,908 $ 40,823 10,562 $ 4,988
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Exhibit C - 1

Special Revenue Funds Total
Other
School Environmental Waste Library Stadium Rocking K Improvement & Governmental
Reserve Quality Tire District District South CFD Other Districts Funds
$ 3,700 $ 1,870 $ 16,036 $ 2,138 $ 21 $ 85 $ 96,488
1,002 8 1,607
7 3 36 3 167
145 778
473 313 6 284 16,750
66 79 523 77 4,121
1,405
5 492 1,090
1,631
45 45
539 $ 3,791 $ 2,186 $ 18,140 $ 2,647 $ 21 $ 93 $ 124,082
59 $ 15 $ 276 $ 1,059 $ 266 $ 12,010
10
105 46 410 47 2,061
173 1 4,199
70 185
6
3,100
4 22 4,964
337 62 276 1,543 335 26,535
397 3 152 6,299
767 4 1,252
30 72 24 875
397 30 842 176 4 8,426
734 92 276 2,385 511 4 34,961
5 537 2,540
254 2,021 1,910 15,218 21 89 77,122
293 3,993
1,673 2,136 10,578
(742) (5,112)
(195) 3,699 1,910 15,755 2,136 21 89 89,121
539 $ 3,791 $ 2,186 $ 18,140 $ 2,647 $ 21 $ 93 $ 124,082
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Special Revenue Funds

Regional Wireless
Flood Control Other Integrated
Transportation Health District Other Grants Network
Revenues:
Property taxes 308 $ 25,133
Licenses and permits 1,339 3,193 1 $ 1
Intergovernmental 66,002 4,774 58 21,102 41,151
Charges for services 106 2,629 322 7,596 $ 3,089
Fines and forfeits 18 54 2 3,132
Investment earnings 216 152 245 712 36 48
Miscellaneous 685 586 138 9,659 3,756 68
Total revenues 68,674 11,388 25,899 42,202 44,943 3,205
Expenditures:
General government 30,425 6,287
Public safety 15,070 1,803 3,965 2,786
Highways and streets 39,925 28
Sanitation
Health 23,155 20 12,302
Culture and recreation 1,274 212
Education and economic opportunity 3,140 23,151
Debt service - principal 618
- interest 2
Total expenditures 39,925 23,155 15,070 37,282 45,945 2,786
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 28,749 (11,767) 10,829 4,920 (1,002) 419
Other financing sources (uses):
Installment note 170
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,435
Transfers in 1,761 13,583 6 4,191 3,443 44
Transfers (out) (45,471) (1,907) (9,018) (6,274) (3,147) (1,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (43,710) 11,676 (9,012) (478) 296 (956)
Net change in fund balances (14,961) 91) 1,817 4,442 (706) (537)
Fund balances at beginning of year 27,762 7,983 9,141 32,134 (3,447) 2,169
Fund balances at end of year 12,801 7,892 $ 10,958 $ 36,576 (4,153) $ 1,632
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Exhibit C - 2

Special Revenue Funds Total
Other
School Environmental Waste Library Stadium Rocking K Improvement & Governmental
Reserve Quality Tire District District South CFD Other Districts Funds
$ 42,773 $ 246 $ 68,460
$ 2,464 6,998
$ 1,990 1,281 290 $ 1,506 138,154
440 1,531 15,714
509 3,723
71 35 300 7 2 1,824
18 463 25 15,398
1,990 2,562 1,316 44,775 3,069 248 250,271
195 36,907
23,624
39,953
1,116 1,116
2,940 38,417
39,008 4,899 45,393
2,388 28,679
618
2
2,388 2,940 1,116 39,008 4,899 195 214,709
(398) (378) 200 5,767 (1,830) 53 35,562
170
1,435
735 8,506 32,269
(5,039) (1,053) (35) (72,944)
735 (5,039) 7,453 (35) (39,070)
(398) 357 200 728 5,623 18 (3,508)
203 3,342 1,710 15,027 (3,487) $ 21 71 92,629
$ (195) $ 3,699 1,910 $ 15,755 $ 2,136 $ 21 $ 89 $ 89,121
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Exhibit C - 3

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $ 20,904 $ 14,736 (6,168)

Charges for services 5,448 6,358 910

Investment earnings 370 3,079 2,709

Miscellaneous 1,270 309 (961)
Total revenues 27,992 24,482 (3,510)
Expenditures:

Capital outlay 164,329 118,275 46,054
Total expenditures 164,329 118,275 46,054
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (136,337) (93,793) 42,544
Other financing sources (uses):

Premium on bonds 3,560 3,560

Face amount of long-term debt issued 60,000 45,940 (14,060)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 233 233

Transfers in 60,035 46,954 (13,081)

Transfers (out) (11,762) (29,934) (18,172)
Total other financing sources 108,273 66,753 (41,520)
Net change in fund balance (28,064) (27,040) 1,024
Fund balance at beginning of year 43,197 146,381 103,184
Fund balance at end of year $ 15,133 $ 119,341 104,208

106



PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 4
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
Property taxes 56,958 $ 57,304 346
Intergovernmental 16 16
Investment earnings 245 873 628
Miscellaneous 5 5
Total revenues 57,203 58,198 995
Expenditures:
Debt service - principal 137,955 128,350 9,605
- interest 22,974 18,674 4,300
- miscellaneous 21 620 (599)
Total expenditures 160,950 147,644 13,306
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (103,747) (89,446) 14,301
Other financing sources:
Premium on bonds 3,149 3,149
Transfers in 102,960 88,138 (14,822)
Total other financing sources 102,960 91,287 (11,673)
Net change in fund balance (787) 1,841 2,628
Fund balance at beginning of year 5,363 5,004 (359)
Fund balance at end of year 4,576 $ 6,845 2,269
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 5
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Transportation - Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Budget Actual Variance

Revenues:

Property taxes $ 357 $ 308 (49)

Licenses and permits 1,307 1,339 32

Intergovernmental 62,171 66,002 3,831

Charges for services 197 106 (91)

Fines and forfeits 18 18

Investment earnings 45 216 171

Miscellaneous 203 685 482
Total revenues 64,280 68,674 4,394
Expenditures:

Highways and streets 43,449 39,925 3,524
Total expenditures 43,449 39,925 3,524
Excess of revenues over expenditures 20,831 28,749 7,918
Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Transfers in 1,696 1,761 65

Transfers (out) (46,378) (45,471) 907
Total other financing uses (44,682) (43,710) 972
Net change in fund balance (23,851) (14,961) 8,890
Fund balance at beginning of year 26,036 27,762 1,726
Fund balance at end of year $ 2,185 $ 12,801 10,616
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 6
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Health - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

Licenses and permits $ 2,684 $ 3,193 $ 509

Intergovernmental 4,693 4,774 81

Charges for services 2,883 2,629 (254)

Fines and forfeits 49 54 5

Investment earnings 5 152 147

Miscellaneous 1,033 586 (447)
Total revenues 11,347 11,388 41
Expenditures:

Health 25,517 23,155 2,362
Total expenditures 25,517 23,155 2,362
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (14,170) (11,767) 2,403
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 13,089 13,583 494

Transfers (out) (2,875) (1,907) 968
Total other financing sources 10,214 11,676 1,462
Net change in fund balance (3,956) (91) 3,865
Fund balance at beginning of year 4,464 7,983 3,519
Fund balance at end of year $ 508 $ 7,892 $ 7,384
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 7
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Regional Flood Control District - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

Property taxes 25,017 25,133 116

Licenses and permits 1 1

Intergovernmental 50 58 8

Charges for services 1,072 322 (750)

Fines and forfeits 2 2

Investment earnings 45 245 200

Miscellaneous 89 138 49
Total revenues 26,276 25,899 (377)
Expenditures:

Flood control 16,914 15,070 1,844
Total expenditures 16,914 15,070 1,844
Excess of revenues over expenditures 9,362 10,829 1,467
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 18 6 (12)

Transfers (out) (9,389) (9,018) 371
Total other financing uses (9,371) (9,012) 359
Net change in fund balance 9) 1,817 1,826
Fund balance at beginning of year 7,574 9,141 1,567
Fund balance at end of year 7,565 10,958 3,393
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Other - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(in thousands)

Revenues:
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Health
Culture and recreation
Education and economic opportunity
Debt service - principal
- interest
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Installment note
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total other financing uses

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year
Fund balance at end of year

Exhibit C - 8

Budget Actual Variance
$ 1 1
26,557 21,102 (5,455)
6,795 7,596 801
3,274 3,132 (142)
213 712 499
8,489 9,659 1,170
45,328 42,202 (3,126)
44,415 30,425 13,990
5,697 1,803 3,894
65 20 45
2,013 1,274 739
3,842 3,140 702
605 618 (13)
2 (2)
56,637 37,282 19,355
(11,309) 4,920 16,229
170 170
1,435 1,435
2,609 4,191 1,582
(7,557) (6,274) 1,283
(4,948) (478) 4,470
(16,257) 4,442 20,699
19,025 32,134 13,109
2,768 $ 36,576 33,808
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Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
County Administration
Clerk of the Court
Community Development
Community Services
County Attorney
Elections
Environmental Quality
Finance
Flood Control
Forensic Sciences Center
Grants Management & Innovation
Health
Justice Court
Juvenile Court
Natural Resources, Parks and Recreation
Office of Emergency Management
Office of Sustainability and Conservation
Pima Animal Care
Public Works Administration
Sheriff
Superior Court
Transportation
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year
Fund balance at end of year

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 9
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Other Grants - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Budget Actual Variance
61,290 41,151 (20,139)
9 36 27
4,454 3,756 (698)
65,753 44,943 (20,810)
2,548 1,468 1,080
26 22 4
6,914 3,870 3,044
16,935 18,851 (1,916)
4,514 2,714 1,800
54 32 22
1,038 928 110
6,060 169 5,891
31 (31)
50 (50)
1,250 429 821
10,925 10,417 508
9 1 8
1,311 805 506
186 212 (26)
1,170 1,115 55
42 (42)
1,831 907 924
14 (14)
5,041 2,820 2,221
988 1,020 (32)
240 28 212
61,040 45,945 15,095
4,713 (1,002) (5,715)
5,103 3,443 (1,660)
(15,345) (3,147) 12,198
(10,242) 296 10,538
(5,529) (706) 4,823
(12,622) (3,447) 9,175
(18,151) (4,153) 13,998
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 10
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Wireless Integrated Network - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

Charges for services 2,997 3,089 3 92

Investment earnings 10 48 38

Miscellaneous 69 68 1)
Total revenues 3,076 3,205 129
Expenditures:

Public safety 3,024 2,786 238
Total expenditures 3,024 2,786 238
Excess of revenues over expenditures 52 419 367
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 44 44

Transfers (out) (1,000) (1,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 44 (956) (1,000)
Net change in fund balance 96 (537) (633)
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,830 2,169 339
Fund balance at end of year 1,926 1,632 $ (294)
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 11
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
School Reserve - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $ 1,669 $ 1,990 $ 321
Total revenues 1,669 1,990 321
Expenditures:

School Reserve grants 1,669 2,388 (719)
Total expenditures 1,669 2,388 (719)
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (398) (398)
Net change in fund balance (398) (398)
Fund balance at beginning of year 821 203 (618)
Fund balance at end of year $ 821 $ (195) $ (1,016)
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Revenues:
Licenses and permits

Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Environmental Quality
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures
Other financing sources
Transfers in
Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year
Fund balance at end of year

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 12
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Environmental Quality - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Budget Actual Variance
2,246 $ 2,464 218
1 1
8 8
23 71 48
27 18 (9)
2,296 2,562 266
3,503 2,940 563
3,503 2,940 563
(1,207) (378) 829
710 735 25
710 735 25
(497) 357 854
2,848 3,342 494
2,351 $ 3,699 1,348
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 13
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Waste Tire - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $ 1,274 $ 1,281 $ 7

Investment earnings 14 35 21
Total revenues 1,288 1,316 28
Expenditures:

Sanitation 1,308 1,116 192
Total expenditures 1,308 1,116 192
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (20) 200 220
Net change in fund balance (20) 200 220
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,636 1,710 74
Fund balance at end of year $ 1,616 $ 1,910 $ 294
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 14
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Library District - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(in thousands)

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

Property taxes $ 42,511 $ 42,773 $ 262

Intergovernmental 208 290 82

Charges for services 400 440 40

Fines and forfeits 600 509 (91)

Investment earnings 85 300 215

Miscellaneous 558 463 (95)
Total revenues 44,362 44,775 413
Expenditures:

Culture and recreation 42,781 39,008 3,773
Total expenditures 42,781 39,008 3,773
Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,581 5,767 4,186
Other financing uses:

Transfers (out) (4,994) (5,039) (45)
Total other financing uses (4,994) (5,039) (45)
Net change in fund balance (3,413) 728 4,141
Fund balance at beginning of year 12,062 15,027 2,965
Fund balance at end of year 8,649 $ 15,755 $ 7,106
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Stadium District - Special Revenue Fund

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Culture and recreation
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in

Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year
Fund balance at end of year

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Exhib

itC-15

Budget Actual Variance

1,480 1,506 $ 26
910 1,531 621

5 7 2

25 25

2,395 3,069 674
5,164 4,899 265
5,164 4,899 265
(2,769) (1,830) 939
8,493 8,506 13
(940) (1,053) (113)
7,653 7,453 (100)
4,784 5,623 839
(3,911) (3,487) 424
873 2,136 $ 1,263
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 16
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Rocking K South CFD - Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

Property taxes

Investment earnings

Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:

Education and economic opportunity $ 100 $ 100
Total expenditures 100 100
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (100) 100
Other financing sources:

Proceeds from sale of debt 100 (100)
Total other financing sources 100 (100)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year 79 $ 21 (58)
Fund balance at end of year $ 79 $ 21 $ (58)
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 17
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Improvement and Other Districts - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

Property taxes $ 232 $ 246 $ 14

Investment earnings 2 2
Total revenues 232 248 16
Expenditures:

General government 247 195 52
Total expenditures 247 195 52
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (15) 53 68
Other financing uses:

Transfers (out) (35) (35)
Total other financing uses (35) (35)
Net change in fund balance (15) 18 33
Fund balance at beginning of year 71 71
Fund balance at end of year $ (15) $ 89 $ 104
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OTHER (NONMAJOR) ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Development Services — to account for the operations of providing zoning permits, enforcing ordi-
nances in compliance with state statutes, and administering uniform building codes.

Parking Garages — to account for the management and operation of seven public parking garages
located in downtown Tucson.



PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 18
Combining Statement of Net Position
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Total
Nonmajor
Development Parking Enterprise
Services Garages Funds
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,293 $ 1,802 $ 8,095
Interest receivable 10 3 13
Due from other funds 32 32
Due from other governments 4 4
Accounts receivable 110 44 154
Prepaid expense 12 12
Total current assets 6,457 1,853 8,310
Noncurrent assets:
Net OPEB asset 12 1 13
Capital assets:
Land 1,768 1,768
Buildings and improvements 27,608 27,608
Equipment 2,152 2,152
Less accumulated depreciation (12,676) (12,676)
Total capital assets (net) 18,852 18,852
Total noncurrent assets 12 18,853 18,865
Total assets 6,469 20,706 27,175
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension/OPEB 652 43 695
Total deferred outflows of resources 652 43 695
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 59 299 358
Employee compensation 82 4 86
Due to other governments 86 86
Unearned revenue 1 1
Compensated absences payable 280 7 287
Total current liabilities 421 397 818
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences payable 143 143
Net Pension/OPEB liability 4,472 296 4,768
Total noncurrent liabilities 4,615 296 4911
Total liabilities 5,036 693 5,729
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension/OPEB 665 44 709
Total deferred inflows of resources 665 44 709
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 18,852 18,852
Unrestricted 1,420 1,160 2,580
Total net position $ 1,420 $ 20,012 $ 21,432
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 19
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position
Nonmajor Enterprise Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Total
Nonmajor
Development Parking Enterprise
Services Garages Funds

Operating revenues:

Charges for services $ 8,859 $ 2,605 $ 11,464

Other 12 16 28
Total operating revenues 8,871 2,621 11,492
Operating expenses:

Employee compensation 3,814 394 4,208

Operating supplies and services 26 96 122

Repair and maintenance 4 238 242

General and administrative 2,136 1,295 3,431

Consultants and professional services 207 136 343

Depreciation 799 799
Total operating expenses 6,187 2,958 9,145
Operating income (loss) 2,684 (337) 2,347
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment earnings 176 34 210

Loss on disposal of capital assets (5) (5)
Total nonoperating revenues 176 29 205
Income (loss) before transfers 2,860 (308) 2,552
Transfers (out) (1,265) (640) (1,905)
Change in net position 1,595 (948) 647
Net position at beginning of year (175) 20,960 20,785
Net position at end of year $ 1,420 $ 20,012 $ 21,432
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers for goods and services provided $

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to other funds for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash transfers out to other funds
Loans with other funds

Net cash used for noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on cash and investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 20
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Total
Nonmajor
Development Parking Enterprise
Services Garages Funds
8,870 $ 2,600 $ 11,470
(323) (1,608) (1,931)
(2,055) (161) (2,216)
(4,302) (391) (4,693)
2,190 440 2,630
(1,265) (640) (1,905)
(9) 9)
(1,274) (640) (1,914)
O] @)
O] @)
175 34 209
175 34 209
1,091 (167) 924
5,202 1,969 7,171
$ 6,293 $ 1,802 $ 8,095

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

(continued)
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 20.1
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

(continued)

Total
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net Nonmajor
cash provided by operating activities Development Parking Enterprise
Services Garages Funds
Operating income (loss) $ 2,684 $ (337) $ 2,347
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 799 799
Changes in assets and deferred outflows of resources:
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable @ (12) (13)
Due from other governments 4 (@)
Inventory and other assets
Prepaid expense 3) 3
Net OPEB asset 6 6
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources:
Pension/OPEB plans (16) (6) (22)
Changes in liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 2 (38) (40)
Due to other governments 34 34
Net Pension/OPEB liability (732) 3) (735)
Other liabilities 38 (11) 27
Increase in deferred inflows of resources:
Pension/OPEB plans 216 18 234
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,190 $ 440 $ 2,630

Noncash investing, capital, and noncapital financing activities during the year ended June 30, 2019:
Development Services Fund donated a fully depreciated capital asset with an original cost of $18.

Parking Garages Fund disposed of capital assets with a net book value of $4.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Self Insurance Trust Fund — to account for the risk management function of the County. The Fund
provides self insurance coverage to the County for medical malpractice, workers' compensation,
unemployment, general liability, environmental liability, and property damage as well as acquiring
coverage for other risks.

Fleet Services — to account for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of fleet services equip-
ment provided to County departments.

Health Benefit Trust Fund — to account for health care and health-related benefits. The Fund isre-
sponsible for collecting employer and employee premiums through payroll deductions, and for the
payment of claims. The premiums collected include amounts paid for medical, dental, vision, short-
term disability and life insurance coverages.

Other Internal Service — to account for the provision of technology infrastructure, telecommunica-
tion services, and procurement of software and hardware resources utilized by County departments.



Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable
Due from other governments
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expense
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Net OPEB asset
Capital assets:
Land

Buildings and improvements

Equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Construction in progress
Total capital assets (net)
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Pension/OPEB

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts retention
Employee compensation
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Reported but unpaid losses

Incurred but not reported losses

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences payable

Reported but unpaid losses

Incurred but not reported losses

Net Pension/OPEB liability
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Pension/OPEB

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for healthcare
Unrestricted

Total net position

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 21
Combining Statements of Net Position
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Total
Self- Health Other Internal
Insurance Fleet Benefit Internal Service
Trust Services Trust Service Funds
$ 82,152 $ 217,257 36,085 $ 12,483 $ 157,977
31 8 22 21 82
6 6
25 39 877 6 947
622 253 875
843 35 44 8,728 9,650
83,051 27,961 37,028 21,497 169,537
4 9 2 15 30
449 449
23,011 224 23,235
218 51,226 17,289 68,733
(181) (28,508) (9,023) (37,712)
8 8
486 45,737 8,490 54,713
490 45,746 2 8,505 54,743
83,541 73,707 37,030 30,002 224,280
230 484 116 1,192 2,022
230 484 116 1,192 2,022
545 1,133 450 4,287 6,415
57 57
19 63 161 110 353
3 29 1 33
1 1
61 178 43 326 608
3,232 713 3,945
2,730 4,039 6,769
6,590 1,460 5,407 4,724 18,181
42 183 225
14,281 7 14,288
13,566 41 13,607
1,578 3,321 789 5,918 11,606
29,425 3,363 837 6,101 39,726
36,015 4,823 6,244 10,825 57,907
235 494 117 881 1,727
235 494 117 881 1,727
486 45,737 8,490 54,713
30,785 30,785
47,035 23,137 10,998 81,170
$ 47,521 $ 68,874 30,785 $ 19,488 $ 166,668
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Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Employee compensation
Operating supplies and services
Incurred losses
Insurance premiums
General and administrative
Repair and maintenance
Consultants and professional services
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment earnings
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Capital contributions

Transfers in

Transfers (out)

Change in net position

Net position at beginning of year

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 22
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Total
Self- Health Other Internal
Insurance Fleet Benefit Internal Service
Trust Services Trust Service Funds
$ 15,732 $ 20,083 $ 57,141 $ 28,254 $ 121,210
257 294 3,895 84 4,530
15,989 20,377 61,036 28,338 125,740
1,693 3,175 903 8,030 13,801
253 5,200 25 8,154 13,632
5,262 57,486 62,748
3,838 1,166 5,123 27 10,154
1,558 1,707 672 7,245 11,182
342 698 2,188 3,228
1,059 83 2,743 2,808 6,693
6 5,113 1,656 6,775
14,011 17,142 66,952 30,108 128,213
1,978 3,235 (5,916) (1,770) (2,473)
2,453 851 1,243 179 4,726
68 (107) (39)
2,453 919 1,243 72 4,687
4,431 4,154 (4,673) (1,698) 2,214
5 5
75 7,788 7,863
(734) (2,351) 9) (3,094)
3,697 1,883 (4,673) 6,081 6,988
43,824 66,991 35,458 13,407 159,680
$ 47,521 $ 68,874 $ 30,785 $ 19,488 $ 166,668

Net position at end of year
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 23
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Total
Self- Health Other Internal
Insurance Fleet Benefit Internal Service
Trust Services Trust Service Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from other funds for goods and services provided $ 15,732 $ 20,083 $ 57,141 $ 28,254 $ 121,210

Cash received from miscellaneous operations 241 282 3,073 372 3,968

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (5,465) (7,221) (7,656) (18,685) (39,027)

Cash payments to other funds for goods and services (1,482) (2,384) (639) (1,379) (5,884)

Cash payments for incurred losses (6,510) (57,186) (63,696)

Cash payments to employees for services (1,871) (3,339) (946) (6,165) (12,321)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 645 7,421 (6,213) 2,397 4,250
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Cash transfers in from other funds 7,788 7,788

Cash transfers out to other funds (837) (2,272) ) (3,118)

Loans with other funds (4) (4)
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities (837) (2,272) 7,775 4,666
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 371 371

Purchase of capital assets (9) (7,305) (1,767) (9,081)
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (9) (6,934) (1,767) (8,710)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received on cash and investments 2,455 853 1,248 166 4,722
Net cash provided by investing activities 2,455 853 1,248 166 4,722
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,254 (932) (4,965) 8,571 4,928
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 79,898 28,189 41,050 3,912 153,049
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 82,152 $ 27,257 $ 36,085 $ 12,483 $ 157,977

(continued)
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 23.1
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

(continued)

Total
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net Self- Health Other Internal
cash provided by (used for) operating activities Insurance Fleet Benefit Internal Service
Trust Services Trust Service Funds
Operating income (loss) $ 1,978 $ 3,235 $ (5,916) $ (1,770) $ (2,473)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 6 5,113 1,656 6,775
Changes in assets and deferred outflows of resources:
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable (16) (12) (822) 287 (563)
Due from other governments
Inventory and other assets ()] 68 61
Prepaid expense (58) (21) (31) 1,153 1,043
Net OPEB assets 2 4 2 6 14
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows of resources:
Pension/OPEB plans (10) (45) 7 1,523 1,475
Changes in liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 160 (752) 298 (863) (1,157)
Due to other governments 3 29 1 33
Reported but unpaid losses (3,589) 45 (3,544)
Incurred but not reported losses 2,341 255 2,596
Net pension/OPEB liability (219) (273) (222) (109) (823)
Other liabilities (33) (34) 140 86 159
Increase in deferred inflows of resources:
Pension/OPEB plans 80 184 30 360 654
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 645 $ 7,421 $ (6,213) $ 2,397 $ 4,250

Noncash investing, capital, and noncapital financing activities during the year ended June 30, 2019:
Fleet Services sold capital assets with a net book value of $303.

Other Internal Service disposed of capital assets with a net book value of $101 and transferred out to General Government capital
assets with a net book value of $6.
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable

Total assets
Liabilities
Total liabilities

Net position
Held in trust for pool participants

Exhibit C - 24
Investment Trust Funds
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Total
Treasurer's Individual Investment
Investment Investment Trust
Pool Accounts Funds
$ 55,384 $ 128,235 $ 183,619
164 164
$ 55,548 $ 128,235 $ 183,783
$ 55,548 $ 128,235 $ 183,783
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 25
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Investment Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Total
Treasurer's Individual Investment
Investment Investment Trust
Pool Accounts Funds
Additions
Contributions from participants $ 1,842,531 $ 158,701 $ 2,001,232
Total contributions 1,842,531 158,701 2,001,232
Investment earnings 2,579 2,866 5,445
Total investment earnings 2,579 2,866 5,445
Total additions 1,845,110 161,567 2,006,677
Deductions
Distributions to participants 1,862,491 132,834 1,995,325
Total deductions 1,862,491 132,834 1,995,325
Change in net position (17,381) 28,733 11,352
Net position held in trust July 1, 2018 72,929 99,502 172,431
Net position held in trust June 30, 2019 $ 55,548 $ 128,235 $ 183,783
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governments

Total assets

Liabilities

Employee compensation
Due to other governments
Deposits and rebates

Total liabilities

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 26
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Agency Funds
June 30, 2019
(in thousands)
Payroll Treasurer's
Clearing Clearing Other Total
$ 1,969 4,198 $ 67,393 $ 73,560
1,124 1,124
1,969 5,322 67,393 74,684
1,969 1,969
55,362 55,362
5,322 12,031 17,353
$ 1,969 5,322 $ 67,393 $ 74,684
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit C - 27
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Balance Balance
Payroll Clearing 6/30/2018 Additions Deductions 6/30/2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,869 $ 298,123 $ 299,023 $ 1,969
Total assets 2,869 298,123 299,023 1,969
Liabilities
Employee compensation 2,869 298,123 299,023 1,969
Total liabilities 2,869 298,123 299,023 1,969
Treasurer's Clearing
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,287 1,809,831 1,809,920 4,198
Due from other governments 1,611 487 1,124
Total assets 5,898 1,809,831 1,810,407 5,322
Liabilities
Due to other governments 1,218,409 1,218,409
Deposits and rebates 5,898 591,422 591,998 5,322
Total liabilities 5,898 1,809,831 1,810,407 5,322
Other
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 78,153 235,928 246,688 67,393
Total assets 78,153 235,928 246,688 67,393
Liabilities
Due to other governments 56,613 198,347 199,598 55,362
Deposits and rebates 21,540 37,581 47,090 12,031
Total liabilities 78,153 235,928 246,688 67,393
Totals - All Agency Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 85,309 2,343,882 2,355,631 73,560
Due from other governments 1,611 487 1,124
Total assets 86,920 2,343,882 2,356,118 74,684
Liabilities
Employee compensation 2,869 298,123 299,023 1,969
Due to other governments 56,613 1,416,756 1,418,007 55,362
Deposits and rebates 27,438 629,003 639,088 17,353
Total liabilities $ 86,920 $ 2,343,882 $ 2,356,118 $ 74,684
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STATISTICAL SECTION

Financial Trends — The financial trends schedules are intended to provide users with
Information to assist them in understanding and assessing how a government's financial
position has changed over time. Financial trends information is considered to be a primary
source of the historical perspective that helps users comprehend the direction in which a
government'seconomicconditionisheading. [talsoservesthepurposeofgivingusersaform
of information that is among their most highly valued, comparative information over time.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

REVENUE CAPACITY:

The revenue capacity information is intended to assist users to understand and assess the factors
affecting a government's ability to generate its own-source revenues. The presentation here is not
limited to property tax revenues, but certain other revenues are presented to comply with debt dis-
closure requirements, e.g., hotel taxes, car rental taxes, and street and highway revenues.






S - auqyxg

Wwawabeue|A Ysiy 79 aoueul4 AUN0D ewid

:921N0S

"aneA passasse Jo 0OTS Jad aue seres xe| ‘Ausdoud Je1osswiwiod 104 usdlad anly-Ausmy 01 Ausdoud
[eluapIsal 10} JuadJad Ua) WOy paLieA sey eyl oljel Juswssasse ue BulAjdiinw Aq 1e paALLe SI anjeA passasse ajgexe) ayl ‘sadA1 Auadoid [enpiaipul
Jo} ainje|siBal ayp Ag 18S aJe SOI1e) JUBWISSASSY "UOIINIISUOD a1elS ayl Ag palolilsal ate ulalayl sebueyd jenuue pue saxe] Alewlid 1o} Siseq ayl aJe
sanjeA ay ] "anuanay Jo awledag BUOZINY 8y} J0 10SSassy Aluno) ayi Jaylie Aq 18s Bulaq sanfeA yum Ajjenuue passasse si AJunod ewld ul Auadoid

'S310N
%0T°0T 1G9'Tv1'98 ¥109°'S 796'62.'8 8T¥'19 GeL'TTE ¥09'8¥6'G 102'80¥'¢C 6T0¢
%.0°0T v8e'ar. '8 G299'S £68'cee's 7€8'65 8lz'eee 795'7€9'S 122'91€'¢C 8T0¢
%¥0°0T 006'6517'08 €rc09 8G66'7.0'8 TT9'GS 220'Tee vrL'vle'S 08G'¢cee'e LT0¢
%166 GrE'116'8. 2¢G88'S 00.'918'.L 9€G°2S 660'GYE ¥99'2/1'S T0S'9v2'C 9T0¢
%96'6 ¥59'6817'9. 2€96'S 19€'029°, 98€'2S €0'G8e 161'2S6'V G/T'0EC'C GT0¢
%TT0T 288'201'v. 6€9.°S 281'81S', 060'6% 1G8'/0% 219'28.L'y 726'80€'C ¥10¢
%cCE0T €0.292'c. 60€T'S AN Z1e'18 196'62Y T88'T0L'Y 696'G/E'C €10¢
%T9°0T T¥9'G80'9/ 0¢s8'v 8€6'€.0'8 092'0S 89G'C.Y 018'9€0'S 0TEYTS'C ¢10¢
%S9°0T 802'9¢0'8. T6V8'Y 02T'0TE'8 786'6¢ 9€8'009 809'cee’S 269'9¢v'C T10¢
%98°0T GTZ'8vE'?28 $ 869V /79'6€6'8 $ /6.'6E $ 8G6°'9ES $ 2/59'688'G $ oce'ere $ 0T0¢

anfeA pauwi Jo aneA arey el anjeA 18410 pueT] Auadoid Auadoid Jea A Xel

abejuaiad e se pajwi 109110 passassy 1URIBA [enuapisay [e10JaWWo)

anfe/\ pPassassy pajewnsy [e101 a|qexe

(spuesnouys ul)

SIea A Xe] Ua] 1se]
Auadoid Jo anfeA [enioy parewns3 pue anje passassy ajqexel
VNOZIYV ‘ALNNOD VINId

138



swabeue|A YsIy 79 8oueUl4 AUNoD ewid
1321005

'SBWOY ]IGOW Painassun 0} Ajuo saijdde AAs| UOIEIO[SY BWOH BIIGOIN,
"siseq 8108 Jad B UO PBIAJ] 818 UMOUS Sael Xe} SPLIsIQ uonebiul,
‘Auiadoud [eal 0] Ajuo saljdde AAa| xe] 19113S1Q |0AU0D POOj4 AlUN0D ewlid 8y e

‘uMoys Jou si (Siseq ssauisng-1ad e uo) AAs| 101S1Q JuBWaA0Idw| ssauIsng uosan] ayL
‘xe} Auadoud e AAs| Ajlualind Jou op ellJenyes pue AsjjeA 01O ‘BUeJBIAl JO SUMO 8yl ‘suonaipsin( Burxel Jayio o spreoq Buiuianob ay Jo siosiaIadng Jo preog Aunod ayl Ag 18s aJe (anfen passasse 1au Jo 0OTS Jad) salel xe) Alepuodas pue Atewlid

139

:S310N
0008C 0008C 000€'€ 000€°0 0008¢C 00000 000562 0000°€ 00S€'6T 00vT°0 8vC6'LT YeVC0 0T8ET 8GLET 9957°'0 00000 6102
0008'¢ 000€'0 000€'€ 000€'0 0ovv'e 00000 00008 0000°€ 00SE'6T 0010 12T€'ST 21820 6T81'T €86E'T wivo 00000 8T0¢
000€°0 000€°0 000€'€ 000€°0 0008¢C 00000 0000°52 0000°€ 00S€'6T 00vT°0 S0SyCT 1820 reEr'T 068€'T G/87°'0 00000 1102
000€'0 000€'0 000€'€ 000€'0 0008¢ 00000 0000°SL 0000°€ 00SE'6T 00vT1°0 ¥8EY'CT 82620 286G'T €ELET 0T0S'0 00000 9T0¢
000€°0 000€°0 000€°€ 000€°0 0008¢C 00050 0000°CL 0000°€ 00S€'6T 00vT°0 SyeeetT 82520 096S°T 689€'T 5050 00000 ST0C
000€'0 000€'0 000€'€ 000€'0 0008¢ 00050 000069 0000°€ 00SE'6T 0010 18.0°CT 82620 9091'T Yree'T 68050 00000 ¥10¢
000€°0 000€°0 000€'€ 000€°0 0008¢C 00050 000069 0000°€ 00S€'6T 00vT°0 006T°0T 9/16C Y0EY'T €€6CT €215°0 00000 €10¢
000€'0 000€'0 000€'€ 000€'0 0008¢ 00050 000099 0000°€ 00SE'6T 000T°0 8€09'6 0v9L'¢ 6€9¢'T wiTT LTLV'0 00000 (4104
000€°0 000€°0 000€'€ 000€°0 0008¢C 00050 000099 0000°€ 00S€'6T 000T°0 €099°C T29TT ¥60T'T 6G¢7°'0 00000 1102
000€'0 000€'0 000€'€ 000€'0 0008¢ 000099 0000°€ 00SE'6T 000T°0 66610 09560 8780'T ¥9G€°0 00000 0T0C
101081a 0sIa sanf1oe 1010s1a 1010s1a 0msia Jousia Jousia Jousia Aousia 01sIa 0USIQ UosoNL  uosanL 0VLISIA BUBISISSY  BUOZLY IEEN
Ssa|Ioe Aunwwo) SaI)|19e Sal|1oe sanijoe4 uoneso|dy  uonebul| uonebi| uonefi]  uoneasssuod  Bunyb]  yinos o 10 aba)j0D uolyeanp3 10 Xe|
Aunwwo) 11 aseyd Aunwwo) Aunwwo) Aunwwo) awoH BUBIRIA [[ELIENIS SlIaM BEITYY JEENIS A1D Ao Aunwwo)d arIS
sbunds osenbes  suie4 usppe| 3891 [rend)  swired IgJepueA Swile4 Usppe| 3JIqoN -0Je10D Buimolq ZV [elua)

sayey buiddejiano

¥109'S 0EY00 €GES0 GEEE0 00690 9666°€ 6102
§259°'S Tv70°0 €GTS0 GEEE0 00690 96907 810¢
€209 65700 €605°0 GETE0 0000 965Y'Y 1102
2588°'S 89%0°0 €GTS0 GEEE0 00020 968¢ 7 910¢
2€96°S L9v0°0 €G15°0 GETE0 0000 L18EY G102
6€9L°S 2Ly00 €GEY°0 SE0E0 00020 6LLCY ¥10C
60€ET'S 96700 €6/€°0 G€9C°0 0080 G999°¢ €10¢
02587 Lyv0°0 09%€°0 SE92°0 008L°0 8LTY'E 2102
168V 8100 09t€0 G€9C°0 0080 8LIV'€ T10C
86,97 0Ev0°0 00TE0 S€92°0 00S.°0 €ETEE 0T0C
|e10] 0UBISISSY 11s1g Jomsid  Arepuodas Arewid IR

1IsIg Areiqi 10u0D Auno) Auno) xe]

all4 Aunod pool4

sarey 10941 Alunod

(anfen passasse o 0OT$ Jad)
sajey xe| Auadoid Buiddejiang pue 19a11Q
VNOZIYV ‘ALNNOD VNI




wiswiabeue MSIY 79 soueUI4 AUNoD ewid

:30IN0S

“BunoLisip [00yds [ewio} Jo Lied Jou AJUN0D ewild UIYIM seale [ealydeBioal asoyy 0} saidde AjuQ 1o1isI@ uomeanp3 AunoDd,

'S3J0N

5681 6,967 v€20'C £€6.0C 1160C €2ITC G921'Z G856'T 789.°T L6.7'T Jpaziuebioun
G085'G 7586'G 8ELL'G 1586'G 7819, T8€L'9 91929 GSEY'9 61959 0052'9 (16#) Areyuswa|3 As|len Jeyvy
rieL £589'8 £€589'8 ¥196'8 1065 TTLLY 00287 86T6'G 0£92°9 6890°L (vv#) Areyuswa|3 uoibulpsy
68./€C 1€05°C 16672 92972 2159°C 19T 12001 62/S°T 85202 G769'T (6€#) Arejuswis|3 [e3uBUNLOD
€v9L'e 7887°9 T20V'S €9EV'C L191T 189T°C 182T'T v8vre'T T€5L°C G6T6'C (Le#) Arewuawia)g anndwig
180€'C SYIEY €005 9z8r'y 8€56'G v728's T€8L°G TEE0'Y TYS8'Y €889°€ (Ge#) Areyusws)|3 opueusad ues
zTi8'L over'8 66€0'6 0L9€'L 1v82'L G887'L T7€9°9 €815'S L90V'S €6/5'9 (0e#) paiun erenyes
651, EV9T'L 0£92'L €250°L 68T0°L 000€°L €0.T'L 0216'S 05597 6£88'7 (0z#) Areyuswia|3 J1eA
EV66'Y FAXARS 7999'G £686'G G866’ 990L'% v928'Yy LR G602 ySTZY (9T#) payIuN 11400 eulfered
TLIEY G8SS'Y L0TLY €19L 0vSSy 2578y 7888'€ 8EES'E 0v.9'S 69067 (§T#) panyiun ol
v16€°G 0STV'S v1GL'G 62€2'S 690€'S 62€0°G Z100°G 8eST'v Zv08'€ GYSE'E (eT#) pauyiun apJsA anbue
600€'S 9£99'G 600L'G 8675'S 1866'€ ¥9€0'9 €000°G ¥STE'9 GT76'9 0896'9 (z1#) paun apishuung
LOSY'S 616V'S T1€9'S LT67'S G219'S 7708'S 9226'G 6555'S ee0v's T1S0°S (0T#) paiun Jeresynydwy
6£58°9 0988'9 6529 11689 26299 GET9'9 rTL9 8116'G 6896'G 10v0°9 (8#) parjun siioMm Butmol4
0598'G 07809 VEET'9 T/8€9 0/€€9 88229 G800°9 €985°G LY0Z'S G669 (9#) paiylun eueIR
82€€°9 ¥G5G'9 81269 8GeT'L Geve'L 605", 6IEY'L L81E°L 08769 91629 (T#) parjiun uosony
6102 8102 1102 9102 ST0Z v10Z €102 Z10Z 1102 010z 111 |00y
(anyen passasse Jo Q0TS Jad)
SIBOA Xe] U3 1St
S19113S1 |00Y9S - sarey xe] Aladoid BuiddejssnQ pue 10a11Q
29 - @ HaIyx3 VNOZIYV ‘ALNNOD VINId

140



(panunuoa)

aNuanay Jo Juawpedaq euoziY
801340 S,10ss3ssy Aluno) ewild
:30IN0S

668'6.5'L $ 169'€29'L$ TTTLT8 z82'8r's $ T9G'2rE'6 $ Tea A XeL 10} UoEN[eA Passassy Alepuodss;
:S910N
%e'L T9Z'EVS $  %8'L 6E€'86G $ %L 821809 §  %E9 878'2€S § %E'S TeliTer $ ua) doy [eyoL
%20 8  6IS.T BWOJed ¥ UNS3M
%20 0T  €ST'oT BuluiN 0DUVSY
%E'0 9 L1212 %20 6  GE9'OT JUBLSD PUBHIOd BUOZLY
%20 0T  285'9T 07177 suswdofaAdQ HosaY ssed LIeiS
%2'0 0T ¥88'¢CT %20 0T 16271 S8l UOZIIBA
%Z'0 0T 86¢'CT 110S9Y SSed €IS NOLIRIA ML
%E0 9 S¥8'Te %E'0 9 EILTC %E'0 9 €eT'Ce %E'0 9  80Z'Te "0u| dO-0D 91399|3 00U L
uoaypAey
%20 L 99€'6T %20 8  €269T %20 6  T8S'ST U] '$310}S MBIN-[EM
%20 6  L£0'9T %20 6  0€0'9T %20 L 866'LT %20 L T€6'LT %20 L STLLT (Irewy uoson ) ‘03 uosyaN ANQ
07171 'sBuIpjoH uosonL (SINS
%20 8  786'9T %20 L 08691 %20 8 gLt %20 6  06E'LT %20 8 L60'LT D771 [endsoH 1SeMyHON
%S0 G Geo'se %S0 S 98e'or %L'0 S Gee'es %9°0 S r6'1S %L°0 v 9.0'GS uoneiodiod 1SIMO
%L°0 ¥ Tee'ss %0'T € T0T'¥L %0'T €  8Le8 %L°0 ¥ 68585 %E'0 G 8/8'8C BUIIA UOISSIAl - 0711 00YVSY
%C'T Z  98T'G6 %8'T Z  LVB'9ET %L'T z  eIvet %C'T Z  870'66 %0'T 7 68768 auI BpLIBIS - uonelodiod abpoq sdjayd
%80 €  68L'99 %80 ¥ 699'T9 %8'0 v 8TL'T9 %8°0 € €e5'v9 %L°0 €  6.8'G9 uoneI0di0) e ISIMYIN0S
%S'T T T0V'T02 $ %9¢C T 90002 $  wee T 292'6.T 8 0T T 075'89T $ %8'T T €9€'79T § "0 13MOd 13I3|F UoSINL/3aInosiun

anfen [ETTIN anfeA PNEA anfeA ENEIN anfen [ETTIN anfen PNEA JaRedxe |
passassy passassy passessy [passessy passassy [passessy [passessy passassy [passessy [passessy
[eloL Muey  pajewns3 [eoL Yuey  pajewns3 [eloL Muey  pajewns3y [eoL Muey  pajewns3 [eoL duey  parewns3
40 JUddJ8d 10 JU8dJ3d 10 JU8d13d 40 JUddJ8d 40 JUddJ8d
7102 €102 2102 1102 0102
(spuesnoy ur)
SIBa A [e9SI4 U3 1S
siafedxe ) Auadold [ediourld
£ - anquyx3 VNOZIYV ‘ALNNOD VINId

141



aNUBaARY JO Juswpedaq euoziy
901JJO $.10888SSY AJUN0D Bl

:904n0s

G98'G79'6 $ 69T'0£0'6 $ 0668058 $ 599'29¢'8 $ 06T'906'2 $ 1B A XeL 10} UONEN[BA PISSassy A1Bpuodss,
'S9J0N
%T'9 108988 %G9 TGTe988 5 %69 7888783 § %9 ToTeor %9 TZV60ES § usL doy oL
uonesodio) 18bie
SS3JaUIAN\ UOZIISA
110S9Y Ssed 11e1S NOLUBA M
%20 0T TET'YT *ou| ‘dQ-0D 9119313 091
%20 6 €0L'YT Auedwo) uoaiphey
%10 0T 66v'CT 277 ‘11 wnioads uoson) Yaa
%20 0T  020'€C %20 0T 2v'ee %€E0 0T  608'T¢C %20 9  TIZ'8T %20 9 ver'sT U] ‘$2J0)S HBIN-[eM
%20 6  0ST'€C %E0 6  199TC %€°0 6 1957 %20 6  899'GT %20 8  G69'ST (Iley uosanL) ‘0 UosPaN ANd
%E0 8  S00'se %E'0 8  6uL'6C %€0 8  629'€C %20 L LT 0717 'sBulpjoH uosony (SINS
%E'0 L T8.'8C %E'0 L 0z6'6C %0 L 69L'0E 07171 uljadid seo epnials
%E'0 9 Iyo'ee %¥'0 9  Te§'Te %0 9  G66'TE %20 8  858'9T %20 L 8S0'LT 0771 ‘[eNdSOH IS3MULION
%¥'0 S gee'se %¥'0 S Y96'7E %0 S 066'sE %0 S ITEE %S0 S L8'lE uonel0diod 1M
%¥'0 v Gee'oe %¥'0 v 08Z'0v %S0 v 85Tty %S0 € 06zCy %90 v 96v'sy 077 '008VSY
%L°0 € 2eLTL %80 € 186'0L %0'T 4 [AYA] %0'T 4 886'18 %T'T 4 L¥8'€6 uoresodiod abpoq sdjayd
%0'T Z  GlET6 %60 Z  8IT'ss %60 € 90e'ss %0 v 969'9¢ %60 € L6T'0L uonelodiod se9 1SsMLIN0S
%E'T T 196212 $ wre 1 18912 $ %ST T 6S€'STC $  %ee T 99€'88T $§  %¥'T 1 7v€'002 $ '0D JaMOd 914199|3 U0SIN 1 /304N0SIUN

anjeA [EITN anjeA [EITN anjeA [EITN anjeA EIN anjeA EITN J1aRedxe |
[passassy [passassy passassy passassy passassy passassy passassy passessy passassy [passassy
leloL uey parewns3 leloL suey  pajewns3 [eroL Juey  pajewnis3 [eloL Juey  parewns3 leloL Juey  perewns3
10 1uddlad J0 1u8diad 10 Juddlad 10 1uddlad J0 1u8dlad
6102 810C 1102 9102 ST0C

(spuesnoyy ur)
SIea A [BdSI4 Ua ) Ise]
siaAedxe] Auadoid Jedioulid
L-auayx3 VNOZINV ‘ALNNOD VINId

(panunuoa)

142



301110 SJainseal] Alunoo ewid
wiswisBeuey sy 7% soueul4 AlUNoD Bwid

:30IN0S

"SOHISIA JYIO 7P JuBWBAOIdL] S3PNJIUL GT-BTOT JBIA [83SH |

‘Auadoud peos uonelodsuel] sapnjoul 8T-/T0Z JedA [e9SIH e
"6T0Z ‘0€ dun( 0} pajaa| |02 pue AAs| pasnipe ay) UsIMIBY BOUBIKIP By} sussalday ,
"SJUBLLIBYES [RIDURUIY BUJ UL PaSN SISeq [BnId0. PBIJIPOLU BU} UBY) Jayjel SISeq USed © uo ale pajos)|od siunowy .

910N
L6L'6 %€E8'L6 YST' vy %€E8'L6 YST' Ty 156'0SY 156'0GY T€0°29 026'€8¢ 67-810C
8TT'T %9.'66 G9Z'E9Y £vi'6 %€EL'L6 228'eSy €8E'v9Y €8E'v9Y 2L'T8 119'28¢ 8T-2T10¢
ETV'T %89'66 187'6EY €488 %L9°L6 829'0EY ¥68'0ry ¥68'0ry Gv9'29 6vC'8LE L1-9T0C
88T'T %€L'66 T9€'2EY SY9'ET %8596 9T.'8T¥ 6VS'EEY 6VS'EEY 8177'65 T0T'v.€ 9T-9T0¢
TL2'T %6966 €12'0TY £va'eT %¥9'96 0L9°L6€ 8y TTY 8y TTY 98712 862'65€ ST-¥102
91G'T %6566 161'99¢ 6GV'TT %8796 8€€'GGE €1€'89¢ €1€'89¢ 182'Sy 920'€ze ¥1-€10C
T2ST %6566 TOV'69€ SY8'TT %096 965'/GE 226'0LE 226'0LE 9eT'9y 98.'v2g €1-2T0¢
89G'T %6566 TT'z8¢ Tv0'€T %6196 00T'69¢ 60.'€8€ 60.'€8€ e’y 19¥'SeE ¢T-T1T0¢
S/8'T %€EG'66 €L2'00v S6¢'9T %6€'G6 8.6'€8¢ 8v1'c0v (¥8¢€) zes'cor 952'0S 9/2'cae 17-0T0C
¥6¢ $ %€E6'66 299'T07 $ 619'9T $  %SL'S6 €86'78¢ ¢ 9s6'T0r  $  (901) $ 290207 $ 897'8% $ 76G'€GE $ 0T-600Z
EINEREN] Ana unowy SIBBA Ana wunowy (parsnipy) SU01081100 Ana xel LeloLIsIa Alelqr pue 80IAI8S 108 [EEJN
saxe | paisnipy juanbasgns ul [euiblio Ana xel 1104 Auadoid 1013U0D poO| 10} AAST 10} Ana xe Auadold [easi
juanbuljag 10 1U32J3d suon2’|0D 10 1U32J3d Auadoig Xe] |eay xe] Auadoid Arepuodss AJepuogas pue AraT
|eay leuibo xe| Auadoid Arewnid
;6702 ‘0€ aung Je3A [e3S14 Xe L JO pul
0] Pa198]10D ‘0€ aunr 03 pa1aa]|0D
(spuesnoyy ut)
SIB3 A |easId ua] 1se]
SU01199||0D pue saInaT] Xe ] Auadoid [eay

8- augyx3 VNOZIYV ‘ALNNOD VNI

143



PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA
Assessed, Limited and Full Cash (Secondary) Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(in thousands)

Limited and Ratio of Net
Net Assessed Full Cash Assessed to
Fiscal Year Value Value! Full Cash Value
2009-10 Primary $ 8,985,712 80,593,121 11.15%
2009-10 Secondary 9,860,981 88,095,754 11.19%
2010-11 Primary 8,939,647 82,348,221 10.86%
2010-11 Secondary 9,342,561 86,228,902 10.83%
2011-12 Primary 8,310,120 78,036,208 10.65%
2011-12 Secondary 8,448,282 80,152,473 10.54%
2012-13 Primary 8,073,938 76,085,641 10.61%
2012-13 Secondary 8,171,212 77,731,086 10.51%
2013-14 Primary 7,559,129 73,262,703 10.32%
2013-14 Secondary 7,623,691 74,590,067 10.22%
2014-15 Primary 7,518,482 74,402,882 10.11%
2014-15 Secondary 7,579,899 75,389,155 10.05%
2015-16 Primary 7,620,361 76,489,654 9.96%
2015-16 Secondary 7,906,190 79,550,159 9.94%
2016-17 Primary 7,816,700 78,911,345 9.91%
2016-17 Secondary 8,262,665 83,520,548 9.89%
2017-18 Primary 8,074,958 80,459,900 10.04%
2017-18 Secondary 8,508,990 84,772,588 10.04%
2018-19 Primary 8,333,893 82,745,384 10.07%
2018-19 Secondary 9,030,169 89,027,208 10.14%

Notes:

'Limited value is the basis for primary taxes and annual changes therein are restricted by statute;
Full Cash Value or Secondary Value approximates market value.

Source:

Pima County Finance & Risk Management
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit D - 10
Comparative Net Valuations and Tax Rates
(per $100 assessed value)
(in thousands)

FY 2018-19 (Tax Year 2018) FY 2019-20 (Tax Year 2019)
Jurisdiction Valuation Rate Valuation Rate
State of Arizona $ 8,333,893 0 $ 8,729,965 0
Pima County
General Fund - Primary 8,333,893 4.0696 8,729,965 3.9996
Debt Service - Secondary 8,333,893 0.6900 8,729,965 0.6900
Free Library - Secondary 8,333,893 0.5153 8,729,965 0.5353
Total County - Primary 8,333,893 4.0696 8,729,965 3.9996
Total County - Secondary 1.2053 1.2253
Grand Total 5.2749 5.2249
Education Assistance 8,333,893 0.4741 8,729,965 0.4566
Flood Control District - Secondary 7,576,148 0.3335 7,944,719 0.3335
Fire District Assistance - Secondary 8,333,893 0.0441 8,729,965 0.0430
Pima Community College District
Primary 8,333,893 1.3983 8,729,965 1.3758
Secondary 0 0 0 0
Total 1.3983 1.3758
Central Arizona Water Conservation District
Secondary 8,333,893 0.1400 8,729,965 0.1400
Cities & Towns
City of Tucson
Primary 3,414,161 0.5311 3,577,563 0.4555
Secondary 3,414,161 0.9508 3,577,563 0.9255
Total 1.4819 1.3810
City of South Tucson
Primary 22,170 0.2512 24,403 0.2434
Secondary 0 0 0 0
Total 0.2512 0.2434
School Districts
Unorganized - Primary 18,564 1.9679 17,764 1.8954
Tucson Unified (District #1)
Primary 3,304,884 4.1022 3,428,093 3.9644
Secondary 3,304,884 2.4532 3,428,093 2.3684
Total 6.5554 6.3328
Source:
Pima County Finance & Risk Management (continued)

145



PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit D - 10
Comparative Net Valuations and Tax Rates
(per $100 assessed value)

(in thousands)
(continued)

FY 2018-19 (Tax Year 2018) FY 2019-20 (Tax Year 2019)
Jurisdiction Valuation Rate Valuation Rate
Marana Unified (District #6)
Primary $ 837,560 4.1688 $ 898,569 3.9693
Secondary 837,560 1.9152 898,569 1.8957
Total 6.0840 5.8650
Flowing Wells Unified (District #8)
Primary 196,945 4.0835 202,962 3.9712
Secondary 196,945 2.8025 202,962 2.8827
Total 6.8860 6.8539
Amphitheater Unified (District #10)
Primary 1,530,659 3.8795 1,590,921 3.8753
Secondary 1,530,659 1.6124 1,590,921 1.5754
Total 5.4919 5.4507
Sunnyside Unified (District #12)
Primary 426,220 4.2050 446,562 3.9482
Secondary 426,220 1.4586 446,562 1.3527
Total 5.6636 5.3009
Tanque Verde Unified (District #13)
Primary 190,910 3.9159 197,465 3.8652
Secondary 190,910 1.4991 197,465 1.5322
Total 5.4150 5.3974
Ajo Unified (District #15)
Primary 18,120 4.5585 18,529 4.3771
Secondary 18,120 0 18,529 0
Total 4.5585 43771
Catalina Foothills Unified (District #16)
Primary 613,624 3.9825 632,777 3.6868
Secondary 613,624 1.4387 632,777 1.3075
Total 5.4212 4.9943
Vail Elementary (District #20)
Primary 492,663 4.1498 531,546 4.0268
Secondary 492,663 3.0145 531,546 3.4491
Total 7.1643 7.4759
Source:
Pima County Finance & Risk Management (continued)
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit D - 10
Comparative Net Valuations and Tax Rates
(per $100 assessed value)

(in thousands)
(continued)

FY 2018-19 (Tax Year 2018) FY 2019-20 (Tax Year 2019)
Jurisdiction Valuation Rate Valuation Rate
Sahuarita Unified (District #30)
Primary $ 295,179 4.4952 $ 334,367 4.0207
Secondary 295,179 3.9288 334,367 3.8505
Total 8.4240 7.8712
San Fernando Elementary (District #35)
Primary 10,725 4.3145 12,097 2.3087
Secondary 10,725 0 12,097 0
Total 4.3145 2.3087
Empire Elementary (District #37)
Primary 6,862 6.4884 6,779 3.7643
Secondary 6,862 0 6,779 0
Total 6.4884 3.7643
Continental Elementary (District #39)
Primary 342,029 2.0416 360,521 1.9399
Secondary 342,029 0.4621 360,521 0.4386
Total 2.5037 2.3785
Baboquivari Unified School (District #40)
Primary 2,139 0 1,993 0
Secondary 2,139 0 1,993 0
Total 0 0
Redington Elementary (District #44)
Primary 1,398 8.6853 1,412 7.3742
Secondary 1,398 0 1,412 0
Total 8.6853 7.3742
Altar Valley Elementary (District #51)
Primary 45,414 5.0640 47,606 4.6638
Secondary 45,414 0.9212 47,606 0.9167
Total 5.9852 5.5805

Source:
Pima County Finance & Risk Management
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit D - 11
Historical Collections - Hotel Excise Tax
Car Rental Surcharge and Recreational Vehicle Tax
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands)

Car Recreational

Fiscal Hotel Excise Rental Vehicle

Year Tax' Surcharges? Tax>*
2009-10 $ 5,637 $ 1,521 $ 181
2010-11 5,887 1,538 165
2011-12 6,626 1,464 146
2012-13 6,286 1,399 136
2013-14 6,276 1,390 122
2014-15 6,105 1,384 137
2015-16 6,534 1,468 146
2016-17 6,958 1,446 161
2017-18 6,345 1,530 71
2018-19 7,196 1,507

Notes:

! Tax increased from 1% to 2% January 1, 1997; the additional 1% can
only be used for County sports facilities. In January of 2006, the tax increased
from 2% to 6%, of which only 34% can be used for sports facilities.

2 Car rental surcharges increased from $2.50 to $3.50 per rental
contract July 1, 1996. Usage is restricted to County sports facilities.

® Recreational vehicle taxes apply at the rate of $0.50 per vehicle per night
and became effective July 1, 1997. Usage of this tax is limited to athletic activities.

* Recreational vehicle taxes expired on December 31, 2017

Source:
Pima County Finance and Risk Management Department
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit D - 12
Streets and Highways Revenues
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands)

Fiscal Highway User Vehicle
Year Amount Revenue License Tax
2009-10 $ 50,535 $ 38,739 $ 11,796
2010-11 50,460 38,974 11,486
2011-12 44,890 33,665 11,225
2012-13 47,449 36,860 10,589
2013-14 49,212 37,500 11,712
2014-15 53,212 40,762 12,450
2015-16 56,006 42,543 13,463
2016-17 59,443 45,356 14,087
2017-18 61,552 46,553 14,999
2018-19 65,564 49,718 15,846

Source:

Pima County Finance and Risk Management Department
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STATISTICAL SECTION

DEBT CAPACITY:

The debt capacity information is intended to assist users to understand and assess a government's
debt burden and ability to issue debt. Debt capacity information is cited as being very useful for as-
sessing economic condition as frequently as revenue or tax capacity. Five of the schedules presented
provide ten-year comparisons.

Certain schedules, for example, leases, lease-purchase installment notes payable, and purchase
agreements, are provided to comply with debt disclosure requirements.
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Computation of Direct and Overlapping
Governmental Activities Debt Outstanding

Governmental Unit

PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA

At June 30, 2019
(in thousands)

Debt
Outstanding

Debt repaid with property tax:
School Districts
Pima Community College
City of Tucson

Total overlapping
Debt repaid with property tax
Direct:
Pima County*

Total direct repaid with property tax
Other Debt:
Certificates of participation
Installment note payable
Transportation bonds

Total other debt

Total direct

Total direct and overlapping debt

Notes:

$ 659,085
59,715

148,145

$ 236,572

$ 124,567
724

96,916

Exhibit D - 15

Amount
Overlapping

659,085
59,715

148,145

866,945

236,572

236,572

124,567
724

96,916

222,207

458,779

1,325,724

Overlapping governments are those that coincide with the geographic boundaries of the County. All overlapping
governments are 100% within the County's boundaries. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt
borne by the residents and businesses of Pima County. When considering the County's ability to issue and repay long-
term debt, the process should recognize the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses therein. However,
this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident of each government and is responsible for the repayment of debt of

each overlapping government.

*Excludes improvement districts.

Source:

Pima County Finance & Risk Management

City of Tucson Finance Department

Pima Community College District Finance Office
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit D - 19
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for
General Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollar amounts in thousands)
Ratio
of Debt Service
Fiscal Total Debt Total General To General
Year Principal Interest Service Expenditures* Expenditures
2009-10 $ 83,565 $ 24,097 $ 107,662 $ 730,379 14.7%
2010-11 72,525 23,945 96,470 730,278 13.2%
2011-12 78,390 24,762 103,152 767,261 13.4%
2012-13 67,885 23,903 91,788 756,959 12.1%
2013-14 112,835 26,758 139,593 806,007 17.3%
2014-15 81,705 26,424 108,129 803,590 13.5%
2015-16 83,765 25,515 109,280 807,174 13.5%
2016-17 94,695 23,354 118,049 832,971 14.2%
2017-18 96,005 20,133 116,138 829,054 14.0%
2018-19 128,350 18,674 147,024 879,370 16.7%

*Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds, while excluding Capital Projects Fund.

Source:

Pima County Finance & Risk Management
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STATISTICAL SECTION

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION:

The dual objectives of the demographic and economic information are to assist users in understand-
ing certain aspects of the environment in which a government operates and to provide information
that facilitates the comparisons of financial staterment data over time and across governments.

Information of this type can help readers assess a government's condition by providing information
about community expansion, average age increases or decreases and changes in personal income
and unemployment. This type of data is important to readers in assessing economic condition.






PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit D - 20
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Per Capita
Calendar Personal Personal Unemployment
Year Population Income Income Rate
2010 981,168 $ 33,883,172 $ 34,534 9.3%
2011 986,081 35,132,468 35,628 8.5%
2012 990,380 36,412,855 36,767 7.4%
2013 996,046 36,935,363 37,082 7.0%
2014 1,007,162 38,025,100 37,755 6.4%
2015 1,022,079 39,106,000 38,261 5.6%
2016 1,016,743 40,359,300 39,695 5.0%
2017 1,025,044 41,349,550 40,339 4.5%
2018 1,033,781 43,223,000 41,811 4.3%
2019 1,042,475 46,497,700 44,603 4.7%

Sources:

Office of Economic Opportunity (for population data only)

UA Economic and Business Research Center, Eller College of Management
Bureau of Labor Statistics
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit D - 24
Economic Indicators by Calendar Year
Last Ten Years
(dollar amounts in thousands)

No. of Dwelling Change in

Fiscal Retail Units Real Estate Commercial Bank
Year Sales Awarded” Sales Volume Deposits

2010 $ 10,439,448 2,129 9% $ 11,134,000
2011 10,640,207 1,938 -21% 11,265,000
2012 11,440,377 2,242 8% 11,501,822
2013 12,010,672 2,841 13% 12,173,345
2014 12,317,085 3,491 5% 12,980,645
2015 12,555,553 3,250 7% 13,760,260
2016 8,443,626 2,428 14% 14,654,142
2017 8,558,672 2,466 5% 15,226,977
2018 8,851,127 4,495 9% 15,716,917
2019 9,319,711 4,404 5% 15,573,516

Notes:

'Prior to FY 2016, Retail Sales statistics were calculated in the aggregate, which included total taxable sales from the
following categories: Retail, Restaurant & Bar, Food and Gasoline. As of FY 2016, only retail sales (not including
food and fuel) are shown.

? Beginning with calendar year 2011, the number of dwelling units awarded includes both single family and multiple

family unit structures combined.

Sources:
UA Economic and Business Research Center, Eller College of Management
Tucson Association of Realtors, Multiple Listing Service, Inc.
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit D - 25
Population Statistics
June 30, 2019

ESTIMATED POPULATION BY AGE

Age Group Population
0-4 57,116
5-9 60,765
10-14 64,305
15-19 74,226
20-24 79,553
25-29 71,740
30-34 64,298
35-39 61,447
40-44 58,418
45-49 58,987
50-54 57,141
55-59 66,367
60-64 67,518
65-69 63,417
70-74 52,780

75+ 84,396

Total 1,042,474

POPULATION PROJECTIONS

Projected
Year Population
2020 1,050,906
2025 1,091,610
2035 1,164,088
2045 1,222,916

Source:
Office of Economic Opportunity
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PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA Exhibit D - 26
Average Annual Jail Population
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Average Jail
Year Population
2010 1,724
2011 1,640
2012 1,802
2013 2,000
2014 2,061
2015 1,863
2016 1,862
2017 1,863
2018 1,868
2019 1,853

Source:
Pima County Sheriff's Department, Corrections Bureau
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STATISTICAL SECTION

OPERATING INFORMATION:

The objective of the operating information is to provide contextual information about a govern-
ment's operations and resources to assist users in using financial information to understand and
assess a government's economic condition. Two types of information are considered important:

1. Basic information about infrastructure assets, utilities, and public works; in essence, the cap-
ital resources at the government's disposal. Examples include miles of streets and sewers and
wastewater treatment volume.

2. Descriptive service information, which would help to evaluate the size of the government. This
would include types of services, the related demand and volume, and the non-financial re-
sources employed to provide the services.
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